

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN

STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

CONTRACT DAAAM-02-97-D-0005 DELIVERY ORDER NO. 0003

DECEMBER 2000



200.1e SAEP_02.12_0500_a

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN

STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

CONTRACT DAAAM-02-97-D-0005 DELIVERY ORDER NO. 0003

DECEMBER 2000

Printed On Recycled Paper

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

CONTRACT DAAAM-02-97-D-0005 DELIVERY ORDER NO. 0003

Prepared for:

U.S. Army Tank-automotive and Armaments Command Stratford, Connecticut

Prepared by:

Harding ESE A MÁCTEC Company Portland, Maine

> Project No. 50796 Task No. 1032

DECEMBER 2000

Instad

Gina L. Rustad, P.E. Task Leader

Brian Johnson, P.E. Geotechnical Leader



GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section No.	Description	Page No.
	-	-

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1-1
1.1	PURPOSE AND SCOPE	1-1
1.2	SITE HISTORY	
1.3	REPORT ORGANIZATION	1-2
2.0	FIELD INVESTIGATION	2-1
2.1	SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS	2-5
2.	.1.1 Lithology	2-5
2.	.1.2 Groundwater	
2.2	FIELD RESULTS	
3.0	LABORATORY TESTING	
4.0	RESULTS	4-1
4.1	ESTIMATED PHYSICAL PROPERTIES	4-1

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

REFERENCES

LIST OF APPENDICES

PHOTOGRAPHIC LOG
SOIL BORING LOGS
FIELD SHEAR TEST RESULTS
SHEAR STRENGTH VS. ELEVATION PLOTS

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure No.

Description

1-1 Site Features

- 2-1 Exploration Location Plan
- 2-2 Geologic Profiles and Geonor Sampling Locations
- 2-3 Geologic Profile A-A'
- 2-4 Geologic Profile B-B'
- 2-5 Geologic Profile C-C'
- 2-6 Peak Shear Strength vs. Elevation Under the Causeway
- 2-7 Peak Shear Strength vs. Elevation Off the Causeway
- 3-1 Moisture Content vs. Elevation Under the Causeway
- 3-2 Moisture Content vs. Elevation Off the Causeway
- 4-1 Design Shear Strength Values Under the Causeway
- 4-2 Design Shear Strength Values Off of the Causeway

LIST OF TABLES

Table No.

Description

- 2-1 Field Investigation Program
- 2-2 Field Vane Shear Test Results
- 3-1 Laboratory Testing Program
- 3-2 Grain Size Determination
- 3-3 Moisture Content
- 3-4 Atterberg Limits
- 3-5 Organic Matter
- 3-6 Specific Gravity
- 3-7 Shelby Tube Openings
- 4-1 Summary of Shear Strength Values Versus Depth Around the Causeway

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Harding ESE, a MACTEC company (Harding) (formerly Harding Lawson Associates [HLA]) has been contracted to complete geotechnical investigations in support of the Non-time Critical Removal Action (NCRA) design for the Causeway at the Stratford Army Engine Plant (SAEP) in Stratford, Connecticut. The removal action is being conducted in accordance with the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP) (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency [USEPA], 1990), and the Base Closure and Realignment (BRAC) Cleanup Plan Guidebook (Department of Defense, 1993). This technical memorandum describes the geotechnical investigations conducted by Harding on the Causeway and in the tidal flats surrounding the Causeway and summarizes the testing performed and the results of the investigations.

1.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This technical memorandum presents the data collected during geotechnical investigations at the SAEP Causeway. In the Final Engineering Evaluation/Cost Analysis (EE/CA) (Foster Wheeler Environmental Corporation [FW]/HLA, 2000), geotechnical investigations were recommended to evaluate the global stability of the proposed Causeway Cover System.

Prior to the EE/CA, drilling completed during well installation indicated that the Causeway is underlain by soft sediments that are considered problematic with regard to geotechnical stability. Because the proposed remedy requires a cover to prevent receptor exposure to site contamination, further geotechnical investigation of the underlying sediments was proposed to assess their geotechnical characteristics. This memorandum presents the results of the recommended geotechnical investigation, including field testing and laboratory testing results. Geotechnical investigations were completed on the SAEP Causeway in the Fall of 2000.

1.2 SITE HISTORY

SAEP consists of approximately 124 acres, of which an estimated 76 acres are improved land consisting of 49 buildings, paved roadways and grounds, and five paved parking lots (Figure 1-1). Included in the improved land are an estimated 10 acres along the Housatonic River where fill was placed over tidal sediments during the development of SAEP facility, including the Causeway. Riparian rights are associated with the remainder of the SAEP facility. A riparian right is a right of access to, or use of, the shore, bed, or water of land on the bank of a natural watercourse. The riparian rights property consists of intertidal flats of the Housatonic River. An estimated two acres of property compose the Causeway, constructed to provide access to the river channel.

Harding ESE

The Causeway was initially constructed and used as a means of launching seaplanes in the 1930s. Additional materials, of unknown origin, were deposited along the northern edge of the Causeway during the 1950s and 1960s. Building 59, an open-topped, concrete building, was constructed to house the nose cones of missiles, including the explosive charges used to open the nose cones. There is currently no unexploded ordnance present at the SAEP facility. The source of the fill used to construct the Causeway is unknown, but it has been found to contain soil, cobbles, and construction debris (e.g., concrete, brick, and asphalt). Smaller amounts of other material (e.g., wood, glass, cinders, ash and rebar) were also observed during field investigation activities. It was also reported that paint solvents and wastes were burned on the Causeway as part of fire-training operations. Appendix A provides a photographic log of the Causeway, identifying various features of the site.

Chemical sampling and analysis of soil collected from the Causeway identified concentrations of chlorinated and fuel-related volatile organic compounds (VOCs), semi-volatile organic compounds, polychlorinated biphenyls, and inorganics that exceeded the Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection Remediation Standard Regulation Direct Exposure Criteria and Pollutant Mobility Criteria. Low-level radiological contamination was also identified during sampling, and the affected areas were excavated in March 2000. This material was containerized and transported to an appropriate off-site licensed disposal facility. Evaluation of chemical analytical data is discussed in the Final Causeway Pre-design Investigation Report (FW/HLA, 2000a).

Based on the results of chemical sampling and an EE/CA report (FW/HLA, 2000b), it has been recommended that an erosion control cover system be placed over the Causeway to prevent possible receptor contact with contaminated soil and overland transport of contaminated soil into the tidal flats. Geotechnical investigations, the results of which are presented in this technical memorandum, were initiated because soil borings completed for chemical sampling purposes during previous investigations, were widely spaced throughout the large area that would likely be impacted by construction of the proposed Causeway cover system. In addition, data from some of these earlier borings indicated that the Causeway fill material and the underlying tidal sediment may not provide the strength necessary to support the proposed cover system, and construction of the cover could lead to a failure of the Causeway.

1.3 REPORT ORGANIZATION

This data report is organized into four sections. Section 1 identifies the purpose and scope of the geotechnical field investigations and this data report, and presents a brief history of the SAEP site and the SAEP Causeway. Section 2 discusses the methodology behind field investigation tasks completed as part of the geotechnical investigation, presents an interpretation of the subsurface geologic conditions on the Causeway, and provides a summary of data collected

 $P:\label{eq:cond} P:\label{eq:cond} P:\label{c$

during field investigations. Section 3 presents the results of laboratory testing completed on samples collected during field activities and briefly explains the laboratory testing methodology. Section 4 provides a summary of consolidation and shear strength theory, then presents the estimated physical properties of the soils and sediments present in the vicinity of the SAEP Causeway.

Harding ESE

 $P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Cause way\Geotech\TechMemo\Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc$

50796 1032

2.0 FIELD INVESTIGATION

Geotechnical investigations were initiated on September 18, 2000, and included two separate drilling phases. Drilling was performed in accordance with established SAEP Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) (FW/HLA, 1999). Earth Exploration, Inc. of Hopkinton, Massachusetts, under contract to Harding, performed the drilling services. Figure 2-1 identifies the locations of the borings completed during the geotechnical investigations.

Phase 1 included the installation of five borings on the Causeway (GB-00-01 through GB-00-04 and GB-00-07A) and five borings in the tidal flats surrounding the Causeway (GB-00-05 through GB-00-09). These borings were installed between September 18, and October 19, 2000 using standard drive-and-wash drilling techniques (see Figure 2-1). The purpose of this investigation was to observe subsurface conditions, to conduct field tests, and to collect samples for off-site laboratory testing. Borings installed during Phase 1 were typically continuously sampled. Boring locations on and along the sides of the Causeway were accessed using an all-terrain vehicle drill rig, while boring locations sited within the tidal flats were accessed using a bargemounted drill rig.

Phase 2, consisting of the installation of nine borings along the shoulders of the Causeway (GB-00-05A, GB-00-05B, GB-00-06A, GB-00-06B, GB-00-08A, GB-00-08B, GB-00-09A, GB-00-09B, and GB-00-10), were installed between November 6, and November 9, 2000 using airrotary drilling techniques. The purpose of this investigation was to further define the vertical extent of fill along the sides of the Causeway; therefore, continuous sampling of these borings was not performed. A backhoe was used to provide access to drilling locations for the air-rotary rig.

Drilling activities were directed and observed by Harding and were designed to gather specific information. For the Phase 1, the specific information included:

- Geologic information: thickness and extent of fill and native material, including physical descriptions
- Field testing: shear strength testing and standard penetration testing (relative density)
- Soil samples for laboratory testing of physical characteristics, including moisture content, grain size distribution, organic content, density, Atterberg limits, specific gravity, shear strength, consolidation, and triaxial compression

For the Phase 2, the main purpose was to further define the vertical extent of fill along the sides of the Causeway. Also, soil samples for additional laboratory testing for moisture content determinations were collected during this phase.

Harding ESE

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Causeway\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

Appendix B contains the soil boring logs. These logs show, along with the lithological descriptions, the types and depths at which samples were collected and any field testing that was performed. Table 2-1 lists a summary of the field investigation program, including the surface elevations of each soil boring, the total depths of each boring, and the number of tests completed in each boring. A summary of the field testing results is presented in Section 3 and the laboratory testing results are presented in Section 4.

Soil borings completed on the Causeway were surveyed horizontally and vertically by Meridian Engineering (Meridian) of Danvers, Massachusetts. For each of the borings completed within the tidal flats, a minimum of two landmarks were identified on the Causeway. Boring distance from these landmarks were recorded by Harding personnel during completion of the borings; the landmarks were then surveyed by Meridian and used to establish the boring locations. In addition, a topographic survey of the Causeway and the surrounding area was completed by Meridian. The topographic survey included the elevation (in 1-foot contours) of the Causeway, 100 linear feet of the SAEP dike on either side of the Causeway extending 50 feet toward the facility, and the tidal flat sediments within 75 feet of the Causeway. Appendix A contains a photographic log of the Causeway site, identifying various landmarks used during location of geotechnical borings.

HLA performed air monitoring with a photoionization detector (PID) and lower explosive limit/oxygen meter during drilling. Borings installed during Phase 1 were backfilled to ground surface with a cement-bentonite grout. The grout mixture was placed into the borehole using a tremmie pipe. Borings installed during Phase 2 were backfilled with soil cuttings directly from the surface. Excess drill cuttings generated during both mobilizations were spread on the surface of the Causeway. Materials tested at the laboratory will ultimately be transported back to the Causeway and spread on the ground surface.

Tests performed in the field included Standard Penetration Testing (American Society for Testing and Materials [ASTM] D1586), and vane shear testing (e.g., field vane testing in accordance with ASTM D2573), as summarized in Table 2-1. At selected locations around the Causeway, field vane testing using a hand-held GeonorTM (in accordance with ASTM D2573) was also performed. Laboratory testing was performed on thin-walled tube samples (i.e., Shelby tubes [ASTM D1587]) that were collected at selected depths from a number of the borings (see Table 2-1). Additional tests were performed on selected bulk samples collected from split-spoon samples, and on the soil samples collected from field vane flights, as described in Section 3.

<u>Standard Penetration Testing.</u> Data collected during standard penetration testing are used to develop N-values, which are defined as the number of blows required to advance a standard split-spoon sampler with a standard amount of energy from 6 to 18 inches below the bottom of the boring casing. Among other uses, these data provide an indication of the soil's relative density (for granular soils) or consistency (for cohesive soils). Data can also be used to provide estimates of settlement and shear strength. Appendix B contains soil boring logs for borings

 $P:\label{eq:cond} P:\label{eq:cond} P:\label{c$

completed during this geotechnical investigation. The boring logs contain blow counts measured during the completion of the soil borings.

<u>Vane Shear Testing</u>. A direct measure of in-situ soil strength can be obtained from vane shear testing. The test consists of placing a four-flighted vane in undisturbed soil and rotating it from the surface to determine the torsional force required to cause a cylindrical soil surface surrounding the vane flights to be sheared by the vane; this force is then converted to a unit shearing resistance of the cylindrical surface. The field vane used was an Acker system, which consists of a hand crank used to rotate the vane at a rate of approximately 6 degrees per minute (0.1 degrees per second) to minimize stress and pore pressure concentrations. The method is well-suited for fine-grained soil including clays, silts and fine sands. However, where highly organic soils, containing a high percentage of large objects (i.e., organic matter) are present, two factors may influence test results. First, the cylindrical shearing surface may be influenced by the organic matter, and second, the vane may displace these objects and disturb the soils within the cylindrical shearing surface.

The shear strength provided by a soil is dependent upon the amount of displacement developed within the soil mass. This means that when a load is applied to a soil, the soil deforms, and through this deformation it is able to resist the applied load, a phenomenon known as mobilization of shear strength. The field vane test allows for measurement of both rotational strain (movement) and applied stress (the stress mobilized in the soil to resist the applied rotational strain). The fine-grained nature of the native organic sediments (compared to classical peats), the relatively good correlation with the laboratory and other test indices, and the number of tests performed, indicate that the field vane testing provided representative data.

Estimates of soil shear strength were also obtained through testing using a hand-held GeonorTM vane. The GeonorTM vane estimates a soil's shear strength in much the same way vane shear testing provides results. A small vane is attached to a torque-measuring handle using the necessary length of rod, and the vane is inserted into the soil. Torque is applied to the handle of the vane and a reading of the maximum applied torque, prior to shearing of the soil, is obtained. The reading obtained in the field is converted to an estimated shear strength using GeonorTM conversion factors.

GeonorTM readings were collected from the ends of selected Shelby tube samples, from the subsurface in the area of borings installed within the mud flats, and along the western and eastern shores of the Causeway (Figure 2-2). Measurements collected from depth in the subsurface (0.5 to 2.0 meters) took into account the resistance of the soil in contact with the GeonorTM rods in addition to the resistance of the soil contacting the vane. The rod resistance was subtracted from the final reading, so that only the resistance of the soil contacting the vane was considered during evaluation of the soil's shear strength.

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Cause way\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

Shelby tube samples were collected to supply undisturbed soil samples from which laboratory tests were performed for additional design data. Typically, split-spoon sampling was conducted in the remainder of each boring installed during the first mobilization to provide a record of subsurface conditions, as well as to provide disturbed soil samples for additional laboratory testing. Sampling within the borings installed during Phase 2 was limited to split-spoon samples, collected for field observation of the depth of fill at these locations.

During boring advancement at GB-00-02, elevated PID readings were recorded on soils when the split spoons from certain depths were first opened (see GB-00-02 boring log in Appendix B). PID readings as high as 66 parts per million (ppm) were recorded at the 20- to 22-foot interval, and 49 ppm was recorded at the 16- to 18-foot interval. Based on these readings, it was decided that the boring would be completed as a monitoring well to allow for sampling and analysis of groundwater from the zone containing the highest PID readings. A 2-inch diameter polyvinyl chloride well with a 0.010-inch slotted well screen was installed from 16 feet to 26 feet below ground surface (bgs) and developed using surge and pump techniques. A groundwater sample was collected and analyzed at an off-site laboratory for VOCs on November 11, 2000 in accordance with SAEP SOPs (FW/HLA, 1999). Samples were shipped by overnight carrier to Severn Trent Laboratories (STL), Inc. in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania for analysis. Results from the analysis of this groundwater sample will be included in a separate report that will also present results of Synthetic Precipitate Leaching Procedure analysis on soil samples collected in September from various locations on the Causeway.

Additionally, once sampling in GB-00-02 was completed, and before the well was installed, this boring was probed by driving drilling rods from 72 feet to a probe refusal depth of 94.7 feet bgs. Probing was performed to aid in determining the approximate depth to the top of bedrock at this location. The second deep exploration on the Causeway, GB-00-04, was to be probed in the same manner; however, this exploration was placed near MWCD-99-01B which had auger refusal at a depth of around 102 feet bgs (FW/HLA, 2000a), therefore, it was determined that probing would not be necessary.

At the completion of the geotechnical drilling program, the location of the end of fill/beginning of native sediments (e.g., toe of the fill) at several points around the Causeway were measured by Harding. This was completed by measuring from the survey-located landmarks, previously used to locate the borings completed within the tidal flats, to the break-in-slope between the Causeway fill soils and the natural mud flat sediments. Horizontal measurements from the survey-located landmarks to the toe of fill were made at four points near where barge borings were installed. Measurements were made at GB-00-05, GB-00-06, GB-00-08, and GB-00-09. Measurements were not made along the east end of the Causeway, nearest the river, because the toe of the fill in that area is under water at low tide. The locations of these toe of fill measurements are shown on Figure 2-1, and are labeled as "Approximate Contact of Fill/Riverine Sediments."

Harding ESE

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Causeway\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

2.1 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

2.1.1 Lithology

Fill materials and soils encountered during the SAEP geotechnical investigation can be grouped into four distinct units. The following paragraphs provide typical physical descriptions of these units. Subsurface materials encountered beneath the Causeway consists of the following units, where present, from ground surface downward; fill, native organic sediment, sand and gravel, and very fine sand and silt. The deepest unit may be a finer gradation of the unit above. Figures 2-3 through 2-5 provide Interpretive Geologic Profiles through the Causeway, oriented as shown on Figure 2-2.

<u>Fill</u>: Materials observed within the fill include many types of fill material ranging from clean, well graded sands; to stained soils; as well as metal, wood, cobbles, asphalt, concrete, cemented ash, etc. Thicknesses of the fill range from around 20 feet near GB-00-01 at the end of the Causeway, to around 13 feet near GB-00-04. These thicknesses correlate well with borings and test pits installed during the Pre-Design Investigation (FW/HLA, 2000a). The fill material gradually thins out on the sides of the Causeway (as shown on Figures 2-4 and 2-5). The contact between the fill materials and the native organic sediments is not a clean one and includes a thin interval of mixing between these two units until eventually, there is an absence of fill. The differential settling of fill materials within the very soft native organic sediments has likely caused this to occur. Within this mixed interval, black, native organic sediments were observed to be either thoroughly mixed with fill material or, in some cases, interbedded with the fill.

<u>Native Organic Sediments</u>: The first native soils located beneath the fill material are the riverine sediments of the Housatonic River. These were described in the field as being black, mucky, soft to very soft, slightly-to-non-plastic silts in the upper portions of the unit, with increasing organic content with depth. Laboratory results of samples collected from this unit show it to be a sandy silt. A phenomenon of this unit noted during the drilling is that organic fibers, reeds or plant stems are usually present and that a strong sulfur odor is almost always present. Also, this unit tends to become more organic with depth in that thin peat lenses are sometimes present immediately above the underlying sand and gravel unit (see Sand & Gravel section below). This unit can be seen in the Interpretive Geologic Profiles A-A' through C-C' (Figures 2-3 through 2-5). The thinnest section of this unit was observed in GB-00-09 with a thickness of approximately 34 feet, which extends to an elevation of approximately –36 feet mean sea level (msl). This unit is approximately 38 feet thick beneath the Causeway at GB-00-02 and GB-00-04, extending to approximately –45 feet msl, then thickness to around 41 feet at GB-00-08 on the south side of the Causeway, where again the lower elevation is at around –44 feet msl.

Harding ESE

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Causeway\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

<u>Sand & Gravel</u>: A unit consisting of non-homogeneous sand and gravel mixtures is present beneath the native organic sediments. Materials consist of loose to medium dense silty sands to clean sand and gravel mixtures. While not recovered due to size being larger than the split spoon diameter, it is suspected that gravel, and possibly cobbles, would be present in this unit. This sand and gravel unit ranges in thickness from around 12 feet in GB-00-02 to greater than 22 feet in GB-00-08 (see Figures 2-3 and 2-4).

<u>Very Fine Sand & Silt</u>: The bottom unit observed in this geotechnical investigation is composed of very fine sand and silt. This material may be a separate unit or may be, as shown in the Pre-Design Investigation Report (FW/HLA, 2000a), only a finer portion of a larger unit that also includes the coarser sand and gravel above. Because these finer soils would be expected to behave differently under induced stresses, these soils are treated as being a separate unit for purposes of the geotechnical evaluation. Within this unit are apparently continuous reddish clay lenses, present in the deeper borings (e.g., GB-00-05, GB-00-06, GB-00-09, see boring logs in Appendix B). This unit is first seen at an elevation of –50 feet msl in GB-00-02.

2.1.2 Groundwater

Monitoring well pairs MWCD-99-01A/B, and MWCD-99-02A/B were installed during the Pre-Design Investigation (FW/HLA, 2000a). Vertical gradients measured for the Pre-Design Investigation were determined for these well pairs; the deeper wells screen the top of the sand and gravel unit, and the shallow wells screen the water table which lies within the fill soils of the Causeway. A downward gradient, indicative of recharge, was observed at the time of the measurement in the well pair MWCD-99-01A/B at 0.0165 feet per foot. The second well pair, MWCD-99-02A/B, located at the far end of the Causeway, showed an upward gradient of 0.0445 feet per foot. Two rounds of synoptic water level measurements, one during high tide conditions and another during low tide conditions, are scheduled to be collected during January 2001. These measurements will help further define groundwater gradients that may exist on the Causeway.

2.2 FIELD RESULTS

Field data was generated during the advancement of soil borings through the completion of standard penetration tests (ASTM D1586), field vane shear tests (ASTM D2573), and hand-held GeonorTM tests. Standard penetration testing provides information related to the density of the soil being tested, while vane shear testing and GeonorTM testing provide a direct measure of the soil's shear strength. The boring logs contained in Appendix B present the blow counts measured during the completion of the soil borings as well as peak and remolded field vane shear results.

During the completion of field vane shear testing, both torque and angle of rotation were recorded. Due to the relatively low torque applied, the shallow testing depths, and the use of

 $P:\label{eq:cond} P:\label{eq:cond} P:\label{c$

large drilling rods (N-rods), the correction for rotational stiffness of the rods was not performed. Plots of angular strain (based on 90 degrees of rotation angle) versus shear resistance, presented in Appendix C for each test completed, indicate that the organic sediments under the Causeway typically reached peak shear strength at approximately 26 percent strain (a rotation of the rods of 23 degrees) while the organic sediments in the tidal flats reached peak shear strength at approximately 31 percent strain (a rotation of the rods of 28 degrees). Percent strain values ranged from a high of 42 to a low of 14 percent strain under the Causeway and from a high of 60 to a low of 15 in the tidal flats (see Appendix C).

The majority of the stress-strain plots produced from the field vane shear data indicated that low strain levels produced a nearly linear stress-strain plot. Following this linear portion, assumed to be the materials elastic range, the stress increased more slowly with increasing strain. This break is assumed to correspond to the start of plastic behavior of the material, where the soil likely experiences unrecoverable strain and the organic fibers are being reoriented. It is typically assumed that only shear strengths within the elastic range should be relied upon as part of standard design. If a structure is designed with plastic soil shear strengths, movement is typically considered excessive, resulting in a "failure" of the structure before the soil actually achieves its peak strength. Two additional sets of shear strength results are shown in the figures in Appendix C, the residual shear strength provided by the soil, after it has been remolded and no reconstitution/consolidation has occurred, such as following a rotational failure. The 5 percent strain value is in the upper range of peak strains typically seen in granular soils, such as the overlying fills. This value is evaluated to reduce concerns for strain incompatibility issues between the two materials (fill and native organic sediments).

Figures 2-6 and 2-7 present plots of peak shear strength (measured in the field) versus elevation for locations under the Causeway and in the tidal flats, respectively. The figures include data gathered from field vane shear testing in the borings, GeonorTM testing completed in Shelby tubes collected from the borings, and GeonorTM testing completed in the shallow subsurface near the boring locations. Figures summarizing other shear strength values (including remoulded strengths, 5 percent strain strengths, and elastic strain strengths) versus elevation under and off the Causeway, are included in Appendix D.

Harding ESE

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Cause way\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

3.0 LABORATORY TESTING

A significant number of samples collected during the pre-design geotechnical investigations were tested in the laboratory to determine their engineering properties for use in design of the Causeway cover system. Laboratory testing was performed by GeoTesting Express, of Boxborough, Massachusetts. Testing was performed as specified by Harding and in accordance with ASTM methods and standard geotechnical engineering practice. Testing included both tests for index properties (used to classify/categorize samples and to support interpolation of strength and consolidation characteristics) and physical properties (strength and consolidation characteristics). Samples tested were obtained from split-spoons, Shelby tubes and vane shear tests. Vane shear test samples were typically collected from materials retained between the vane blades after removal from the subsurface. Table 3-1 provides a summary of the tests performed.

Laboratory data results are summarized in tabular form in Tables 3-2 through 3-7, as follows:

TABLE NUMBER	TESTING TABLE NAME
2.2	
3-2	Grain Size Determination
3-3	Moisture Content
3-4	Atterberg Limits
3-5	Organic Matter
3-6	Specific Gravity
3-7	Shelby Tube Openings

Figures 3-1 and 3-2 present plots of moisture content versus elevation for borings completed under the Causeway and in the tidal flats, respectively. Interpretation of testing results is provided in Section 4.

One-dimensional consolidation tests were performed on three Shelby tube samples in accordance with ASTM D2435. Samples were selected to span the range of existing stresses and were loaded to include anticipated possible loading conditions. Load increments ranged from 0.5 pounds per square inch (psi) to 32.0 psi and were applied to the samples in a load-unload-load sequence. Actual load and unload schedules was selected based on the estimated existing stress on the sample due to existing load conditions as well as possible cover scenarios. Each increasing load increment was applied for 24 hours, and the unloading increment was conducted until a minimum of 90 percent expansion had been observed. A 72-hour load period was utilized for the final load increment, which was intended to estimate the load from the Causeway cover system. Pore pressure was recorded for the last load increment in each test and laboratory results included plots of strain versus log and square root of time. Due to an equipment problem, pore pressure measurements made on samples GB-00-02, 40-42 feet and GB-00-05, 26-28 feet are not

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Causeway\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

considered to be representative of actual conditions. The laboratory provided electronic files containing test data, for use in further evaluations performed by Harding. Harding evaluated the consolidation characteristics, as discussed in Section 4.

Triaxial compression testing was performed on five Shelby tube samples in accordance with ASTM D4767. Tests were performed at three confining stresses for each sample, the magnitude of which was based on estimated existing stresses as well as possible cover scenarios. Tests were performed for three primary reasons: 1) to allow for a possible estimation of strength gain (not evaluated in detail in this technical memorandum); 2) to provide for a more accurate/controlled characterization of the stress-strain relationships and allow for correlation with field vane shear test results, and; 3) to support a deformation analysis, should one be required.

Test results were provided by the laboratory in two bound reports (GeoTesting Express, Inc. 2000a and 2000b). These reports have not been reproduced as part of this report, but are available for review upon request.

Harding ESE

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Causeway\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

4.0 **RESULTS**

The following provides a summary of the results obtained through performing field and laboratory testing of the soils in the vicinity of the Causeway.

4.1 ESTIMATED PHYSICAL PROPERTIES

Physical characteristics for both fill and organic sediments have been evaluated, based on observations made during the pre-design geotechnical investigation and the results of laboratory testing. Physical characteristic analyses, including determinations of index properties, shear strength, stress history, and consolidation characteristics, were completed to provide inputs for subsequent geotechnical evaluations.

Literature sources were referenced during the field investigations and during data interpretation to support the analyses being conducted, due to site conditions (i.e., very soft organic sediments). In particular, references regarding shear strength reduction factors were considered when determining appropriate shear strength values for use in the stability model. Two specific reduction factors, the first related to the reliability of field vane shear testing, and the second related to the placement of stiff fill materials on soft organic sediments, were used. The reduction factors were applied to the average peak shear strength readings collected in the field. Figures 4-1 through 4-3 present the average shear strength values (peak, five percent strain, straight-line, residual, reduced, and proposed) versus elevation for soil under the Causeway, north of the Causeway and south of the Causeway, respectively.

A summary of the estimated geotechnical characteristics is presented for each of the materials encountered/tested, including Causeway fill and organic sediment. Actual test results are presented in the laboratory reports (GeoTesting Express, Inc., 2000a and 2000b).

Causeway Fill Characteristics:

Limited testing, including Standard Penetration Testing, grain size, and moisture content were performed on Causeway fill material. While a zone is present at the bottom of this unit where mixing has occurred with the organic sediments, it will be assumed in the design evaluations that the soil is homogeneous. The possibility for cracks under the center and along each side of the Causeway is high and should be accounted for in the design evaluations. Based on these test results, the Causeway fill material can be described as having the following estimated engineering characteristics:

- Total Unit Weight = 140 pounds per cubic foot (pcf)
- Submerged Unit Weight = 77.6 pcf
- Internal Friction Angle = 33 degrees (°)

 $P:\ Projects \ CBDCOM \ SAEP \ Cause \ way \ Geotech \ Tech \ Memo \ Geotechnical \ Investigation \ Summary \ Report. doc$

- Cohesion = 0 pounds per square foot (psf) (conservative assumption, since large quantities of slag and semi-cemented ash were encountered along with large pieces of concrete).
- Relative Density = moderately dense to very dense
- Consistency = granular and non-cohesive

Organic Sediment Characteristics:

In addition to field testing (e.g., Standard Penetration Test measurements and vane shear testing), both disturbed (i.e., soil from split spoons and from field vane shear tests) and undisturbed (i.e., soil from Shelby Tubes) samples were collected and tested in the off-site laboratory, as identified in Table 3-1. Based on the available data, strengths for the organic sediments appear to increase with depth, while water contents also increase. This is likely due to the increased organic contents observed with depth. In order to evaluate the likely stability of the Causeway, both under existing conditions and following construction of the cover system, the available shear strength must be entered into the model. The shear strengths presented here, are independent of the overburden pressure, since it has already been included.

For the design evaluations, the condition immediately following construction is considered to be the most critical and should include undrained shear strength values. The affect of strength gain and additional confining stress (since the organic sediments act primarily as a frictional material) will act to increase the long-term stability and are therefore not considered further here. Drained (i.e., long-term) stability will be considered in the final evaluations.

The organic sediments are divided into two main categories, those under the Causeway and those off the Causeway (i.e., in the tidal flats). The main categories are further divided into 10-foot thick layers, as follows:

Under the Causeway:

Elevation -10 to -20 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 96 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 630 psf

Elevation -20 to -30 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 86 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 770 psf

Elevation -30 to -40 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 80 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 900 psf

 $P:\ Projects \ CBDCOM \ SAEP \ Cause \ way \ Geotech \ Tech \ Memo \ Geotechnical \ Investigation \ Summary \ Report. doc$

Off of the Causeway:

Elevation 0 to -10 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 94 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 180 psf

Elevation -10 to -20 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 88 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 240 psf

Elevation -20 to -30 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 78 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 310 psf

Elevation -30 to -40 msl

- Total Unit Weight = 80 pcf (Saturated)
- Average Undrained Shear Strength = 380 psf

Consolidation:

Three one-dimensional consolidation tests were performed on undisturbed samples of the organic silt deposit. Two samples were obtained from locations beneath the Causeway, and one sample was from an off Causeway location. The test data indicates the deposits beneath the Causeway are normally consolidated and the soils off the Causeway may have some slight over-consolidation (less than 100 psf). The tests provide soil parameters for the three following characteristics:

<u>Primary Compression</u>: This is the amount of soil compression that occurs while excess pore pressures dissipate after a new load is applied. Primary compression is evaluated using the Compression Index (C_c), and/or the Compression Ratio (C_e), parameters determined from the consolidation test, as well as the Recompression Index (C_r), and/or the Recompression Ratio (C_re). C_c is the slope of the virgin compression (steep) portion of the void ratio versus the log of the applied load curve, obtained from the test. C_e is the slope of the virgin compression portion of the percent strain versus the log of the applied load curve, also obtained from the test. The recompression parameters represent the flatter portion of the curve, generated when loads are being re-applied. The void ratios and strains used to develop the laboratory test curves used for this project reflect conditions near the end of primary compression, and were constructed to separate out secondary compression effects. Values obtained from the laboratory tests include the following:

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Cause way\Geotech\TechMemo\ Geotechnical Investigation Summary Report.doc

- C_c , (virgin compression): 0.57 to 0.99
- C_c ' (over stress range of concern): 0.37 to 0.51 (reflecting the slope of the curve over the anticipated stress range imposed by the proposed cover system)
- C_e, (virgin compression): 0.12 to 0.15
- Ce', (over stress range of concern): 0.07 to 0.11
- $C_r: 0.04 \text{ to } 0.11$
- C_{re}: 0.011 to 0.017

<u>Rate of Compression</u>: The rate of primary compression is evaluated through the use of the coefficient of consolidation parameter (c_V) , which can be derived from consolidation tests. This parameter reflects how fast the soil consolidates when loaded. Values determined from the testing program include the following:

- c_v (under Causeway): 0.006 to 0.0008 square inches per second (in²/sec) (3.5 to 0.5 square feet per day [ft²/day])
- c_v (off Causeway): 0.01 in²/sec (6.5 ft²/day)

<u>Secondary Compression</u>: Secondary compression is the slow, continued compression that occurs after the excess pore pressures have substantially dissipated. This compression occurs over long periods of time and is often more pronounced for organic soils. The magnitude of secondary compression is expressed by the slope of the final portion of the log of time versus percent strain compression curve for each load increment applied during the consolidation test. Values of the Coefficient of Secondary Compression (C_a), determined from the tests include the following:

- C_a (all 3 tests, at highest applied load): 0.015 to 0.044
- C_a (under Causeway samples, at design applied load): 0.001 to 0.011
- C_a: (off Causeway samples, at design applied loads): 0.003.

Harding ESE

 $P:\ Projects \ CBDCOM \ SAEP \ Cause \ way \ Geotech \ Tech \ Memo \ Geotechnical \ Investigation \ Summary \ Report. docentry \ Sample \ Sample$

ASTM	American Society for Testing and Materials
bgs	below ground surface
BRAC	Base Closure and Realignment
C _a	Coefficient of Secondary Compression
C _c	Compression Index
Ce	Compression Ratio
Cr	Recompression Index
C _{re}	Recompression Ratio
C _V	Coefficient of Consolidation Parameter
CERCLA	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
0	degrees
EE/CA	Engineering Evaluation/Cost Analysis
ft ² /day	square feet per day
FW	Foster Wheeler Environmental Corporation
Harding	Harding ESE, a MACTEC Company
HLA	Harding Lawson Associates
in ² /sec	square inches per second
Meridian	Meridian Engineering Corporation
msl	mean sea level
NCP	National Contingency Plan
NCRA	Non-Time-Critical Removal Action
pcf	pounds per cubic foot
PID	photoionization detector
ppm	parts per million
psf	pounds per square foot
psi	pounds per square inch
SAEP	Stratford Army Engine Plant
SOPs	Standard Operating Procedures
STL	Severn Trent Laboratories

- USEPA United States Environmental Protection Agency
- VOCs volatile organic compounds

Harding ESE

- Foster Wheeler Environmental Corporation (FW)/Harding Lawson Associates, Inc. (HLA), 1999. Final Work Plan for the Non-time-Critical Removal Action for Chromium and VOC Groundwater Operable Unit (OU 2) EE/CA, Stratford Army Engine Plant. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New England District. August 27, 1999.
- Foster Wheeler Environmental Corporation (FW)/Harding Lawson Associates, Inc. (HLA) 2000a. Pre-design Investigation Report Causeway and Dike NCRA, prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New England District, April 14, 2000.
- Foster Wheeler Environmental Corporation (FW)/Harding Lawson Associates, Inc. (HLA) 2000b. Final Engineering Evaluation/Cost Analysis for the Causeway and Dike, Stratford Army Engine Plant. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers New England District. September 22, 2000.
- GeoTesting Express, Inc., 2000a. Geotechnical Test Results, Stratford Army Engine Plant facility, Stratford, CT., prepared for Harding Lawson Associates, Inc., Portland, ME. Boxborough, MA., November 22, 2000.
- GeoTesting Express, Inc., 2000b. Geotechnical Test Results, Stratford Army Engine Plant facility, Stratford, CT., prepared for Harding Lawson Associates, Inc., Portland, ME. Boxborough, MA., December 6, 2000.



FIGURE 1-1 SITE FEATURES GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT





CONTROL POINTS:

(SEE NOTE #3)

CONTROL POINT	NOR THING	EASTING	ELE VA TION	DESCRIPTION
82	622340.109131	897135.274591	7.240	F–15
84	623142.399102	898645.030716	10.550	F-23
85	623212.133802	898244.245717	7.350	F-24





LEGE	END		
CONC.	CONCRETE	————ОНШ	OVERHEAD WIRE
BIT. CONC.	BITUMINOUS CONCRETE	\bigotimes	WATER GATE
DIA.	DIAMETER	\oplus	BOLLARD
CB 🗌	CATCH BASIN	\boxtimes	ELECTRIC BOX
o <u> </u>	CHAIN LINK FENCE	——————————————————————————————————————	ELECTRIC CONDUIT
	RETAINING WALL	0	HYDRANT
———4—————	1' CONTOUR	\bigcirc	DRAIN MANHOLE
5	5' CONTOUR	D.I.	DUCTILE IRON
	MONITORING WELL	INV.	INVERT
•	GROUND BORING		RIP-RAP
UGU	UNDERGROUND UTILITY MARK		
	APPROXIMATE CONTACT OF FILL, (DASHED WHERE INFERRED)	RIVERINE SEDIMENTS	
CR 00 01	RADINAS INSTALLED FAD DDE DI		





BORING IDENTIFICATION AND DEPTH OF EXPLORATION

GROUND SURFACE

CONTACT OF SOIL CHANGE. CONTACTS ARE SOLID LINES WHERE OBSERVED, AND DASHED WHERE INFERRED.

1. PROFILE IS BASED ON AN INTERPRETATION OF AVAILABLE SUBSURFACE EXPLORATIONS. ACTUAL CONDITIONS BETWEEN EXPLORATIONS MAY VARY FROM THOSE SHOWN.

2. LOCATION OF PROFILE IS SHOWN ON FIGURE 2-2.

FIGURE 2-4 GEOLOGIC PROFILE B-B' GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

Harding ESE A MACTEC COMPANY



GEOLOGIC PROFILE C-C' GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

Harding ESE A MACTEC COMPANY

Figure 2-6 Peak Shear Strength vs Elevation Under the Causeway

Geotechnical Investigation Summary Causeway Non-time Critical Removal Action Design





Geotechnical Investigation Summary Causeway Non-time Critical Removal Action Design



Figure 3-1 Moisture Content vs. Elevation Under the Causeway

Geotechnical Investigation Summary Causeway Non-time Critical Removal Action Design



p:\projects\cbdcom\saep\causeway\geotech\lab data.xls Moist vs Elev Under

Figure 3-2 Moisture Content vs. Elevation Off the Causeway

Geotechnical Investigation Summary Causeway Non-time Critical Removal Action Design



Figure 4-1 Design Shear Strength Values Under the Causeway

200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 0 0 -5 -10 ж -15 **Elevation (ft msl)** -20 -25 -30 -35 -40 X -45 Shear Strength (psf) Reduced Strength (Bjerrum) Reduced Strength (Duncan) Proposed Strength Values


Figure 4-2 Design Shear Strength Values Off of the Causeway



Geotechnical Investigation Summary Causeway Non-time Critical Removal Action Design

TABLE 2-1 FIELD INVESTIGATION PROGRAM

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

			Number	of In-Situ T	ests/Samples
Soil Boring ID	Ground Surface Elevation (ft, msl)	Total Exploration Depth (ft)	Split Spoons ¹	Shelby Tubes ²	Field Vane Shear ³
GB-00-01	8.3	24	9	1	1
GB-00-02	8.8	94.7	23	4-3	6
GB-00-03	9.1	24	7	1	1
GB-00-04	6.2	70	22	4	4
GB-00-05	-1.9	64	21	5-2	4
GB-00-05A	2.0 (4)	9.5	3		
GB-00-05B	-1.0 (4)	2	1		
GB-00-06	-1.7 (4)	64	22	3-2	7
GB-00-06A	-1.0 (4)	8	4		
GB-00-06B	3.5 (4)	13.5	1		
GB-00-07	-2.7 (4)	24	8	2	2
GB-00-07A	2.9	14	5		
GB-00-08	-1.3 (4)	64	28	2	3
GB-00-08A	4.5 (4)	18.5	3		
GB-00-08B	-1.0 (4)	8	4		
GB-00-09	-2.1 (4)	64	26	2	3
GB-00-09A	0.6 (4)	11.5	3		
GB-00-09B	-2.1 (4)	9.5	3		
GB-00-10	-2.0 (4)	6.5	1		
		TOTAL	194	24-19	31

Notes:

- 1. Split spoon sampling was performed in accordance with American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) D1586 Standard Test Method for Penetration Test and Split-Barrel Sampling of Soils.
- 2. Shelby Tubes were collected in accordance with ASTM D1587 Standard Practice for Thin-Walled Tube Geotechnical Sampling of Soils. Samples were shipped to the laboratory via a dedicated courier service to reduce sample disturbance. Where 2 numbers are present, first number is total collected in the field; second number is total analyzed by laboratory.
- 3. Field vane shear testing was performed in accordance with ASTM D2573 -Standard Test Method for Field Vane Shear Test in Cohesive Soil and the procedure provided by the manufacturer of the vane used.
- 4. Estimated elevation, based on site topography, Figure2-1.

ft = feet msl = mean sea level, NGVD

TABLE 2-2 FIELD VANE SHEAR TEST RESULTS

		511	STRATFO	ARMY E RD, CON	INGINE P	LAN I UT		
		Vane She Pe	ar, Results eak	Vane She Straig	ar, Results ht Line	Vane	Shear @	
	D a1	G. 1	Strain	<i>a</i> , <i>a</i>	Strain	Shear	5%	Moisture
Poring ID	Deptn-,	Strength		Strength (nof)		(psf)	Strain (psf)	(%)
	11 21.5	(psi)	%)	(psi)	~o)	(psi)	(psi)	(70)
GB-00-01	21.5	950	19	/80	0	280	220	-
GB-00-02	19.5	/10	20	400	10	280	320	
CB 00 02	23.5	990	27	900 700	19	220	300	04.4
GB-00-02	27.5	950 Door tost	20 Dete not used	700 Likoly pu	15 shad an abiaa	280	300	-
GB 00 02	30.5	1300				370	900	- 199
GB 00 02	39.3 17.5	1300	17	930 800	5	400	800	100
GB-00-02	47.5	1020	42	640	3	340	700	
GB-00-04	17.5	870	22	600	7	220	450	66.3
GB-00-04	25.5	990	38	600	5	220	550	75.8
GB-00-04	33.5	810	17	500	6	500	450	111
GB-00-04	41.5	1240	33	900	9	370	650	-
GB-00-05	5 5	280	24	240	17	180	70	74.4
GB-00-05	13.5	460	22	310	7	90	220	113
GB-00-05	33.5	800	60	700	43	460	100	-
GB-00-05	41.5	1270	38	1100	25	310	210	-
GB-00-06	5.5	230	26	180	13	40	100	64.5
GB-00-06	13.5	340	21	240	10	90	200	-
GB-00-06	19.5	480	22	400	13	76	200	128
GB-00-06	25.5	500	25	400	15	90	150	164
GB-00-06	33.5	750	44	550	15	140	175	-
GB-00-06	41.5	110	22	90	12	15	60	-
GB-00-06	47.5	510	28	470	14	220	250	-
GB-00-07	5.5	Poor test-	Data not used	- Barge mo	ving due to w	aves		-
GB-00-07	11.5	430	15	430	15	90	150	114
GB-00-08	11.5	220	17	160	8	-	100	-
GB-00-08	13.5	440	18	440	18	76	110	-
GB-00-08	37.5	470	42	380	20	220	100	_
GB-00-09	17.5	390	25	370	20	30	80	97.7
GB-00-09	25.5	560	42	470	20	100	100	205
GB-00-09	33.5	445	28	330	14	90	110	111
Medi	ian	635	25	480	13	220	200	111
Maxin	num	1340	60	1100	43	500	900	205
Minin	num	110	14	90	4	15	60	64.5

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN

Notes:

psf = pounds per square foot

ft = feet

% = percent rotational strain, based on 100% = 90 degrees of rotation.

- = No data.
 Depths are measured to the middle of the Vane, typically 0.5 from the bottom of the 2 foot sampling interval.

TABLE 3-1 LABORATORY TESTING PROGRAM

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

			Number
Test Category	Test Name	Standard ¹	of Tests
Index Properties	Grain Size (Sieve Only)	ASTM D 422	10
	Bulk Density	ASTM D 2937	19
	Moisture content ²	ASTM D 2216	96
	Atterberg limits	ASTM D 4318	7
	Organic matter	ASTM D 2974	15
	Specific gravity	ASTM D 854	3
	Shelby Tube Opening (density,	ASTM D 2937	19
	visual description, moisture contents,		
	3 each)		
Physical	1-D consolidation test series (Note 1)	ASTM D 2435	3
Properties	Triaxial compression (3-points each)	ASTM D 4767	5
	Laboratory vane testing on Shelby	NA	15
	tubes (3 tests per tube)		

NOTES:

¹ Tests were performed in accordance with the requirements of the standard indicated, unless otherwise noted. ² Mositure content tests were performed on bulk samples (47), Atterberg limit tests (7), Ash content tests (15), tube openings 919), triaxial (5), and consolidation tests (3), as summarized on Table 3-3.

ASTM = Americal Society for Testing and Materials.

NA = not applicable.

Laboratory test results are provided in Appendix A. Tables 3-2 through 3-7 summarize laboratory test results.

TABLE 3-2 GRAIN SIZE DETERMINATION¹

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

		Grain	1 Size ¹
	Depth, ft	Physical D	vescription ²
Sample ID	bgs	Laboratory Description	Field Description
GB-00-02	16-18	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown silty SAND. Sieve analysis; SILT OR CLAY, trace fine sand (ML)	Olive gray SILT; trace small fibers, slightly plastic, very well sorted, moderate sulfur smell, non-draining, micaceous, has decomposed peat
			feel to it; (ML)
GB-00-02	66-68	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown	Olive gray SILT; finely laminated with
		trace fine to coarse sand (ML)	dilatency; gives up water when vibrated (ML)
GB-00-04	44-46	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown SILT	Very dark grayish brown SILT; trace of reeds,
		with sand and organics; Sieve analysis; SILT OR CLAY with organics, trace fine and medium sand (OL)	and woody plant fibers, trace fine sand, non- plastic, sulfur odor, non-draining (ML/OL)
GB-00-04	60-64	Visual description; Moist brown sand with gravel; Sieve analysis; Poorly graded SAND WITH GRAVEL (SP)	Gray, well-sorted fine-to-med. SAND; non- plastic, alluvium (SP); over ¹ / ₄ " manganese layer(?); then reddish to yellowish brown gravelly SAND; trace fines, well graded (SP)
GB-00-05	38-40	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown silty sand; Sieve analysis; SILT OR CLAY, little fine sand, trace medium and coarse sand (ML) with little organics	Layered peaty SILT and PEAT; peaty zones have reeds and wood with well decomposed peat (OL/PT)
GB-00-05	60-62	Visual description; Wet, gray sandy SILT; Sieve analysis; SILT, trace fine sand (ML)	Gray very fine SAND and SILT; with very thin purple CLAY lenses (SM/ML)
GB-00-06	22-24	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown silt; Sieve analysis; SILT OR CLAY, with trace organics, trace fine and medium sand (OL)	Very dark gray to very dark brown ORGANIC SILT; very soft, slightly plastic, trace undecomposed plant fibers, non-draining, non- dialating (OL)
GB-00-07	6-8	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown clay with sand; Sieve analysis; SILT OR CLAY, trace medium and fine sand (ML)	Gray SILT; soft, slightly plastic, some shells
GB-00-08	42-44	Visual description; Moist, light gray sandy clay; Sieve analysis; SILT OR CLAY, some fine sand (ML)	Gray, SILTY FINE SAND; dense, non-plastic (SM)
GB-00-09	20-22	Visual description; Moist, very dark brown sandy silt; Sieve analysis; CLAY, some silt, with organics, trace fine sand (OL)	Black to very dark gray organic SILT; non- plastic, micaceous, trace plant fibers, strong sulfur odor (OL)

NOTES:
 ¹ Testing performed in accordance with ASTM D422.
 ² Descriptions and description classifications are based on the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS).

bgs = below ground surface

ft = feet

TABLE 3-3MOISTURE CONTENT1

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

		Moisture	Moisture Content, %	Moisture	Moisture Content,	Moisture Content, %
		Content, %	Atterberg	Content, %	%	Triaxial ³ and
		Bulk Sample	Limit	Ash Content	Tube	Consolidation
Sample ID	Depth, ft bgs	Testing	Testing	Testing	Openings ²	Testing ⁴
GB-00-01	16-18	18.6		19		
GB-00-01	22-24	62.0	59.9	62	56.6	56.6
GB-00-02	16-18	56				
GB-00-02	23.5	84.4				
GB-00-02	24-26	74.3		74		
GB-00-02	30-32				80.6	
GB-00-02	38-40	188				
GB-00-02	40-42	184	176.1	184	158.6	167.1
GB-00-02	48-50				79.7	
GB-00-02	66-68	32				
GB-00-03	12-14	19.6		20		
GB-00-03	14-16	45.1				
GB-00-04	16-18	66.3				
GB-00-04	18-20		112.4		66.5	65.8
GB-00-04	24-26	75.8				
GB-00-04	26-28				92.2	104.5
GB-00-04	32-34	111				
GB-00-04	36-38	107		150		
GB-00-04	34-36	112	131.5	132	122.6	122.6
GB-00-04	42-44	112	151.5	152	160	122.0
GB-00-04	44-46	164			100	
GB-00-04	60-64	16				
GB-00-05	5-5.5	74.4				
GB-00-05	12-14	113		113		
GB-00-05	18-20	121		110		
GB-00-05	26-28	108	90.1	125	154.2	198.2
GB-00-05	34-36	100	20.1	120	66.8	170.2
GB-00-05	38-40	140		140	00.0	
GB-00-05	60-62	136		140		
GB-00-05A	7 5-9 5	42.2				
GB-00-06	4-6	64.5				
GB-00-06	18-20	128				
GB-00-06	22-24	178				
GB-00-06	22-24	145	139.5	145	97.0	97.2
GB-00-06	20 22	164	157.5	145	271.0	71.2
GB-00-06	24 20	104			106.5	
GB-00-06A	6-7	63.2			170.5	
GB-00-06B	13-13.5	56.6				
GB-00-07	6-8	78.5				
GB-00-07	8-10	70.5			87.4	
GB-00-07	10-12	114			07.4	
GB-00-07	10-12	11-			100.2	
GB-00-07	18-20	117		117	100.2	
GB-00-08	14-16		72.8	,	98.4	98.4
GB-00-08	18-20	109	. 2.0	109	, , , , ,	2011
GB-00-08	32-34	206		206		
GB-00-08	38-40	200		200	143.8	
GB-00-08	40-42	109			115.0	
GB-00-08	42-44	26				
GB-00-08B	4-6	59.1				
GB-00-09	16-18	97.7				
GB-00-09	18-20	21.1			111.8	
	10 20		1	l	111.0	

TABLE 3-3MOISTURE CONTENT1

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

Sample ID	Depth, ft bgs	Moisture Content, % Bulk Sample Testing	Moisture Content, % Atterberg Limit Testing	Moisture Content, % Ash Content Testing	Moisture Content, % Tube Openings ²	Moisture Content, % Triaxial ³ and Consolidation Testing ⁴
GB-00-09	20-22	149				
GB-00-09	24-26	205				
GB-00-09	26-28				202.5	
GB-00-09	32-34	111				
GB-00-09	40-42	18.4		18		
GB-00-09A	7.5-9.5	77.3				
GB-00-09A(5)	7.5-9.5	188				
GB-00-09B	9-9.5	75.5				

Notes:

1 Testing performed in accordance with ASTM D2216.

2 Moisture contents may be averages where numerous readings were recorded.

3 Water content for Triaxial tests are the average of all 3 moisture tests, prior to triaxial testing.

4 Consolidation test data is from the trimmings, and before consolidation.

5 This is of the fill material; other entry at this depth is of native material.

- bgs = below ground surface
- ft = feet
- % = percent

TABLE 3-4 **ATTERBERG LIMITS¹**

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

			Moisture Content, Tube	Natural Moisture				
Sample ID	Depth, ft bgs	Laboratory Visual Description ²	Openings, %	Content, %	Liquid Limit %	Plastic Limit, %	Plasticity Index	Liquidity Index
GB-00-01	22-24	Moist, black clayey silt	56.6	59.9	74.3	45.5	28.8	0.50
GB-00-02	40-42	Moist, black clayey silt	158.6	176.1	NP	NP	NP	NP
GB-00-04	18-20	Moist, very dark gray clayey silt with organics	66.5	112.4	147.5	52.7	94.8	0.63
GB-00-04	34-36	Moist, black clayey silt with organics	122.6	131.5	235.0	88.6	146.3	0.29
GB-00-05	26-28	Moist, black clayey silt	154.2	90.1	NP	NP	NP	NP
GB-00-06	20-22	Moist, black clayey silt	97.0	139.5	150.4	57.6	92.8	0.88
GB-00-08	14-16	Moist, very dark gray clayey silt with organics	98.4	72.8	89.8	41.2	48.6	0.65

NOTES:

Atterberg limit testing was performed in accordance with ASTM D 4318. 1

2

Soil description and classification based on the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS). Moisture content determined using ASTM D 2216. Values are the average of 1 to 4 separate sections. 3

bgs = below ground surface

ft = feet

% = percent

NP = Determined to be not plastic.

TABLE 3-5 ORGANIC MATTER¹

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

Sample ID	Depth, ft	Laboratory Visual Description ²	Moisture Content, %	Ash Content, %	Organic Matter, %
GB-00-01	22-24	Moist, black silt with organics	62	95.1	4.9
GB-00-01	16-18	Moist, black silt with organics	19	98.3	1.7
GB-00-02	24-26	Moist, very dark brown silty sand	74	94.2	5.8
GB-00-02	40-42	Moist, black silt with some sand	184	85.3	14.7
GB-00-03	12-14	Moist, very dark brown sandy silt	20	96.2	3.8
GB-00-04	34-36	Moist, black silt with organics	132	84.4	15.6
GB-00-04	36-38	Moist, dark silt with sand and organics	150	88.0	12.0
GB-00-05	12-14	Moist, dark brown silty sand	113	91.7	8.3
GB-00-05	26-28	Moist, black silt with organics	125	86.1	13.9
GB-00-05	38-40	Moist, very dark brown silty sand	140	86.1	13.9
GB-00-06	20-22	Moist, black silt with organics	145	89.9	10.1
GB-00-07	18-20	Moist, very dark brown sandy clay	117	90.8	9.2
GB-00-08	32-34	Moist, light gray silty clay	206	84.9	15.1
GB-00-08	18-20	Moist, dark brown silt	109	91.2	8.8
GB-00-09	40-42	Moist, very dark brown sandy silt	18	99.5	0.5

NOTES:

¹ Testing performed in accordance with ASTM D2974. Moisture content determined by Method A and reported as a percentage of oven-dried mass; dried to constant mass at temperature of 110 ° C. Ash content and organic matter determined by Method C; dried to constant mass at temperature of 440 °C.

 2 Soil description based on the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS).

bgs = below ground surface

% = percent

ft = feet

TABLE 3-6 SPECIFIC GRAVITY

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

Sample ID	Depth, ft bgs	Laboratory Visual Description ¹	Specific Gravity ² , (relative to water @ 20°C)
GB-00-02	24-26	Moist, very dark brown silty sand	2.72
GB-00-04	36-38	Moist, dark brown silt with sand and organics	2.48
GB-00-05	12-14	Moist, dark brown silty sand	2.69

NOTES:

¹ Soil description based on the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS).
 ² Specific gravity performed by using method A (oven dried specimens) of ASTM D 854.

bgs = below ground surface

ft = feet

°C = degrees Celcius

TABLE 3-7SHELBY TUBE OPENINGS

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

Sample ID	Depth, ft bgs	Laboratory Visual Description	Bulk Density, lb/ft ³ (Note 1)	Moisture Content, % (Note 2)	Dry Density, lb/ft ³ (Note 3)	Laboratory Vane Shear Ib/ft ² (Note 4) Peak / Residual
GB-00-01	22-24	Moist, black silt with organics	101.3	56.6	64.8	520 / 250
GB-00-02	30-32	Moist, black silt with organics	88.8	80.6	49.3	Not tested
GB-00-02	40-42	Moist, black silt with some sand	81.1	158.6	31.4	1090 / 710
GB-00-02	48-50	Moist, black silt with some sand and	90.0	79.7	50.4	
		organics				Not tested
GB-00-03	18-20	Moist, very dark brown sandy silt	102.9	50.0	68.8	960 / 380
GB-00-04	18-20	Moist, very dark gray clayey silt with organics	98.8	66.5	59.4	840 / 380
GB-00-04	26-28	Moist, black silt with organics	90.9	92.2	47.5	1230 / 615
GB-00-04	34-36	Moist, black silt with organics	83.4	122.6	37.5	990 / 460
GB-00-04	42-44	Moist, black silt with organics	77.5	160	30.0	1460 / 820
GB-00-05	26-28	Moist, black silt with organics	76.8	154.2	30.8	980 / 420
GB-00-05	34-36	Moist, very dark brown silt	93.3	66.8	55.9	410 / 330
GB-00-06	20-22	Moist, black silt with organics	87.0	97.0	44.2	410 / 170
GB-00-06	26-28	Moist, very dark brown silt	75.2	196.5	25.5	620 / 370
GB-00-07	8-10	Moist, black silt with organics	89.5	87.4	47.8	Not tested
GB-00-07	12-14	Moist, black silt with organics	88.1	100.2	44.1	Not tested
GB-00-08	14-16	Moist, very dark gray clayey silt with organics	88.8	98.4	44.9	440 / 160
GB-00-08	38-40	Moist, black silt with organics	78.8	143.8	34.0	790 / 440
GB-00-09	18-20	Moist, black silt with organics	85.5	111.8	40.8	570 / 360
GB-00-09	26-28	Moist, black silt with organics	76.6	202.5	25.3	710 / 380

NOTES:

1) Bulk density determined on undisturbed tube samples provided to GeoTesting Express in Shelby tubes using ASTM D 2937. Values are the average of 1 to 4 separate sections.

2) Moisture content determined using ASTM D 2216. Values are the average of 1 to 4 separate sections.

3) Dry density was determined based on average bulk density and moisture content of 1 to 4 separate sections.

4) Laboratory vane shear tests were performed using a hand held Geonore and are the average of tests performed on 2 to 3 separate sections.

P:\Projects\CBDCOM\SAEP\Causeway\Geotech\TechMemo\Table3-7.Doc

50796

TABLE 4-1 SUMMARY OF SHEAR STRENGTH VALUES VERSUS DEPTH AROUND THE CAUSEWAY

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION SUMMARY CAUSEWAY NON-TIME CRITICAL REMOVAL ACTION DESIGN STRATFORD ARMY ENGINE PLANT STRATFORD, CONNECTICUT

	Of	Under the Causeway Under the Causeway Strength Rate of Change Elevation Strength Rate o Change 240 340 10.0 -10 780 Change 340 10.0 -10 780 Change 450 11.0 -20 975 560 560 11.0 -30 1160 660 10.0 -40 1350 150 2.0 -10 550 300 13.0 -20 670 420 12.0 -30 820 550 13.0 -40 950 120 4.0 -10 520 220 10.0 -20 640 160 -6.0 -30 720 140 -2.0 -40 780 60 10 -10 220 100 3.0 -20 290 140 4.0 -30 380	ay			
Strength Condition	Elevation	Strength	Rate of Change	Elevation	Strength	Rate of Change
Peak	0	240				
	-10	340	10.0	-10	780	
	-20	450	11.0	-20	975	19.5
	-30	560	11.0	-30	1160	18.5
	-40	660	10.0	-40	1350	19.0
Straight Line	0	150				
	-10	170	2.0	-10	550	
	-20	300	13.0	-20	670	12.0
	-30	420	12.0	-30	820	15.0
	-40	550	13.0	-40	950	13.0
5% Strain	0	80				
	-10	120	4.0	-10	520	
	-20	220	10.0	-20	640	12.0
	-30	160	-6.0	-30	720	8.0
	-40	140	-2.0	-40	780	6.0
Remoulded	0	60				
	-10	70	1.0	-10	220	
	-20	100	3.0	-20	290	7.0
	-30	140	4.0	-30	380	9.0
	-40	180	4.0	-40	360	-2.0
Reduced Strength (Duncan)	0	223				
Reduced Brengin (Bunean)	-10	316	93	-10	725	
	-20	419	10.2	-20	907	18.1
	-30	521	10.2	-30	1079	17.2
	-40	614	9.3	-40	1256	17.7
Reduced Strength (Bierrum)	0	144				
about 60% of peak with PL ~ 100	-10	204	6.0	-10	468	
and strength ratio $\sim 0.3 - 0.4$	-20	270	6.6	-20	585	11.7
	-30	336	6.6	-30	696	11.1
	-40	396	6.0	-40	810	11.4
Proposed Strength Values	0	151				
roposed Siteligin Values	-10	214	63	-10	562	
	-20	284	6.9	-20	702	14.0
reduction from Bierrum's	-30	353	6.9	-30	835	13.3
reduced values for strain correction with PI \sim 50-70	-40	416	6.3	-40	972	13.7

PHOTOGRAPHIC LOG

Harding ESE



Picture #1Looking northerly down the length of the Causeway, with Bldg. # 59 at the left.
Bituminous concrete pavement gives way to dirt just beyond Bldg. # 59. Barge rig is set
up at GB-00-05. Water is near the mean high tide mark.



Picture # 2 Looking northerly down the length of the Causeway, from just north of the concrete ramp for Bldg. # 59. Monitoring wells MWCD-99-01A is in the left foreground, and MWCD-99-01B is in the right foreground. ATV rig is set up at MWCD-00-01/CB-00-02.



Picture # 3

Grassy and gently sloping western side of the Causeway. Picture is taken from just west of Picture # 2. Tide is at near mean low tide mark; note exposed mud flat to the left. When at high tide, tidal water extends through the tidal grass and to just left of the person taking the picture; note the break in grass types.



Picture # 4

At low tide conditions, looking toward the SAEP facility, with Bldg. # 59 on the left. Note the high tide mark coloring the rip-rap in the distance. Also note the contact of the filled material of the Causeway with the mud flat sediments, the contact represented by the "wetter" mud flat soils.



Picture # 5Gently sloping west side of the Causeway, looking toward the SAEP facility. Again,
mud flat/fill contact is obvious in this picture.



Picture # 6

Picture is taken from the concrete blocks that are visible in the center of picture # 3. View is looking northerly toward the Housatonic River.



Picture # 7 Example of the variation of the fill material that was deposited along the western side of the Causeway.



Picture # 8

This picture was taken at the very end of the Causeway showing the remains of the concrete ramp located in this area. The location for GB-00-10 would be near the water line on the left side of the picture.



Picture # 9 This picture was taken just south of the boring GB-00-08 location. This shows the contact between the Causeway fill material and the mud flat sediments on this side of the Causeway.



Picture # 10 The barge rig is set up at GB-00-05, with one edge of the barge just touching the Causeway fill material. The view is toward the SAEP facility, and shows full exposure of the mud flats at low tide.



Picture # 11This is another view of the same area in Picture # 10, but from a different angle. Note the
relatively steep side of the Causeway on this east side.



Picture # 12 This picture is looking north with the barge rig at GB-00-05 at near mean high tide conditions.

SOIL BORING LOGS

Harding ESE

	MAJOR DIVISIONS	3	GROU SYMBO	P LS TYPICAL NAMES		CON	ISISTENCY A	ND HARDN	IESS
COARSE- GRAINED SOILS	GRAVELS (more than half	CLEAN GRAVELS	GW	Well-drained gravels, gravel-sand mixtures, little or no fines	COA sieve (3) si	RSE GRAINED): Includes (1) lity, clayey or g	D SOILS (major clean gravels; (2 ravelly sands. C	r portion retai) silty or clay onsistency is	ned on No. 200 ey gravels; and rated according
(moro than	fraction is larger than No. 4		GP	Poorly-graded gravels, gravel-sand mixtures, little or no fines	De	andard penetra scriptive Term	tion resistance.	Standard Besistance	Penetration
half of material is	sieve size)	GRAVELS WITH	GM	Silty gravels,	-	/ery loose		0 1	0 4
larger than No. 200		FINES (appreciable	60	Clayey gravels,	1	.00Se		5 T	O 10
310 10 0120)				mixtures	'	Medium dense		11 7	O 30
	SANDS (more than half	CLEAN SANDS (little or no fines)	sw	gravelly sands, little or no fines		Dense		31 7	O 50
	of coarse fraction is	5	SP	Poorly-graded sands, gravelly sands, little or	EINE	/ery dense		OVE	ER 50
	No. 4 sieve size)			no fines Silty-sands, sand-silt		ides (1) inorgar	nic and organic s	ilts and clays	; (2) gravelly,
		FINES	SM	mixture					
		amount of fines)	sc	mixtures		criptive Term	Field Guid	elines/Shear	Strength (ksf)
FINE- GRAINED	SILTS A	ND CLAYS	ML	Inorganic silts and very fine sands, rock flour, silty or clayey fine	Soft	301	Fist easily	y penetrates/	less than 0.25
SOILS	(liquid limit	less than 50)		with slight plasticity	Firm	- ۱	Fhumb penetrate	s with mode	es/0.25 10 0.50
(more than half of			CL	Inorganic clays or low to medium plasticity, gravelly clays, sandy	Stiff		Indented by the	umb with area	at effort/1.00 to :
material is smaller than No				clays, silty clays, lean clays	Ven	∕ stiff	Indented	l by thumbna	il/2.00 to 4.00
200 sieve size)			OL	Organic silts and organic silty clays of low plasticity	Har	b	Indented by thur	nbnail with di	fficulty/4.0 and I
	SILTS A	SILTS AND CLAYS		Inorganic silts, micaceous or			SIZE PROP	ORTIONS	
	(liquid limit g			sandy or silty soils, elastic silts		Designation		Percent By	Weight
			CH Inorganic clays of high plasticity, fat clays Organic clays of OH medium to high		Tr	ace		0 TC	10
					Little		10 T 20 T	10 TO 20	
	HIGHLY OR	GANIC SOILS	Pt	Plasticity, organic silts Peat and other highly organic soils	Si	ity, Sandy or Gi	ravelly	35 T	O 50
		KEVT	- - - - -		 = ΛΝΙ				
						DIESTIN	IGUAIA	1	
Sample T	ype:		Shea	ar Strength:		Laboratory T	est:	Well Da	ata:
2'	" Split Spoon Sample	er (S)		$\mathbf{L} = Lab vane$		$\mathbf{G} = \mathbf{G} \operatorname{rain} \mathbf{S}$ $\mathbf{H} = \mathbf{H} \operatorname{ydrom}$	eter analysis		
	lo Recoverv			G = Geonore		A = Atterber	g limit		- Water Level
F	ield Vane (F)					T = Triaxial	compression test		Impervious Se
·····	Tube 0"			I ah Vane		C = Consoli	dation test		
i nin Wall	Tupe Samplin	ig Method:				M = Moisture	e content		Well Screen
PUSH = H	ydraulically pushed	later of state	435/	150		0 = Organic	content		
H = P(P = Pi	usnea with statlic we iston sampler	agnt of drill rods		S _u = 435 psf peak 150 psf remole	ded	S = Specific L = Lab Va	gravity ne Shear		
		L			L				

-Sennig)										Project	No.:	50796-1	032
Project Na	me: Strat	ford	Army	Engi	ne Plant	Date: C		seway	Ground	Elevation:			
Client Nam Drilling Col	ntractor:					Lylur.L.		Rig Type:	Start Dat	e:	Finis	h Date:	
Drilling Me	thod:	-xpio	oratio	n, inc	a Langung of the state		ang Panahang ang	ATV	Casing S	Size:	, Core	Size:	<u> </u>
J	Drive a	and V	Vash						4.0	(Inches)		(lr	nche
Overburde	en Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth: To	tal Depth 24'	1: 	Depth to Groundw /	ater/Date:	Wel	: 	Boring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classification	n arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
					DRILL	- W/OUT	5/1	MPLING TO 2			A		
3-	5-1 1.5 2.0	$\left \right\rangle$	18 44 29 32	73	ЧЕССА СІМПЕ Вотто	N SILTY R, etc.: M	I FI. - FIL	NE SANA OVER BA L- DRY, DENSE, 1	LEMENTED	, SLAG, NEAR			
5-6	0 5-2 0 <u>3.0</u>	\mathbb{X}	60 35 19 11	54	As ,	460VE - F	- (LL	- WITH WHITE .	SKAVEL PI	ie ces			
	50 5-3 0 0.7	X	17 18 15	33	BLA	UR SLAC	i u	Y BROWN SOIL					
8-0	9 5-4	X	21 34 48 8	82	AS A SIEE	Bove - B :.	SLAC	K È WHITISH SWAG	, GRAVE,	TD SAND	7		
10	5-5	Ń	35 17 8	25	NO-T AS I	70-VERY 4BOVE -	-lit Los	TLE RETURN - 50. ING WATER IN It	ME SAMP DLE TO PU:	LE IN Span Rous Fill	En -	-	
13-	19 5.6 1.7 1.7	X	7 73 35 10	45	- CRAU TIP	iewy sa of spour	ND V HJ	TDARK-TD-BLACK TD CEMENT PIECE	, WELL-G STUCK IN	RADED. J IT.			
1 14-	11 5-7	\mathbf{k}	7711	19	- DK. 1 p	BRN. TO STIC, WE	ВЬ ги	rek, silty F. Sanj GRADED	, w/ GRAN	IEL, NON -			
15-	1	_ <u>/</u>	77		- A5	ABOVE							
15	8 5-8		327	5.									M

Project	Nam	e. Stra	fford	Δrm	, Enc	uno Plai	nt Site	Caus			Project	No	50796-	1032
Client N	ame	: CBDC	COM	<u></u>		aed By	T.U.AM.L.	Ct	necked Bv:	Ground	Elevation	:		
Drilling	Cont	ractor:		*****	1				Rig Type:	Start Da	te:	Finis	h Date	
		Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Ind	2.	na ka 1930 metala metala kata mana kata kata kata kata kata kata kata k		ATV	9-19	-00	9.	- 70 - 0	<i>د</i> ر
Drilling	Meth	od:								Casing	Size:	Core	e Size:	
Ouerbu		Drive a	ana v	vasn		Danthi	Total Daniel		Danth to Oroundu	4.0	(Inches)		- (I 	nches)
Overbu	raen	Deptn.	RO		itusai		24	1.	Depth to Groundw /	aten/Date:		!:]]:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			\ De:	/isual Classificatic scription and Rem	n arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
25 21 -		F-1				MAYIM REMO	UM READIN ND ED 57	ng o rend	F 30.5 W/ SA STH = 11 BEE	ALL VANE P.15 IN FIE	ild Buck)	ML		
22 -						BLACK	SILT, LIT	TE 1	FINE SAN)	5.2	6-709=7.	5		A 0
23 -		P-1							31.	Sample D.4	G ANTAN-1			TL
24 -	40-400;+ 3 7-600		and the			8.0.	B. CZH	<u>, </u>			of private			
-														
-														
-														
-														
-														
-	 .													
-														
-	1													
-	1													
	4										s	heet	2 of	2

Boriı	ng L	.og											Bori G	ng N B-	lo.: <i>00 -</i>	.02	
Project	Nam	e: Strat	ford	Army	/ Engi	ne Pla	int	Site: C	Caus	eway			Projec	t No.	: 507	'96-1	032
Client N	ame	CBDC	OM	Senter Subscriptions	Log	ged By	r: (T.).	/ M.L.	Ch	ecked By:		Ground	Elevatior	n:		86-149-1-1-1-188-18	
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth E	Explo	ratio	n, Inc.					Rig Type: A⊤√		Start Dat 9-21-	e: - 00	Fin 2	ish D 7 - 2)ate: <i>6 - 0</i>	0
Drilling I	Meth	od: Drive a	nd V	Vash		ann an tachta an dùtain g Arg					999, 974, 974, 644, 646, 646, 647, 647, 647, 647, 6	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Co	re Si	ze: (Ir	nches)
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal I	Depth:	Tota 94	I Depth 1.7	1:	Depth to Gr	roundwa /	ter/Date:	We	∥: ⊈	Вс	oring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)		(normonik) 43.6		\ Des	/isual Class	ification d Remai	₩CD-i	50- -0	LISCS Group Symbol	Notes On	Drilling	Lab Tests
$ \begin{array}{c} $	19 25 37 28 26	5 5 5 0 5 0 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 F 5 10 F		177381023 121 167332344 21-3	16 31 10 7 2	BLA GL CO: JU A: Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z	ACK F ACK F ASS, VELET JAR JARK SAB JARK SAB JARK SAB JARK SAB JARK SAB JARK SAB JARK SAB JAR SAB SAB JAR SAB JAR SAB JAR SAB SAB JAR SAB SAB SAB JAR SAB SAB SAB SAB SAB SAB SAB SAB	INE-ID DIEEL, DIEEL, DIEEL, DIE IN JAI STREL, DIE IN JAI STREL, DIE IN JAI STREL, DIE IN JAI STREL, DIE IN JAI STREL, DIE STREL,	W/ The Constant of	SAND, Litt SAND, Litt ilass, dense ilass,	LING (LE SILT, 2, SATU 4/5) S 5, SALFU CEOUS, CE SMAL MASSIVE AS DECON	W/ SOME W/ SOME RUDD) , IST RUDD) , IST RUDD , IST RUDD , SUR NOD - DR41 L PIBERS , SMOD , SUR NDOSED PEA AY , TR. FIR D. SULFUR MPOSED PE	CONCRETE FILL FILL FILL FILL FILL TR. VI.V.C. TR. ORGANIC FILL SMEL TFEEL, AT FEEL,	5, 4, 7, 10 10	< The MATNE SOIL & FILL	15	G.M M
24.	11	P-L				m	2. 5	HERLS,	TR	V. THIN Z	SHORT P	ibers; M	Ъ. Дани [Shee	et 1	of	4 -
25 W20000	80(a)	13-7	14111	2	_ _	<u> </u>	n L Fui	2 511	526		ana ana amin'ny fisiana dia 4		H	ard	ing	ES	Е ——

e La constante de la constante de

Bori	ng l	Log											Bori Ge	ng No 3- <i>0</i> 0	.: -02		
Project	Nam	ne: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	ant	Site: C	aus	eway		annan an far an air far an air far an air an	Project	No.:	50796-	1032	
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM	an hann an hann an de san an de san de s	Log	ged By	/:(T.).		Ch	ecked By:		Ground	Elevation	:	6-9-1878-18-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-		
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).				Rig Type: A⊤V		Start Dat ターンパ	e: - <i>00</i>	Finis 9-	h Date 36-00	: >	
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash								Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	Inches)	
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total 94	Depth	:	Depth to Ground	dwate /	er/Date:	Wel	L : [Boring	g:	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"/ Sriel BY	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				V Des	ísual Classificat cription and Rei	tion mark	MwcD- is	.00-01	USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests	
25	59	P-1 5-7	Min	8 5	ч	ATTEM	PTED - AD -	ыне <i>сву</i> - Власи	I TU C O	BE-NO RETURN. RGANIC SILT-	- TOC - PID	= 13 ON	<i>.</i> Sp <i>o</i> on	OL		M,0,5	11
27 - 28 -	P.A.	F-3		2		MAYIA REMOU SMAI	MUM -DED LL VA	READIN STRENC NE U	R.V.	0/							
29- 30 —	62	5-8 2.%»	X	1-33-201	4	нь 5л Рі	NALL D=10	FIBER: CN SPO	5,5 , 5	TRONG SALFUR O IN JAR	e 00	or					30
3) -		P-2			-0.Z	0.8'I G	RECOV G=6 A	ERY FT Bor	Тол	W/ MEDIUM V	'ANE					TUBE Log	39.
32 - 33-		5-4 29 2.0	X	2-24	3	BIACK TR OD	. (542 . PLAN DOR 1	2.5/2) Т FIBEA SL-То-л	51LT L (V. 1011-	-TO ORGANIC SI SMALL & V. THIN, PLASTIC, NON - DR	UT;), N AININ	TR.C.S 100eRATE 14, 50FT	AND, SULFUR (OLTO MA)	OL			52
35 -	95 20	5-10	\setminus	W.D.R. 4" 1 2	4	As 1	*bove							OL			
34 - 37 -		5.0 F-4		<u> </u>		VANZ REM SMA	E TEST ULDEI UL VA	, ВИТ D STRI NE ЦS	5и zNat ED	брест Дата: H = 8.5	ΜΑγ	limum Ri	zading=6		- DIVINIALD		
- 39 - 39 -		F-5				MAY REN	ЧМИЛ 101-D Е	n REA	fdin Engi	6 = 42 5MA M = 12	9 <i>LL</i>	VANE U:	SED		FROM 42"	M	38
41 -	183 154	P-3		T-A	-0.54	1.96° G	' RECO 1= 4.6	NERY AT B	0 ITON	n W/ MEDIUM	VANI	E	N () - `		CASING TO HIGI	A, C O, L	42
43 _		5-11 22 2.0	X	1212	3	BLACK PLA PIEC NOM	(104R2 NT STE SES 34 1- DRA	HI) ORI INS, JY "LONG, HINING	GAN ¹² NO TR.R	CC SILT; TR. OF CS LAYER AT 43, LEEDS, STRONG SU	- UN S OTHER ILFUC	izcanpose 2. sections 2. obor, No	D WODY W/ STEM DN-PUASTIC	DL	Du E		
45 W200008	0(a)					P	?(D = (.	30N 51	<i>ро</i> ол			·		rdin	r of 4 Ig ES	E	

Project Name: \$	stratford	Army	Ena	ine Plant	Site:	Cau	seway		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client Name: Cl	BDCOM		Loa	aed By: T.	L./M.L.	C	hecked By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling Contract	or: th Expl	oratio	n, Inc	<u>.</u>			Rig Type: ATV	Start Dat 9-21-	:e: - <i>00</i>	Finisl 9-3	n Date:	>
Drilling Method:	ve and l	Nach	*****	an a				Casing S	Size:	Core	Size:	nches
Overburden De	oth: Ro	ock/Re	fusal	Depth: To	tal Depti タルン	ו:	Depth to Groundwa	ater/Date:	Wel	L : 	Boring	j:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot Sampling No. & Pene-	tration/Recovery (Feet) Sample Type	SPT Blows/6/ 1482	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)	_		De	Visual Classificatior scription and Rema	/ጣ W ሪ rks	0-00-01	USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
44 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 -	12 20 6 4 13 22 4 9.2 15 + 2.2 16 6 12 17 12 12	H. 31-34 Dec Bland R. 2357 1275772412314162015247264	4 10 172 26 36 43	AS ABOV CONTE WOOL MAYIMU REMOLDE 2'RECON G=6.0 BLACK OR SAND I DRATZ DRAINI GRAY (104R) V.F. SAN F. SAND HAS YE LT. GRAY PLASTIC FINE-TO- GRADEL TO BE I AS ABOVI MED. TO SILT; I	E, ORGA ENT, TH DAAYOR M READ ED STRE VERY AT B GANIC PE SONE W/SH SONE W/SH SONE W/SH SONE W/SH SONE W/SH SONE W/SH SONE J COARSE S, TR. SI VASHED TO AN SASHED TO AN SASHED TO AN STR. SI VASHED TO AN SI POSSIO VASHED TO AN SI POSSIO VASHED TO AN SI POSSIO VASHED TO AN SI POSSIO SI F. SAU	NIC RT AT NING AT NINING AT NIN AT NININ AT NIN NIN NIN NIN NIN NIN NIN NIN NIN NI	SILT, W/ SL. INC. EEDS, TR. FINE SA 45.7 = 43 M W/ MEDIUM LAYERED W/ WHITISH A ALE CLEAN W/ D.CGAN SAND, LITTLE WIDDY FI SILTY E SAND, TR. CLAY + SAND, LAYERD, NON-P LAY, ALLUNIUM; BOTTH 1, NON-PLASTIC, SL. DRA VELLY F.SAND (GM), N SAND; TR. SILT/CLAY, HE GRAVEL; DENSE VON- PLASTIC (ADL T FINES AS IN A B SAND FOR 0.3, THE HEN O.6' OLIVE GRAV ; STRATIFIED ALLA	REASE IN ND; I" TH IANE USE. VANE RAY FINES RAY FINES RAY FINES RAY FINES REDS, REDS NON ON PLASTIC, (TILL-LIKE DED, DENS MASSIVE, I ATON TILL?) ASAC TILL ATON TILL?) ASAC TILL ISAC TILL	FIBER ICK D SANS, ASTIC, D.3 NON- ASTIC AS	OL VIN PT L SM GM SM GM		TUBE LOG
61 - 5	-18	21 24	45	AS W/ LENSE	BEACH SI	AND	UNDER PRESSURE . L' FEW LARGE ROL	I-Thin (字 いのED GRA) F. SAND	ML		

Boring L	log				and the state of the				an a	Gi	3-00	- 02	ور و و و و و و و و و و و و و و و و و و
Project Nam	e: Strat	ford	Army	/ Eng	jine Plai	nt Site:	Cau	seway		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client Name:	CBDC	OM		Log	gged By:	T.L./M.L.	C	hecked By:	Ground	Elevation	, ,		
Drilling Conti	ractor: Earth E	xplo	ratio	n, Ind	.			Rig Type: ATV	Start Dat	te: - 00	Finis 9-	h Date 26- 1	: 20
Drilling Meth	od: Drive a	nd V	Vash						Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches
Overburden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Dept 94.4	h:	Depth to Groundwa /	ter/Date:	Wel	l;	Boring	j:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classification scription and Remar	∕nw⊄ ks	<i>00</i> 01	USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
62 63 -	5-19	X	11 11 9 10	20	AS AB Li	ove - 51 la Ense @ 6	r w/ 2.5	Thin (< 指=) F	To - MED	. SAND	ML		
64 - 65 - 66 -	5-20 0.0/ 3.0	X	13 15 24 25	39	NO F	CEONERY	ر الر ب) SILT. FINELY LA	MINATED W	/ DCCASUMA			
67 <u>-</u> 68 -	5-21	X	いろうけ	26	Re	PETITIVE R PETITIVE R PES UP W	ledai A ter	SH LAMINAE OF CLA WHEN VIBRATED IN	Y; HAS I I HAND F	DALM,	ML		G,M
69 - 70 -	5-22	X	9 12 22 4	21	No AS	RECOVER	1 8-				ML		
71 - 72	1.6	X	7 9 14	16	51	LT IN THU	J LA	MWAE, TR. CLAY	nan pilonan yan ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana				
					P	Robe W/	AW	r Roos Fron 72 i	To REFUS	AL AT 94.7			
						÷							
				÷						S	heet	4 of	4



2000094(a) L2

Borin	g L	og									Boriı G	ng No B-2).: 00 - 03	3
Project N	ame	: Strat	ford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	ant Site:	Caus	seway		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client Na	me:	CBDC	OM	and a second	Log	iged By	/: (T.L)/MLL.	Ch	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation	,		
Drilling Co	ontra E	actor: Earth E	Explo	oratio	n, Inc				Rig Type: ATV	Start Dat	te: 7 <i>-00</i>	Finis 9	h Date: -27-	00
Drilling M	etho [)d: Drive a	nd V	Vash						Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	e Size: (I	nches
Overburd	en D	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Dept 24	h:	Depth to Groundwa /	ater/Date:	Wel	:	Boring	J:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6, 548184	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			\ Des	/isual Classificatior scription and Rema	n ırks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
						DRIV	E CASING	wj	OUT SAMPLIN	G, TO 6	~	4	-	
$\begin{array}{c} & -2 \\ & $	14 18 18 17 23 30	5-1 13/19 5.012 5.002 5.0		18 24 52/4 24 17 12 12 4 54 16 4 152 17 7 5	76 34 9 19	RUSS GR GS V. L G BLA BLA BLAC ABR	TY RED ZO, AVELLY GR DEGRADE). ABOVE, TH RAVELLY S, ITTLE RECC RAVEL CON CLE GRAVE UPT CHANG	VE I IT; ten and very inver inv	N MOSTLY A FING VERY FIRM, HI LAST 0.3 OF SP Y - TIP OF SPOON H TE SAND W BRICK CLAVELLY SAND, FI VARVED NATIVE SHO FILS TR DIANT FI	E-GRAINE GH FUEL OON OLIVE HAS ASPHA ., ASH, E LL AS ABOU T; DARKG	D, ODOR BROWN +LT, TC, VE, W/ BRICK RAY (N 4/)			0
15 -			/	55		NOA DIA	1-PLASTIC, T ALATES W/ 7	R, 519 P17 P17	SURE; ALLUVIUM	BOTTOM O.	CACEOUS, 6	ML	-	
15 - 16- 17- 18-	20	2.0 F-1		- A		MA REA	XIMUM RE NULDED STR	ADIN LENG	14 = 33 1H = 11	SMALL	VANE			

Proiect I	Name	: Straf	ford	Arm	/ End	ine Plar	nt Site:	Cau	sewav		aya ya kata ka la Sayinga.	Project	No.: 5	50796-1	1032
Client Na	ame:	CBDC	OM		Loc	iged By:	(T.L)LAA.C.	Cł	necked By:	Gr	ound I	Elevation:			
Drilling (Contra E	actor: Earth E	Explo	ratio	n, Inc).).		1	Rig Type: AT√	Sta	rt Date 9-2	9: 7-00	Finisl 9-	n Date: 27 -	00
Drilling N	Vietho E	d: Drive a	nd V	/ash	arammur ngʻilgiyin ka	anan katika di katik	99			Ca	sing S 4.0	ize: (Inches)	Core	Size: (Iı	nche
Overbur	den E	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Dept 24	h:	Depth to Groun	dwater/I /	Date:	Wel		Boring	•
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			\ De:	/isual Classifica scription and Re	tion marks			USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
20 21 - 22 - 23 - 24 -	4	5- 2 13 17 2 13 5- 7 2 13 5- 7 2 13	X	224543	6 5	BLACK SL. THIN SAME PIEC	ORGANK PLASTICTO SHORT I AS ABOVI E AT TOP	: 511 Non FIDER E BI O OF	LT; MICACEOU 1-PLASTIC, NOI 25 AT W/ TR. SHI SAMPLE	5, HIGH V-DR41, ELLS -	I SULI NING _I I GRA	FUR ODOR TR .V. VEL	OL OL		
						E	5, 0. B. C	24'	,						
												S	heet ·	2 of :	2

	ng t		an salar salar salar						alan a			GB	-00	-04	
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt	Site: 0	Caus	seway		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM		Log	iged By	:(T.L.)M.E.	Cł	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation		ALCONFLORATION DESCRIPTION	cia-chana-coire
Drilling	Cont	ractor:	····· •	-						Rig Type:	Start Da	te:	Finis	h Date:	
			Explo	oratio	n, Inc	<u>}</u>	KORANTER, SAN DA			A-TV	9-2	8-00	/()-2-0	0
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive	nd V	Nach						e	Casing	Size:	Core	Size:	noha
Overby	rdon	Dopth:			fund	Donthi	Toto	Donth	.	Donth to Groundwi			L	(II) 	
Overbu	luen	Deptii.		CKITE	lusai	Deptn.	TOLA	70'	••	/	alei/Dale.		1.):
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6/ 24234	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				\ Des	/isual Classificatior scription and Rema	n Irks	·	USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	l ah Tactc
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -		5-1 10 1.0 5-2	X	33 66 129/ 50/0	>186	BLAN BO RE AD	CK A UNCI EFUSI VAN	SK, CI. NG ON XL CE W/	UDER ' FIL 'OUT	: , Brick , WODD, L - NO RECOVERY SAMPHNG TO ;	etc.p	ill	±110		
12 - 13 - 14 - 15 - 16 - 17 - 18 -		5-3 1-4 2-0 F-1		1235	5	DARK PH PII MA RE:	CGRAU tsine >= 21 YIMU MOLD CEE	1 (N H/ , high : ON S M RE ED STR) SI Sul toon QDIN ENG	LT. TR. Shells , TR tur Odor, NON-DR 1 14 = 28 TH = 7	. REEDS, SL HINING G SMALL	ТЭ-МОЛ VANE	mia	GOT SOFT AT	2

Project Name: Strat	ford Army E	ngine Pla	nt Site: C	auseway		Project	No.: 5	0796-	1032
Client Name: CBDC	OM L	ogged By	T.L.MEE.	Checked By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling Contractor: Earth E	xploration,	Inc.		Rig Type: Ат	V Start Da	ate: 8-00	Finist Ic) Date:	00
Drilling Method: Drive a	nd Wash				Casing 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (Iı	nches
Overburden Depth:	Rock/Refus	al Depth:	Total Depth 70	: Depth to G	roundwater/Date: /	Wel	l:	Boring	j:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type SPT Blows/6" Trugz SPT Blows/6" Trugz GRA-PHIC			Visual Clas Description ar	sification Id Remarks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	- + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	DARK TR. DARK TR.	GRAY (N 4/ WHITE SHE PID = 4 ON = GMY (N 4/ SHELLS, TR. PID = 5 ON) SILT. SLIG US, TR. PLANT SILT. SL FIBER, TR.C. Spoord	HTLY PLASTIC, MU FIBER, STRONG SUI 10-NON-PLASTIC, A SAND, V. STRONG SI	CACEOUS, FUR ODOR 1ASSIVE, ULFUR ODOR	ML		
25 - F-Z 26 - 27 - P-Z		5 2.0	MUM REAT LOED STREN RECOVERY	01WG = 32 1GTH = 8 G = 4.6 TO G = 5.8 BC	USING SMALL N P USING ME. MTAM	IANE Dium VANE			M CJ
28 - 5-6 29 - 1.2 2.0	4 6 1	3 As 1	N 5-5				мг		
30 - 5-7 31 - 1.1 32 - 2.0	4 4 5	F BLAC	CK SILT. 2. WEEDS	MICACEOUS	, STRONG SULFU	R ODOR,	ML		
35- F-3 34-		REM	alded stre	$N_{4}TH = 16$ G = 5	USING SMAL	LVANE			M
35 - P-3 36 - 5-8	227	1.99 BLACI	RECOVER	Y G = 6.2) TO V. DARK B	BOTTOM RN. SILT. TR. SA	EDIUM VAN V.D. TR. REE	E DS, OL		A, T, 0, L M,0
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1577445	8 FIBE PhA AS A 9	575, ТО LITTLE 571С, МАЗЭ 4 BOVE; NO	· KLED? HBEK: VE, MED. STIFF TICEABLY Ma	, NELL PRESERVE , NON-DRAINING, E 2E FIRM BELOW	39'	z oL Sheet	2 of	

Project	Nam	e: Stra	fford	Arm	, Eng	ine Pla	nt Site:	Cau	seway		Project	: No.: E	0796-	1032
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM		Log	ged By	: T.L./M.L.		hecked By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc				Rig Type: ATV	Start Da 9-2	te: 8-00	Finish 10	Date	: 00
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash						Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches)
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Dep 70	th:	Depth to Groundv /	vater/Date:	Wel]:]	Boring	J:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"/2482.34 SPT Blows/6"/2482	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classificatio	on arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
40 41 -	Ö Ö Ü Ü Ü Ö Ö Ö Ö - F-4 MAYIMUM READING=40 REMULDED STRENGTH=12 USING SMALL VANE													
42 - 43 -	F-4MAYIMUM READING = 40 REMULDED STRENGTH = 12USING SMALL VANF-4G = 5.4 TOP 2.0" RECOVERYG = 5.4 TOP G = 6.2 BOTTOMUSING MEDIUM VA										IMVANE			м, L
44 - 45 41 -		5-10 2.0 2.0	X	1235	5	VERY WOUT ODON	D.4RK GRA DY PLANT D R , NON- D	41514 FIBER DRAIN	BRN (2.59412) 51 25, NON-PLASTIC, T UNG	LT. TR. RE 2. F. 54ND,	EDS Z SULFUR	ML (04)		GM
47 -		5-11 2.0 2.0	X	447	8	V. DAR	KBOVE KBRN. (104	z42))SILT È PEAT. SILT	BECOMES STR	ねったし	ML (OL)		
49 -		3-12		5589	13	BELO WOOD BECO	W49'W/PEA NAYERS, N OMING MOS	ПЧ IA 0.N- 74 2E G	YERS. PEAT IS COMPAC WING. CORE BREAKS RAY	TSILTY W/ UN AT SILT LAYE	IDECOMPESED 125 -	OL (ML)		
50 -		5-13 1.0 2.0	$\left \right\rangle$	351120	16	As AB: "SUGG	OVE , THEN ARY" TEXT	LA ST ARED,	0.3' GRAY (N \$/) V STRATIFIED, DIALATES	F. S.AN DÉ S W/ PRESSUR	E OL-SM/ML	OLISM		
52 - 53-		5-14	X	10 11 17 21	28	GRAY PRE- AL	V.F. SAND. 55412E , GI LUVIUM	TR SI VES U	LT, TR C. SAND, STR IP WATER WHEN VIO	ATIFIED, DIA BRATED IN H	4LA TES W∕ AND PALM .	SM		
54- 55 -		5-15		3 6 9 11	15	AS AB FRE	ove. Gray Je Drainin	, FINE G, TR	SAND, V. WELL SO 2. SILT, TR. F. G'RAVEL	RTED, NON CO.ARSE	- PLASTIC, SAND	57/ '54		
56.		5-16	X	3 13 15 33	28	GRAY GRI	SAND. A AY SILT L	З А ENS	BOVE W/ GRAVELLY ES	ZONES e	DARK	5P/ SM		
58.		5-17	\mathbb{N}	21 18	37	GRAY	GRAVEL A DKS LIKE	IND TII	SAND, WELL GRA	DED, DENS	E.	Gny Sheet	2 of	4

.

Project Name: Stratford Army Engine Plant Site: Causeway Project No.: \$0796-1032 Citent Name: CEDCOM Logged By: TL/MLL Checked By: Ground Elevation: Drilling Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc. ATV $Pa-29-oo$ Drilling Method: Casing Size: 4.0 (inches) (inches) Drive and Wash Casing Size: 4.0 (inches) (inches) Overburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Weil: Boring: Image: Stratt Dist in the strate of the	Bori	ng L	_og										Borir GB	ng No. S- DC	: - 04		
Operations Case of the second secon	Project	Nam	e [.] Strat	ford	Arm	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site	e: Cau	sewav	a and an and a second		Project	No.:	50796-	1032	
Drilling Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc. Rig Type: ATV Start Date: Finish Date: Drilling Method: Drive and Wash Casing Size: Core Size: (Inches) (Inches) Doverburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: 00verburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: 01 01 01 00 00 01 70 1 02 02 03 03 02 02 03 03 03 03 03 04 0 00 04 04 03 03 03 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 05 03 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 04 14 14 V844 14 14 04 14 14 14 14 14 14 14	Client N	ame	CBDC	OM	<u> </u>	Log	iged By	: T.L./M.	L. C	hecked By:		Ground	Elevation:				
Drilling Method: Drive and Wash Casing Size: Core Size: Overburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 100 100 100 100 100 100 00 00 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 100 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).			Rig Type: ATV	****	Start Dat 9-2	e: 8- <i>00</i>	Finisl 10	n Date: - 2 - 2	00	
Overhurden Depth. Rock/Refusal Depth. Total Depth. Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: 00 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 01 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 01 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 02 10	Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash		n an the second seco			ан бай айын тарында калан калан бай бай калан үзүн төн үзүн төрөө төрөө төрөө төрөө төрөө төрөө төрөө төрөө төр		Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches)	
average isource	Overbu	rden	Depth:	Rod	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total De 70	epth:	Depth to Grou	ndwa /	iter/Date:	Wel	:	Boring	3:	
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classific scription and R	ation ema	rks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests	in
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	60 61 - 62 -	41 4 41 23an 33an 33an 33an 33an 33an 33an 33an					VER	1 LITTLE	RETUR	N FINE -TO -MED. 5	AND.	Non-pha	stic,			Ĝ,M	60
65 1.3 \$\$ 10 V. WELL SOLATED, TR. CLAY, VARVED 14 3.0 \$\$ 10 V. WELL SOLATED, TR. CLAY, VARVED 14 5.21 3 \$ CRAY VARVED SILT. STRATIPIED, MASSIVE, NOW PLASTE, WITH MLV. 15 \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ 16 \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ 16 \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ 10 \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ 10 \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ \$\$ 10 \$\$	63 - 64 -	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					ALL THE SU REDDI TO C	UVIUM (S EN REDDI RFACE S SH TOYEL RAY V.F.	SP) Th ISH TU IOIL?) LOWISH SAND # :	en Black 4"4 Yellowish BRN GRAVELLY SAND, BRN. GRAVELLY SILT, SL. PHASTIC	AJER (OXII TR FII SANI SANI SANI	(MANGAN DIZED REA VES WELL (SP), AE LATES W/ P	ESE?), NAANT GRADED DRUPT CHAN RESSURE,	SP ^{ie} ML			<i>د د</i>
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	65 — 66 - 67 -	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					V. 4 GRAY V. F C4	VARVED SAND, I Y LENSE	-TED, TI 511-T FREE D E5, PU	R. CLAY, VARVED STRATIFIED, MA RAINING, DIALA RPLE,	551V	É, NON-PI CONTAIN	ASTRE, WITT S THIN,	1,ML 5.M			
B.O.B. @70'	68 - 69 -		5.22 1.0 .2.0	X	8 17 29 33	46	ASA Mui	BOUE.V RE OF A	(, THIN 4 V. F.	Рикрые СЦАУ 54ND ТНАМ	Lens	ses. BEC T	OMING	5M (ML)			
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -		$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					B.4	D,₿, @	70'								
- Sheet 4 of 4	-																
- Sheet 4 of 4	.																
											194-it-2005-00111		S	heet	I H of	4	

Project Nam	e: Stra	tford	Armv	' Ena	ine Pla	nt	Site: (Cause	wav			Proie	ct No.:	50796-	1032	
Client Name	: CBDC	OM		Log	ged By	:(T.L)	IM.L.	Che	cked B	y:	Ground	Elevatio	on:	Construction of Construction	Many hites with the other hands an	
Drilling Contractor: Rig Type: Earth Exploration, Inc. BARGE										e: 2GE	Start Dat 9-2a	e:) - <i>o</i> o	Finis	inish Date: /0-3-00		
Drilling Method: Drive and Wash												Size: (Inche:	S)	Size: (I	nches)	
Overburden	fusal	Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date:					Ŵ	/ell:	: Boring:							
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)	Visual Classification Description and Remarks								Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests		
) - 2_ 3_ - 4_	い うに え 二つ		W. R. W. D. R.	<1 <1	BLAC SIL NO. BLAC SI NO MAYI	k м л, TR N-P4A L, OR U LFU N-D11 МИЛ	UD FI L FIBI ISTIC, GANIC R ODI ALATIN N REA	LAT M ER W, VERY = SILT OR W/ IG, NO HDING	nucle, STICKY T. TR SL. DA W-DRA = 25	GRITTY V VCT HYDR VON DA FIBERS, T GANIC OD NING. USING	1/ TRACE OCARBOR DAINING R.SHETL: OR, Non- PID: LARCE	SAND, T V ODOR PID=3 6. plastic =2.6 VANE	те 5, МН ,		64	
5	F-1 P-1 5-3		W.O.K. W.O.K.		REMO NO RI Splir Mice DARK VERI	LDED ECOUR Spin Caceo GRAY V SLIP	STRE Ny To N IN US, S SILT.	SHEL STEAD STEAD STEAD TR. OF	= 17 By Tub DAN Stic, V Stuce	E Sample L Crisy SIO Cry Soft, S S. MICACED UR ODDR 7	Quilectica 7. T.R. Org 10. fun oct 15. S.L. PIA RAEE FIB2	((14)105, (1)05	my my my			
/o //	1.3/5.0 5-5 2.0 5.0	\bigwedge	W.U.H. W.U.H. W.U.H. W.J.H. I	2	DMAL VER	GRANJ STIC	sict. Ky, St	TR . TC Rong	5 Little Sul Fur	ORGANICS, LODOR, TR.	Michoe au FIBERS	5, 31PIA	istre, OL			
13- 14- 15-	F-2 P-2				MAX DEM No REC DAT	I MUN O LD ED TO VERY EK BA PLA-ST	n KEA > STRL I W/ PIS W. PRI NC , SI	DING SMETH STON SA GANIC ULFUR	= 42 = 8 mpier- - 5.1ct. 000R.	U 5126 44 DE. BRU. : DRCANC ; SL. PLASTI PUSH Sport TR. MILA.	TILGE VANG SILT., LITT TR. MICA, E by HAND. Very SLip	E-D-Sci V. STICKY PERY,	WHE OL		M,0,5	
16 - 17 - 18 -	5-7-17-3-	X	w.o.iz. w.o.it. v.o.it. I	1	DARK SL.	BRN PLA ST	, ora Tic, S	iANIC WILFUI	SILT. R DOOR,	TR.MKA,	VERY SLi	<i>Рреку</i> ,	04		M	

7.

Project Name: Stratford Army Engine Plant Site: Causeway											Project No.: 50796-103						
Client N	:OM		Log	iged By	: T.L .	./M.L. Checked By: Grour					d Elevation:						
Drilling	ractor: Earth B	oratio	n, Inc	Rig Type: BARGE					Start Dat 9-20	Finish Date: 10-3-0-							
Drilling Method: Drive and Wash												Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Core Size: (Inche		
Overburden Depth: Rock/Ref				fusal	Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundw 64'						ter/Date:	l: Boring:					
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"/5412291	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				V Des	isual Classific cription and R		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	I ak Taata			
21 - 22 - 23 - 24 - 24 - 24 - 24 - 24 - 24		P 5 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		No. R. N. P. N. P.	-0.6 21 <1 -0.35 -1.1 <1	1.9 R. ВКАСЦ ПОЛ V. TH РЕАТУ МАХІ REME BLACC EASI	ECONER GO SILUTY HINI JULI MIRM DIDED RECO E ORI	24 W BOTTZ NING -, STORT F THEN READING STRE	2009 =) PEA MID -5 I , THI NIG = SI C SI C - PRA	3.4 W/ MEI TY SILT, V. SO SECTION PEATY. S CACEOUS SILT 42 NO GEONOR T. SLIGHT CTURE FACES,	DIILM FT, H V. DEC . DLA VG LA DATA SULF, V. SM	VANE HAH SULF EMPOSED, H KE TO V. D HER TO V. D HRGE VAN ON TUBE: UE ODOR, HLL SV. TO	UR WOR, FEW 1482/2 GRay. 11E StragLE TR. Ficker 11.1, iveL	OL S, OL		A, ; 0,	
38.	-	Col. V	-	<u></u>	-	LANE	RED	PEAYY	511	T & DEAT D	EATA	Zomes H	aver	Pt/	1	G,	
Bori	ng l	-og										Bori G	ng No 3 <i>3-0</i>	: 0-03	5		
--------------------------------------	-------------------	---	--------------	----------------------	--------------------	----------------------------	------------------------------	---	------------------------------	--	---	------------------------------	-----------------------	----------------------	-----------		
Project	Nam	ie: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt	Site:	Caus	seway		Projec	t No.: (50796-	1032		
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM		Log	ged By	(T.I	M.L.	Ch	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation	:				
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).				Rig Type: BAR GE	Start Dat 9-3	te:) - 00	Finis /č	n Date: 1-3-0) co		
Drilling	Meth	iod: Drive a	and V	Vash							Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches)		
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Tota	al Dept 64	h:	Depth to Groundwa /	ter/Date:	We	:]	Boring	:		
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				\ Des	/isual Classification	'ks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests		
40 41 -		F				Мант Кеми	і <i>ч,н</i> і -Ded	READU STREN	ua = Igth =	41 USING SM 1 VANE WINGS	HLL VANI BENTAT	É - THIS ZONE.					
42 - 43 -		P			****	N 0 2E	Cost	Ely - I	DRILL	ER THINKS IN GI	QVEL.						
-44 		5-1420	X	7 18 17 20	35	GRAY NON ROM PID=	(104 - ргл 10 де 20	1R 4/1) STIC, DA D/COARS GRAVE	GRAU VAINING SE, TO	ewy SAND, TR. SI 5, STRATIFIED, MILACE FINE, BOTOM OF SHOE, AND	LT. V. Me OUS, GRAN IS OLIVEYE	LL GALTEN I EL 15 EUGN), SP				
47-		5	X	22 16 20 17	36	GRAVE	eny	5.4MJ)	. A:	ABOUE	ALLS BOG		SP				
48- 49-		5	X	16 14 10 10	24	GRAY GRA LIK	SAN NEL E AB	VD. W 15 Rou SLATION	ITH 4 NDEP TILL	RAVEL - SANID, IS U NON- PHISTIC, MED OR ALLIVIUM.	DOLL GRAD	DED; Looks	SW				
50 - 51 -		5	X	13 7 10 10	17	WELL	- GR	tjed a	ravel	ly sand.			SW				
52- 53-		5 0.5	X	28 38 27 22	65	VERY SAN PRE	ЪР 1Д Е 155-1 К	0F SP0. SILT. V LE,	ARUE	HS ABRUPT CONTAC D. V. WELL SOLFED, N	т w/ GRA 10.V-рьпоти	Y, V.F. C, DRAWIN	Sm/ Facy Mil				
55 -		5	\mathbb{X}	3 9 15 90	14	As	ABO	VE					5M ML				
57. 57.		5	X	5 9 13 14	22	AS AN AS A CLAY	80VE 41800 1 Lei	i To 5: 16 Out NSES.	7 ⁻ , TF - CoL	IEN OLIVE BRN, V. OR CHANGE, VARVE	F. SAND ? 20 <i>mj</i> V. 7	SILT, Нім рикрі	ESW				
59.		5		791216	21	C HANG PAR	ig k ple	BACK TO CLAY L	Cipay ense:	1 V.F. SAND € 51 LT. 5 As .480VE	w/ V. 7741.	~ 	Sheet] 3 of 4	I Ł		
W20000	80(a)		- Commences					8 17 - 18 18 - 19 18 18 18 18 18 18 1 8 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18		n na hanna an ann an ann an an ann an ann an		Ha	rdir.	ig ES	Е —		

Exam				daaraa Qooraan	a start de s			an chair an ch			66	3-00	- 05	
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Arm	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site:	Cau	seway		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client N	ame	: CBDC	COM		Log	gged By	ν: (T.L./Μ.L.		hecked By:	Ground	Elevation	:		وروار وروار وروار وروار
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth	Explo	oratio	n, Ind	2.			Rig Type: BARGE	Start Dat	te: 1. <i>0 - 00</i>	Finis 10	h Date	20
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash						Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Deptl しイ	n:	Depth to Groundwa	ater/Date:	Wel	:]	Boring	j :
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classificatior scription and Rema	ı rks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
60 61 -		5	X	5580	13	As 1	4Bov∈ W/	ΤН	IN PARPLE CLAY	lenses		5M ML	-	G,M
63 -		5	X	2 8 13 19	21	AS A	BOVE, BUT	820	WNISH GRAY			5M/ ML	-	
64 -			<u> </u>			B.(0.B.C6	-j '	221927-1235-077400-1-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-0-					
-														
-														
-														
-											100	 Sheet	4 of	4
W200008] 30(a)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>								Ha	rdir	ng ES	Е —

Boring Log	l.						Borin	ng No GB- (.: 50 <i>- 0</i> 5	SA -	
Project Name: Strat	ford Army	y Engine	Plant Site: (Caus	seway		Project	No.:	50796-′	1032	
Client Name: CBDC	ОМ	Logged	By: T.L.M.L.	Ch	necked By:	Ground	Elevation		rtegti feddi feddi an ar gynar		
Drilling Contractor: Earth E	xploratio	n, Inc.			Rig Type: A⊤√	Start Dat	e: - 8 - 00	Finis	h Date: //	20	
Drilling Method: Drive-a	nd Was h	Ank	Rothry u	s/ :	Spoons	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (It	nches)	
Overburden Depth:	Rock/Re	fusal Dep	th: Total Depth 9.5	n:	Depth to Groundwa /	ter/Date:	Wel	1:	Boring	;	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)		\ Des	/isual Classification	ks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests	
$\begin{array}{c} 1 & - & \\ 2 & - & \\ 3 & - & \\ 3 & - & \\ 4 & - & 5 - 1 \\ 5 & - & 5 - 1 \\ 5 & - & 5 - 1 \\ 6 & - & 5 - 2 \\ 7 & - & 7 - 2 \\ 7 & - & 7 - 2 \\$	W.2.H. 6.6 8765	12 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13	ILL OF GROVE AS ABOVE AS BLACK, MA PRY "SOUPY" WA ACK GRAVELLY S SILT (VERY BU 2. Shells, Tr. C B.J. B. C BLOWS ARE	2, 5 Exer index S.A.N.D.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S.S	AND, SILT, CONCA GOT FOR Very THO OF SILT. TR. SAND, T A SILFUR ODOR 9 FILL TO ~ 9 THI AT CONTRET) MICHEN 123, AgA SULFUR ODO 2 3 Spoon USING	LETE, Asin = Spoon R, GRAUC = NGRAY = Sous, Non R. 	Which L: V.F. SAND PLASTIC,	sheet rdir	/ of		7.5 9.5

Project	Nam	e: Straf	ford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site: 0	Cau	seway		Project	No.: 5	50796-1	03:
Client N	ame:	CBDC	OM		Log	ged By	: T.L./M.L.	Cł	necked By:	Ground	Elevation:			
Drilling	Contr	ractor: Earth E	Explo	oratio	n, Inc	5.			Rig Type:	Start Dat	e: 1 <i>-00</i>	Finist (n Date: 1-9-0	2
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive- a	ınd V	Vash	Pu	.sh s	poons		<u>, (, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (Ir	nch
Overbu	den	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depth 2	n:	Depth to Groun	dwater/Date: /	Wel	l:	Boring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classifica scription and Re	tion marks		- USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	
1 _		5-1	X			GRAN DOOR Mile	1 SILT, M , tr. she k to 1.5	ica 115. Tha	FILL TO ~ 1 , - NATIVE	stic, high then mixed	Sulfue fille	NIN VI		
						Pust f G V	ANE, RECO	С 200-1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	и Медиим Се от 6.6, Ф 9 4.0 Reading	™une Nout				
	4											Sheet	/ of	1

Bor	ing l	Log										G	B-0	0-06	
Projec	Nam	ne: Stra	tford	Army	' Eng	ine Pla	nt Si	te: C	Caus	seway		Project	No.: (50796-	1032
Client I	Name	CBDC	COM		Log	ged By	T.L./N	1.L.	Cł	necked By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling	Cont	ractor:								Rig Type:	Start Dat	e:	Finis	h Date:	
		Earth	Explo	oratio	n, Inc	•				BARGE	10-4	1-00	/0	0-6-0	0
Drilling	Meth	nod:									Casing S	Size:	Core	Size:	
		Drive	and V	Vash							4.0	(Inches)		(nches)
Overbu	urden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total D)ept⊦ ∤´	1:	Depth to Groundwa /	ter/Date:	Wel	: 	Boring	3:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				\ De:	/isual Classification scription and Remai	ʻks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
1 -	1	5-1	X	W. D. R.	<1	Black FiB	organin Erls -	= 51 MU	LT. Ck	Ні́ан зис <i>ғик об</i> с PID=7	or, venys	oFT _, SanE	OL		
3.		52	X	W. 0. R.	<1	BLACK ODC Pio	4511 B. K ,Ver = 31	ко <i>w;</i> 4 50	V OA	LGANIC SILT. MUC Micheeous, NJ Som	le, HIGH E Phant F	SULFUR BERS	OL		
4· 5 -		F-1				МАЦІ Кеме	mum DEDED	rea.) Stre	NAN NGN	= 21 U.SING L H = 4	MRGE VAN	<u>JE</u>			M
- 6 . 7 . % .		5-3	X	W. 0. R.	<1	VERY DAA Look Mic	DARK C WING, 5 Like Account	і R4Y NDN Реа 5	10 1-ph t-c P10:	BLACK MUCK. VE ASTIC, HIGH SULFU Joes NOT STAIN HAN =71	RY SOFT, 1 R ODOR, 7 105 WHEN S	NDN- TR.FIBERS, SQUCEZED	Pt		
9		5-4 9-9 9-0	X	W. 0. R.	21	No	RECOV	ERY		TOO SOFT TO GO,	ита сро	an			
- 00 		5-5	X	PURSH BY HAND	<1	sAm P	e as , 1D=24	IN 6 7	-8	, TR. SHELLS, SL	. PLASTI	C	or/pt	P	
13		F-2				MAX REM	imum 01ded	REA STR	tdin Lene	16 = 31 USING . GTH = 8	LARGE VAL	VE			
15 - 15 -		5-6	X	PUSH BY HAND	<1	5дте РЦд 541	STIC, / -FUR	s´-12 VD,U- DD0K	(D DR. , N	ARK GRAY, ORGAN HINING, TR. V. SMAA O.N- DI ALATING P	IIC SILT. L FIBERS ID=29	5L- , STRONG	OL-		
17		5-7	$\left \right\rangle$	Puat B1 Hawo	<1	SAM	e as Pid=	<i>Л</i> ын 33	υĔ				OL		
81 10]	F-3		1		MAY	умим	PE.	4DI)	UG = 44					M
"	٦				1	REM)LOED	572	ENS	TH = 7			ineet	/ 01	4

Project	Nam	ne: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt	Site: 0	Cau	seway		Project	No.: (50796-	1032
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM		Log	ged By	(T.L.)	M.L.	CI	necked By:	Ground	Elevation:			
Drilling	Cont	ractor:	Cumla	votio						Rig Type:	Start Dat	te:	Finis	h Date	:
		Earth	Expid		<u> </u>					BARGE	10-4-	00	10	2-6-6	10
Drilling	Metr	Drive	and V	Vash						11.1991 (- 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194 - 194	Casing 8	(Inches)	Core	5ize: (I	nches)
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total	Depth /	1:	Depth to Groundw	vater/Date:	Wel	:	Boring	à: Ì
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6 242-BA	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)		·		De	√isual Classificatic scription and Rem	n arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
20 21 - 12 -		P-1		,		2' PE	COVË R	CED 1A G= 4511	J = 4 0 16 4	SHELBY TUBE N TOP, REMOLDED ARGE VANE	AT 0.2 (N	O BOTTOM G			A,T 0,L
23 - 24 -		5-8	X	W.D.R. PUSH BY HAND	4	VORY Vei No	DARK 124 - 30 N-DA	ET, SI	То Р. , Л	V. DARK BRN. (445TC, TR. UNDEC 10N · DIALATING PI	ючк 2/2) огд атросеп ри D = 3	GANIC SILT. WIT FIBERS	OL		G,M
25 -		F-4				MA¥ REMO	ми,ц Цдео	804) 5785;	Vat Vat	4 = 46.5 USING H = 8	LARGE VA	NE			м
27 -		P-2			- 1 . 66	0,5	2 Ré	COVER	·Y	TOP OF THBE IS NO GEONOR RET	SOLIO WOC 4D <i>ing</i> S on	ið, Striple			L, M
H - H -		5-9 20 3.0	X	Pusit. 1' 2 3	2	DRE. C DN SAN PID	40111 HORI 10, CI = 3	5H BR ZontAn OMMON	N. (> F. I PL	104R4/2) ORGAN ACES, NON-DRAINI, ANT FIBERS, STRO	IC SILT, R VG, TR. SAN NG SULFU	d, TR.C. RODER	OL		
31 -		5-10	X	W.o.H. 1 3 2	3	5.Am	E A:	s Atbo	いど				OL		
32- 33-		F-5		¥		МАН. Вемс	MUM	READ STRE	iNG NGTI	i=24 1=4.5 /6.	SMALL VA	NE FRAN 371			
34- 35 _		P-3				NO SOIL	PECO DEA	VERY USITY	WDr MA	RTH KEEPING Y HAVE PREVENT	ONWARD ED SAMPLE	, COHECTION	j.		
32 - 37 -		5-11		W.O.R. W.D.R. 9	9	DK &	GRAYM AKS C	H Ban DN HOA	, O Lizo.	RCANIC SILT. TR VTAL. TR. REEDS	. TO LITTLE . , LOW SHI	F. JAND. LFUR ODOR	01-		
38.		5-12	\bigwedge	6		GRAY	, F Atter	-TO-MI	മോ. പാ	SAND, TR. TO N RAINING MOD. D.) SILT OR E MSE	REANIC	5m	2 of	

Bori	ng l	og										Ge	3-00	-06	the at the second s
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Arm	/ Eng	ine Pla	ant	Site: 0	Cau	seway	1	Projec	t No.:	50796-'	1032
Client N	ame	: CBDC	COM		Log	iged By	y: T.L	/M.L.	C	necked By:	Ground	Elevatior	<u>ו:</u> ד	وي الجال الجرب من الكر جي	
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Farth	Evolo	vratio	n Ind					Rig Type:	Start Dat	e:	Finis	h Date:	
					n, m		an a			BARGE	10.4-	00	10	-6-00	2
Drilling	Meth	.00: Drive :	and V	Vach							Casing S	ize: (Inchos)	Core	Size:	nchc
<u> </u>		Donth			fund	Donthi	Toto		.	Dopth to Croundur	4.0	(Inches	<u>//</u>	<u>()</u>	
Jverbu	uen	Deptii.			lusai	Depin.		64'	I.	/	alen Dale.	vve) :]	Boling	:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				, De	Visual Classificatior scription and Rema	ı rks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
70 41 - 42 - 43 - 43 - 44 - 45 - 44 - 45 - 44 - 45 - 44 - 45 - 44 - 45 - 44 - 50 - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51		F-6 13 22 5-14 40 F-15 12 5-16 02		32882338 18112554422	28 6 52 58	MAH REM GRAY MO TOP SA DR DR DR MAXI REMI BRA GRA NO GRA	MUM OLDEJ J. MET D. DE J.J. S MD. S MD. S MD. S MD. S MU NE C MUNIS NEL C MUEL C MUEL C MUEL	READ D STRE DIUM TH BASE, C 5.4ME LITTLE DJ, MO N READ STREA M GRA SUB-ANG DVERY IN THP	i M 4 $N 4 T$ $O C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C$	= 3.5 USING H= 0.5 24RSE SAND, NO OD L-DRAINED, NO OD 4BOVE, THEN CA GRAVEL, SUBANEU DOR = 16 HSING S = 7 AND. MEDIUM -TO NO ORGANICS, MOD LITTLE BIT OF C. S RAY	SMALL VA DRG, ANICO OR, 54 BAA CAY, MED - LAR, MOD. SMALL VA SMALL VA D- CO.ARSE, 1 D. WELL DA AND & F	INE 5, KIULAR 10 - COARS WEL WEL LITTLE F. UINED TO-MED	SP SW SW		
52 - 53- 54 - 55 - 51 -		5-17 0-1- 3-0 5-18 0.9		24 13 15 19 8 10 10	31	V.L. M CI GRAY DI	iπle Iedium LEAN 1, V. KAINE	RE COV n - FINE ' F. SAN D , POO	IERN GA DAI RLY	1. COARSE SAND WUEL, ANGULAR TR ND SILT, VARVED, GRADED	. SOME C SUBANGI MODERATE	0.4RSE- ILAR, LY	SP SM		
57- 58- 59- <u>60</u>		5-19 0:2.0 5-20 1:2:0		088116670	16 13	NO GRAY 'LAY TO	REC I SILT VIES C VIES	:0 VERY - W/ 5 0F REDO (4N D W/	OME ISH SOM	E V. FINE SAND. BAN, SILT. POORLY NE SILT AT BOTTOM	IN TERBETT D PRAINED , CR OF SPACIN	ел 40 <i>1.42,</i> [2111-т т	mL Sheet	3 of 4	

Bori	ng L	_og										Borin	ng No B <i>OC</i>	:)-06	
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Arm	/ End	ine Pla	nt Site: (Cau	sewav	nd ann an Said		Project	No.: (50796-'	1032
Client N	ame	CBDC	COM		Log	iged By	T.L.M.L.	С	hecked By:		Ground	Elevation			
Drilling	Cont	ractor:							Rig Type:		Start Dat	e:	Finis	h Date:	
_		Earth I	Explo	ratio	n, Inc				BARGE		10-4.	-00	10	-6-00	,
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash							Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (II	nches)
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depth 64	ר:	Depth to Grou	indwa /	ter/Date:	Wel	l: 	Boring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classific	cation Remai	ks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
60 61 - 62 -		5-21 1.4 72.0 5-22	X	956910	11	GRAY RE GRAY	I V.F. SANI DDI SH BRN FINE SAN) * '. 3 D	SILT. INTER TILT, PODRLY F. SILT. W/ ,	- TD - N - TD - N IN TEX	100, DR4 100, DR4 LBEDDED L	ine of INED Ayeks of	ML ML		
69 - 64 -		2.0	$ \wedge$	13 15	23		EDDISH BR	N .	SILT. AS	ABc	WE				
						B.,	0.B. @ 6	-4							
-															
-															
-															
-															
-															
-															
-															
	_														
													Sheet	4 of	4
W20000	80(a)						<u></u>		99999999999999999999999999999999999999			Ha	rdir	ng ES	E

Project	Nam	e Stra	tford	Arm	/ End	ine Pla	nt Site Cau	Seway		Proiect	· No '	50796-	103
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM			ged By	T.L.M.C. C	hecked By:	Ground	Elevation	:		
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth	Explo	oratio	n, Inc),		Rig Type:	Start Dat //- <i>8-</i>	te: <i>00</i>	Finis	h Date: /-8 - 0	0
Drilling	Meth -	iod: Drive (a nd- V	Vash	A	R Ro	TARY WI S	90,0,1 S	Casing \$ 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (II	ncł
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depth:	Depth to Ground	water/Date: /	Wel	: : 	Boring):
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)		ut Suu Staat Saat De	Visual Classificati scription and Rer	on narks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	
1-		5-1	X	2. E.		ALL Mu DE	FILL- PUSHER CK OVER WEL GRADED FREL	D 3" Spoon For L-graded SAND 1 Smell	z 5.4mp LE - V high friel	BLACK CODOR -	4		
3-	2 - 2 - 1 Below - 2 - 7 - 1 Below 1 - 4 Samp 1 - 4 Samp 1 - 4 Samp 1 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 -					PU SH GRA	ED 3° Spoon. vel -high de	Binck well-gr graded fuel odd	aded SAND , br	UJ TR.	17		
5 -	ì	5-3	X	199 		V. Po	OR RECOVERY	SAME AS AR	,v <i>ë</i>				
7-		5-4	X	n – 28 2. ≤90 - 1		PUSH NATIN PLAN NON-	ED 3ª SPOON. 16 Soils. Dark t fibers, Mich DRAWING, MAY	VERY TOP 15 GRAD grag Very fine ceous, Strong Sub be varved.	SAND & SIL SAND & SIL JUR Odors,	OVER T. Tr. NM-phon	e ML	-	^
	- 46 -		1 ²⁴		2 M) 1 - M	.B, W 11 Re	0.B. @ 8 H GEONDR ADING OF T	; Медиим VA. L @ 9.8 bgs. 4	NE, COT 1.9 W/00	at VANE			
			Aller Se Aller Aller Andres Se	a der 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		n South and the second							
_								· · ·					
-	{		1		1								

Boring	g Log									Borir Ge	ng No. 3- <i>00</i>	: -06B	
Project Na	ame: Strat	ford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site: C	Caus	seway	ay and the second s	Project	No.: (50796-1	032
Client Nar	me: CBDC	OM	ara ana ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an	Log	ged By	: T.L./M.L.	Cł	necked By:	Ground	Elevation:	, ,	مىرى مىرى مەربىرىيى بىرى مەربىرىيى بىرى مەربىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىر	
Drilling Co	ontractor: Earth E	Explo	oratio	n, Inc	•			Rig Type: A-T-V	Start Dat	:е: 00	Finisl	h Date: -9-00	
Drilling Me	ethod: ~ Drive-a	nd-V	Vash-	A	nr Ro	stary wy	5po	こへず	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (Ir	nches)
Overburd	en Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depth 13.5	n:	Depth to Groundwa /	ater/Date:	Wel		Boring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing blows/Foot Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			\ De:	Visual Classificatior scription and Rema	ı rks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
1 - 2 - 3 - 4 - 5	5-1		2112	2	Den Stru Hit AS UI.5 ATTE GOT NATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE	LEKS ADr phing WODD, Fi SOON AS C ING BECAM -13.5 -1 EMPT AGA RECOVENY TVE SOIL DRIVE 3" 5 AC GRAY Shells, M TIC, TR. FID D.B. @ 13	ANC BER Jot 1 11 (The F 10 (The F 10 (The F 10 (The F 10 (The F) 10 (The	E CASING TO 11.4 Charses, copper with through A sec eal SOPT. RECOVERY 121 Spun CASING Pr HIS TIME - Like bottom of Fill W/ 300 Lb. ham Sharek SILT. Ver SULFUR DOOR, NO. Situss mixed W TOP	s w/ un RE, ste fin of time, tor to re by V. TOP o ner y Soft, S v-Drywing of Spocy,	et, etc. fibergins then TRIEVAL) F hiney, g, 5L. nucceous,		/ of	

	-3				a bi na superiore			og nastilisetter be	a been the state of the second		6	B- (0-0	7
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Plant	: Site: C	ause	way		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM	lathilite for the se	Log	ged By: 🏅	TL.M.L.	Che	cked By:	Ground	Elevation		•	
Drilling	Cont	ractor:							Rig Type:	Start Dat	te:	Finis	h Date	:
			Explo		n, inc				BARGE	10-19	-00	10	0-19-0	<u>ى ر</u>
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive	and V	Vooh						Casing S	Size:	Core	e Size:	
		Danth		vasii		Denthal T			anth to Crownshu	4.0	(incres)	1	۱) 	nones,
Overbu	raen	Deptn.	RO	скле	rusai		24'		/	alendale.		l:]:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)		I	Vi: Desc	sual Classification ription and Rema	n arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
1 -		5-1	X	W. D. Ht.	41	BLACK	SILT. S	oft	, non-phistic					
5 - J -	n - 1. (1. s)	5-2	X	W. D. H.	41	Blatch	- SILT, L	loo si	e five 5400. r	ion phastic	, SOFT			
5 _						MAYIMI	um ROADING	G = 5						
,		F-1				REMOLD	en) streakin	H =						
- 1 -		5-3	X			GRANY :	SILT, SOPI	T, 51	- PUASTIC, 50	ne shells	•			G,M
8 - 9 - 10		P-1				2 RECOV	ercy l	Б. <i>оч</i> G ол	. Тор = 2.1 Ren Вольт = 2.2 Rei	102309 = 1.2 1102309 = 1.0	>			M, TUBE LOG
10		120				MAYIM	um READ	wy.	= 39.5					
	1	F C				REMOLD	IED STRENC	cn1	= 8.5					M
12 - 13 -		p-2				2"RECOU	<i>іёр</i> ү 6	й 701 Б Эл	0 = 1.9 REMOLD $a_m = 2.2$ REMOLD	60 = 0.4 6D = 1.4				M, TUBE
14 - 15 _		5-4	X	W, 0. H.	<,	BROW	N ЯЦТ. Расе Знец	Soft LS.	, SLIGHINY PHAST	c, Micace	ous,			
/6 - 7 -		5-5	X			SAME	AS A-ROU	иË						
18- 19.		5-6	$\overline{\mathbb{N}}$	W. 0.	4	BRon	IN SILT.	50	r, phase, de	nser w/ O	IEPTH.	heet	/ of	M,0 2

- DAU	Line F	- ~ 9									G	8-0	0-07	
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site: Ca	useway			Project	No.: {	50796-1	1032
Client N	ame	CBDC	COM		Log	ged By	: Tate(M.L.)	Checked By:		Ground I	evation:	Pas ! . !	b 173 -4-	
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth	Explo	ratio	n. Inc			Rig Type:	P	Start Date	e: -00	FINIS	n Date: 0 - 19 - 6	20
Drilling	Meth	od:	R Dataseteketekeniné	un di secono di del				1 Lose	-6E	Casing S	ize:	Core	Size:	
		Drive a	and V	Vash						4.0	(Inches)		11)	nche
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depth: 24	Depth to G	roundwa /	ter/Date:	Well	:	Boring	:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)		C	Visual Class Description an	sification d Remar	ks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	l ah Tests
20 21 - 22 - 23 -		5-7	\mathbb{X}	·		A5 A5	ABOVE ABOVE							
24_			\square			B	0.B. @ 24'		rice and an inclusion of the second secon					
-														
-														
-														
-														
-														
-														
-								·			S	Sheet	2 of	2
	L				<u> </u>	<u> </u>		ىرىنى ئەربىي مەلپارىدىنىڭ ئالىرىنى تەربىي مەربىي تەربىي بىرىنىي	aurapakti mini panga panganga ng			rdir	na ES	г -

.

Client Name: CBDCOMLogged ByTLJM/L.Checked By:Ground Elevation:Drilling Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc.Rig Type: \mathcal{ATV} Start Date: \mathcal{ATV} Finish Date: \mathcal{ATV} Drilling Method: Drive and WashCasing Size: \mathcal{L} Core Size: \mathcal{L} Core Size: \mathcal{L} Overburden Depth: Total Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth: \mathcal{H} Total Depth: \mathcal{H} Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well: \mathcal{H} Boring: \mathcal{H} opting Dive and Wash00 \mathcal{H} 00 \mathcal{H} Visual Classification Description and Remarks00 \mathcal{H} 00 \mathcal{H} opting Dive Dive Dive Dive Dive Dive Dive Dive	Project	Nam	e: Strai	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt	Site: Ca	usev	vay			Projec	t No.:	50796	-103
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Client N	ame	: CBDC	OM		Log	ged By	T.L	Mrt. (Chec	ked By:		Ground	Elevation	:		
Drilling Method: Drive and Wash Creating Size: Core Size: (Incl Overburden Deptit: Rock/Refusal Deptit: I 4' I' I' I' I' I' I' I' I	Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).			R	ig Type: ATV		Start Dat	e: 7 <i>-0</i> 0	Finis	sh Date 키-ヲヲ): .00
Overburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Boring:I (1)I Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Boring:I (1)I Total Depth:I Total Depth:I Total Depth:I Total Depth:I II (1)I I (1)Visual ClassificationDescription and RemarksIO BUILS ON OUR DEPTH II II I III III IIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	ind V	Vash								Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	e Size: (Inch
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re / /	fusal /	Depth:	Tota /	Il Depth:	De	pth to Grou	undwa /	iter/Date:	We	:]	Borin	g:
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			D	Vis Descr	ual Classifi ption and I	cation Remai	rks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	
	1 - 2 - 3 - 4 - 5 - 4 - 5 - 4 - 7 - 9 - 10 - 11 - 13 - 14 - 15 - 14 - 15 - 14 - 15 - 14 - 15 - 17 - 18 - 19 -		51 501 501 501 501 501 501 501 501 501 5		10 12 18 22 42 36 4 26 57 1 24 11 27 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	30 62 118 43	Pou BLAC Brow BLAC Sho GRAV Hit Cash Roll Lost No A B	NDE Le gr Le gr E h. ec z Ste Wa Ler b Wa . 0. f	i) 3" sp invelly S ravelly S and gran baran SAND. el (~ ~ h. ts ter it, stee ter retu Decide y J. C IL	500. 54ND	-NO RI FILL, M FILL, M FILL With brin with brin with brin with brin with brin C @ 13. MAUINGS JUST BELL (r.'11 STRIA BAUDON R	Je pin Je pin	eccs, Boli RECOVERY V again C V again C V again C V again C V V again C V V again C V V again C V V V again C V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	6, п орт 0, 13 . - W/ - face, 			

•

Project Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantSite: CausewayProject No:: 50796-1032Client Name: CBDCOMLogged By: TC(ML)Checked By: Ground Elevation:Drilling Contractor: Barth Exploration, Inc.Rig Type: Bart Cat:Start Date: Bart Cat:Drive and WashCore Size: Core Size: Core Size:Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size:Overburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth: Core Size: Core Size:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Total Depth: Core Size: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Core Size: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Sine: Sine: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Sine: Core Size: Sine: Sine: S	Boriı	ng L	-og	tarina, apo respons Alternaria Alternaria deservativa										Bori G	ng No B-a	.: 0 -08	
Client Name: CBDCOM Logged By: $\mathcal{K}(M,L)$ Checked By: Ground Elevation: Drilling Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc. Rig Type: Start Date: $(0 - 13 - 00)$ Drilling Method: Drive and Wash Casing Size: (2 - 13 - 00) Core Size: (10 - 13 - 00) Overburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: Overburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: Overburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: Overburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Well: Boring: Option Big	Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	int	Site: C	Caus	seway		1	Projec	t No.:	50796-	1032
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Client N	ame	CBDC	COM		Log	ged By		(M.L.)	Ch	ecked By	-	Ground	Elevation): T	•	
Casing Size:Core Size:Original Size:Core Size:Overburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Core Size:Overburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Core Size:Core Size:Overburden Depth:Core Size:Core Size:Overburden Depth:Core Size:Core Size:Overburden Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Boring:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Overburden Depth:Overburden Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Overburden Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Overburden Depth: <th< td=""><td>Drilling (</td><td>Cont</td><td>ractor: Earth</td><td>Explo</td><td>oratio</td><td>n, Inc</td><td>).</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Rig Type Barce</td><td>: GE</td><td>Start Dat 10-13</td><td>:e: ! - 00</td><td>Finis</td><td>h Date: 0-18</td><td>-00</td></th<>	Drilling (Cont	ractor: Earth	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).				Rig Type Barce	: GE	Start Dat 10-13	:e: ! - 00	Finis	h Date: 0-18	-00
Overburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Boring:Overburden Depth:Get 1Out 1000Out 1000SoftIOut 1000operburden Depth:Out 1000Out 1000<	Drilling I	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash			_					Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches)
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Overbur	den	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Ġ	Depth 4		Depth to (Groundwa /	ter/Date:	We	:]	Boring	j:
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				V Des	/isual Clas	ssification nd Remar	ks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	0		5-1 210	X	W, 0. H.	41	BLAR	ek Mi	ich, 5	51 LT	, VERY The	ÞFT			ML		
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	2 - 3 -		5-2	X	W. D. H.	41	BLACK TO V. DATCH GRAY SILT, FINE SAUD, MUCK, V. SOFT FINE SANDY SILT, WOOD, SOFT, TRACE PEAT, MICACEOUS BROWN, TO GRAY.								ML		
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	4- 5 -		5-3	X	W. 0. H.	<1									ML OL		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	6 - 7-		5-4	X	w. o. H.	4	FINE	5.4N SOFT.	by sil	π.	OLIVÉ Á FA	Y . MIC40	сбриз, рк	ASTIC,	ML		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	8- 9-		5-5	X	W. 0. 14.	<1	F WE	54N. OFT, T	DY SIL Race S	-T. (547E L	OLIVE GRA ULS.	y, Micac	EOUS, PW	ыпс,	ML		
$\begin{array}{c c} \hline & & \\ \hline \\ \hline$	> _		F-1 4 5-6	X			. МАЧ Remo	MUM LOGS POR TI	READ STREA EST?	ing 147H	= 20 (b) = ? AL	ISING LARI LIBCT SPO 50 - SAME	GE VANE UN AT THI: AS SEEN I	06pm IN 5-5	ML		
15 - P-1 2' RECOVERY IN THRE G TOP = 2.0 REMOLDED = 0.2 16 - G BETROM = 2.2 REMOLDED = 0.9 17 - S-7 W. OLIVE GRAY SILTY SAND, SOFT, PLASTIC, SOME WOOD,	12- 13-		F-2				МАУІЛ ВЕМОІ	NUM A LDED	ZEADIN STRENG	iG = 174 =	40 U: 7	SING LAA	LGE VANE	•			
17 S-7 WW. OLIVE GRAY SILTY SAND, SOFT, PLASTIC, SOME WOOD,	-די 15 — "		P-1				2' REA	iove R	ה או ן	иBE	G TOP: G Better	= 2.0 R n= 2.2 R	emolded = Emolded =	0.2 0.4			M, A,Ţ,
H. UKGANICS	17_ 17_		5-7		W. 0. H.	4	OLIVE Of	i Gray 2GnA Ni	51UTY C5	りょう	D, SOFT	рильта	-, Some	wood			
18- 19- 19- 19- 19- 19- 19- 19- 19- 19- 19	18- 19-		5-8	X	W. 0. H.	<1	OLIVE	СКАЧ ОСЬ.	JAND	Y 516	ит. РИЗ	TIC, SOFT	, TR. ora	ANICS	Sheet	 of	M.0 4

DOL		-09	area barde	e Hanadan Kurenderan I	her tase in marchine	Marine and the state of the state	r (er sårette som	an a			GB	- 00	-08	
Project	Nam	ne: Strat	ford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site: C	aus	eway	T	Project	No.:	50796-'	1032
Client N	Name	: CBDC	MO		Log	iged By	: F.L.M.L.)	Ch	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation			Minares - Columbor
Drilling	Cont	Eractor: Earth E	Explo	oratio	n, Inc				Rig Type: BARGE	Start Dat /0 -13	:e: 7 <i>-00</i>	Finis	h Date: <i>18 - C</i>)0
Drilling	Meth	nod: Drive a	ind V	Vash						Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches
Overbu	ırden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depth:	: [[Depth to Groundwa /	ater/Date:	Wel	l:]	Boring	j:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			V Des	isual Classificatior cription and Rema	n Irks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
20 21 -		5-9	X	W. D. H.	<1	OLIV	е скач зап Сарыса, шое	174 20	SILT, PLASTIC,	SOFT, TRA	сE			
-22 - 23 -		5-10		W. 0.	41	5,4m	е аз Авр	vE						
24- 25 —		5-11	\mathbf{X}	н. V. 0.	<1	5411	е А.З. АВО	ve						
26 - 27 -		5-12	$\overline{\mathbf{X}}$	<u></u>		SILT	T. Chaty Le	ense	(3°) AT 27.5	(SOPT)	PLASTIC.			
28 - 39 -		5-13	X	<i>ш</i> , 0. <i>Н</i> ,	4	OLIV	E BROWN	51 <i>1-</i> 7 E Pë	. БОГТ, РЦАЗТИ NT/029Анисз-	trace	COALSE	OL		
35 - 31 -		5-14	X	W. 0. it.	<1	SAN	TE AS ABOU	é, B	NT WY MODE PEA	T		OL		
32 · 33 ·	-	575	X	W. 0. H.	41	Bou	N SILT, PE.	ΑT,	SOPT, PLASTIC.			DL		м, О
34 35 -		5-16		W. 0. H.	<1	SAM	Е ль Abovê	. F	SANID NOTED IN	TIP OF SP	oon	OL		
36 .	-	F-3				MAYU. REM	MUM READIN OLDED STREA	іў = Эстн	15 ИЗІNG 5л =7	NALL VAN	Ę			TUBE
39		P-2			10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	2' P	ECOVERY	Ģ	TOP = 0.3 RE	m (2.06) = 0.	2	 Sheet	2 of 4	Μ, +

Bori	ng I	-og									G	8-00	- 08	
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Plant	Site: C	aus	seway		Project	No.:	50796-	1032
Client N	ame	: CBDC	:OM		Log	ged By: 🕂	(M.L.)	Ch	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling	Cont	ractor:	Evel	- rotio	- 1	~			Rig Type:	Start Dat	te:	Finis	h Date	:
			expid	oratio	n, m	J.			BARGE	10-1-		10	- 18-0	<u> </u>
Drilling	weth	loo: Drive a	and V	Nash							(Inches)	Core	i Size: (I	nche
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth: To	tal Depth:		Depth to Groundwa	ter/Date:	Wei	l •	Boring	a.
a state of the sta		•		na final na final da su da			64'		. /				X	y - 4
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			\ Des	/isual Classification	'ks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	l ah Tests
40 41 - 42 -		5-17	X	W.o.H. W.o.H. 9 10	9	40 ⁻ -41 41-41.5 41.5-42'	PEAT BLACK = GRAY F	BILT INE	Y CLAY , PLASTIC, S SAND. DENSE, SO	oi=T NE Si LT ₁ ,	M KACEOU 5	511		M
43-		5-18	X	1092	21	GRAY PI	NE SILT	1 5	SAND, DENSE, NO	N PLASTIC				G,/
44- 45		5-19	X	NA	NA	GRAY FI	NE SILT	7	SAND. Dénse, n.	m-p44577	e	5M		
48 -		5-20	X	4448	8	SAME A	IS ABOVE	ţr.	1/ TR. MED-TO-	C. SAND,				
49 -		5-21	X	W.D.H. W.J.H. 5 1	5	GRIY S Some	AND, F. F. GRAU	ινε ει,	-710-204,esE. Pool 51 LTY, NON-13143	nly GRADE TTC	ΞD, W/			
50 — 4 -		5-22	X			3.4ME, Post	43 .4Bo) -4 61040 0	1 2 , 9,	To 51.5. THEN B V. Dense . GRAVEL	LOWN SAN IS FINE-TO	ыр GRANG 5- солне <i>s</i> е,	L.		
		5-23	\mathbb{X}	15 22 54 55	76	BROWN	GAVELL	45	AND: POORLY GRAD)ЕД, 50,41Е	SILT,	SP		
55 -		5-24	X	17 25 35 40	60	BROWN SILT,	GRAVELU	y 5,	wis, Bense, Poor	lly GRADE	Д; 50мЕ	SP		
57 -		5-25	X	NA	NA	BROUSN	<u> Á</u> RAVELI	y :	SAND. DENSE, PO	окц с, ят	ded.	SP	e.	
58-	1	5-26	\mathbb{N}	NA	NA	GRAVEL	UY SAND	, l	Dense, poorly 41	erded, so	ME SUT.	SP		
1 54-	1		$ \wedge$									sheet	3 of 4	1

- Day	ing i	∽પ્સ	in top offers too		- Series and series to the			a North Constant and an	an a string of the string of the			66	3-00	>-08	
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	jine Pla	int Si	te: Ca	useway			Project	No.:	50796-	
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM		Log	gged By	: J.LIM	I.L.) (By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc	c.	1992 201 201 201 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		Rig T	ype: BARGE	Start Dat	e: 7- <i>0</i> 0	Finis 10-	h Date: -18-00)
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash							Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	
Overbu	ırden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total D 64	epth:	Depth	to Groundy /	vater/Date:	Wel	l:	Boring	101
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			D	Visual	Classification on and Rem	on Jarks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	
60 61 -		5-27	X	23 32 69 46	101	SAY	ne As	480	VÉ				SP		
63 -		5-28	X	40 41 576	92	5.Ar	në As	A30	VË						
						B. 0.	В. (Д	64							
												5	Sheet	4 of	

Borii	ng L	_og									Borir GA	ng No. 3 <i>00</i>	: - 08	A
Project	Nam	e: Strat	ford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt Site:	Cau	seway		Project	No.: 5	60796- ⁻	1032
Client N	ame	CBDC	OM		Log	iged By	: T.L./M.L.	С	hecked By:	Ground	Elevation:		•	
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth E	Explo	ratio	n, Inc).			Rig Type: .ATV	Start Dat //- 9	ie: 1- <i>0</i> 0	Finisł	n Date: <i>9 - 0</i> 0	>
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	nd W	/ash	A	RR	TARY W,	/ 4	SPOONS	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (II	nches)
Overbui	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depti 18.5	h:	Depth to Groundwa /	iter/Date:	Wel	1:	Boring	:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classification scription and Rema	rks		- USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
1 - 2 - 3 - 4 - 5 - 7 - 8 - 9 - 10 -				7		æ d An	елие 3° 5р Fill - Br	ς τ τ τ τ ε (ε	USING 300 Lb. hm	nmēr L, etc.		511F		
11 - 12 - 13 - 14 - 15 - 16 - 17 - 18 -		5-1 S-2 2 ¹³ 30000 S-3		2147 5576 5232	38 12 5	ALL NO DRILL AT I	FILL - SLAC SAMPLING T RETURN - T. LER THINKS H. (ANT C	ip is in the second sec	sh, concrete, etc. 5 PF Spon.N HAS SILT T/FILL CONTACT AT 16 SAmples below this	ON SHOE 	, UG STUCK Leto CAUC	ML.		
19 20 W20000	80(a)					B	, U, B, (a) /	8.5	-	ry and south to be a statement	Ha	Sheet ardir	/ of ng ES	/ E

Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt S	Site: Ca	aus	eway		Project	No.:	50796-	103
Client N	lame	: CBDC	COM		Log	ged By	:(T.L)	M.L.	Ch	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation			
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	ratio	n, Inc).				Rig Type: ATV	Start Dat /1-5	te: 7 -02	Finis (h Date: /- 7 -0.	0
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive (and V	Vash	- A	IR P	'o Mre	y w/	Ś	Spoons	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nch
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total §	Depth:	1	Depth to Groundw /	ater/Date:	Wel	l:]	Boring	J:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			[V Des	isual Classification cription and Rema	n arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	1 1. 7 71.
1 -		5-1	X			GRAY Bi To	TO DE Acte of The o	L. GRAY DRGANIC AZANIC	F. 54 51	f MEN. SAND, Tr. ND @ bottom of N. FILL	C.SAND I Spoon, Fu	.cl ceior-	Å		
3 -		5-2	X				NO	RECOVE	ERY				- 1114-		
5 -		5-3	X			Fill Si	- 70 ~ LT, T	- 5.5 R. F.B	ens Ens	Tten NATIVE DI , tr. shells , SL	phasic.	NICACEOUS			N
6 - 7 - 8		5-4	X			51L1 Tr	- (AS) C. SA	ABOUE) NB	m	ICACEOUS, NON- P	mane, No	N-ÖrAN1,14	5 ML		
-						B.	U.B.	08		an barranan in an san an fallan ng ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an					
						Col A Go	lected T Deb T REi	GEON pth J ADNG o	0.R ∼ F	DATA AFTER 1 5.8 USING MI 8.0, 76.7 US	tole Comp EDIUM VAN ut VANE.	heted E,			
										·					
	-														
	4											5	Sheet	/ of	 (

Boring I	_og								Borir	ng No.	:	
Proiect Nam	e: Strat	ford Arn	ny Ena	ine Pla	nt Site:	Cau	seway	in and a star of the second second Second second	Project	No.: 5	0796-1	032
Client Name	: CBDC	OM	Log	ged By:	T.L.M.L.	<u>(</u>) C	hecked By:	Ground	Elevation:		n an	
Drilling Cont	ractor: Earth E	xplorati	on, Inc				Rig Type: Barece	Start Dat	ie: 200	Finish 10	n Date: ? -17-0	0
Drilling Meth	od: Drive a	nd Wasl	h					Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (Iı	nches)
Overburden	Depth:	Rock/R	lefusal	Depth:	Total Dep 64	oth:	Depth to Groundwa /	ater/Date:	Wel	l:	Boring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classification	rks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
2 - 3 - 4 - 5 - 4 - 7 - 8 -	5-1 0,4 0,0 5-5	іш. 	. <1 	No 1 BLACK BLACK BLACK AS A AS A	RECOVERY K MUCK DRY SOFT 2 TO V. DAG NOES NOT 11.FUK OF HEONE. ABOVE. C	AND E ST UK GI STICH DOR. SL. DRCJA	SILT. VERY HIGH = TOKY PID=2 RAY ORGANIC SILT TO FINGERS WHEN PID=7 TOMOD. PLASTIC PID=5 NIC SILT. SL./N	MICACE SQUEEZED	DOR, ₹015 - 0,5TRank(577C,	OL OL		
9- 10 11-	2.0 13.0 5-6 3.00 2,00 2,00	0. DR4U W- D. DR4U	UR <1	TR M As J TR D	, REEDS HCACEDUS HOWE W/ L. SIHELS DOR	ё V. , Su SL. , SL	THIN & V. SHORT , LFUR ODOR PID = MOLE PLANT FIBE ./MOLS. PLASTIC, PID = 7	PLANT FIL 5 RS. TR. STRONG S	BERS Sect. Sulfur	OL-		
12 - 13 - i4 -	5-12/17	и. д. Дали Ш.	icon <1	AS A	NBOUE - SI Rh GRAY	LIGH ORCA	TLY MORE DENSE MIC SILT. SL/MOD.	PLASTIC,	MICACEOUS	OL		
15	8.0 3.0 F-1	DR.11	e <1	ті МАУ ВСМ	Р. РЦАЙТ 1.МИ.М ЦЕ 04-ДЕЙ 57К	FIBE ADINI LENGT	RS, STRONG SULFPI $G = 36USINGH = 3$	IR ODOR. D≈2 LARGE V	ANE			M
19- 20 W2000080(a)	P-1			2' 1 451.NG	RECOVERU I LARGE VAN	É	6. ТОР = 3 REMO 6 ВПам=5.5 REMO	LDED = 0, LDED = 1.2		Sheet ardir	l of ng ES	

ect I	Nam	e: Strat	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	Int	Site: C	ause	eway		Project	: No.: {	50796-	103
nt Na	ame	: CBDC	:OM		Log	ged By		JM.L.	Che	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation	•		
ng (Cont	ractor:								Rig Type:	Start Da	ite:	Finis	h Date	•
		Earth E	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).	16-6-0000000			BARGE	10-1	2-00	10	-17-0	9
ng N	<i>lleth</i>	od:									Casing	Size:	Core	Size:	
		Drive a		wasn							4.0	(Inches)	L	(1	ncņ
bur	den	Depth:	Ro	ск/ке	tusai	Deptn:	lota	64		eptn to Ground /	water/Date:		:] 	Boring	ן: רי−−
Below Ground Surrace	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6" THEF	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)				Vi Desc	sual Classificati cription and Ren	on narks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tooto
.1		5-9	X	W. D. Deme	. <1	BLAQ M	K-TU ICAC	-V. Die. CEOUS, T	GRA R. P	Y ORGANIC SIL ANT FIBERS, PID =	.T. NON-P STRONG SU 1.9	LFUR DDOG	201		G,1
2- 3-	-	5-10	\mathbf{V}	W. 0,	4	AS W	АВО1 00ДУ	IE, POS STEMS	551B	LY FIRMER W L. PLANT FIBER	r TR. UNI R PID=4	DECOM POSE	OL		
4-		F2		PRILLET		МАН <i>REM</i>	(MU) 10601	m Reai ED STRE	DING ENGT	= 51.5 U 51M H = 9	4 LARGE 1	ANE			M
К – 17 – К		P-2		0	0.7	1.6 X	CECO GEO	VERY WOR DA	4774	WOOD COR.	E AT BOTT	0M			M Tur P
19-		5-11 2:20	X	W. Dr. Dr.Wat	4	V. DA SL	рк , Ри	BRN, O HSTIC, D	RG,4 ICn 50	NIC SILT. TR 2, STRONG SALL	- ORGANIC FUR ODOR	FIBER	OL		
3i -		5-12-	X	W. D. DKILLO	21	AS AC 1.4.	DOVE MINA WOD	Ват Мо Ае ог V. 1 О Ріесс	ње с F. 5А ; - В	SANDIER AT BO ND TR. TO LATLE ECOMING STIFF	er ER	V. THIN HBER,	OL	RT	
35 - 34 -		F-3				REM	MUN OLDE	n keajia 17) strei	NG = NGTH	42 451N	G LARGE V	ANE		105 STA	N
36 -	ana a	5-13		W.J.D. 22 23 23	9	ATTEN TUOK LOOSE DDO	NPTE E SP I, TR NR , C	D SHEL IOON INS FINES; C LEAN,	84 7 17E.45 1.5AN	MBE - Nº REC) - OLIVE GRAJ D/GRAVEL LENSE (WERY-DI F. SAND, V 2-35,5. Am	0 NOT DPE; WEUL SART - 2 ^{°°} , ND	√ ∞5P	NNK SW	27 11
デ 37 - 38 -		5-14		365	9	OUVE OF At	TO C. LUV	LIGHT G. BAND h 11400	ray 1/ T	SAND. FINE (R. GRAVEL, V. 1	uell Solited	5 (1" 3 1.5") NON-PLAST) nc SP	Run	2
39-		5-15	\mathbb{N}	14	14	AS,	ABOV	ie wy 1	1-1Ay	ER OF C. SAND) .		<u>BP</u>) of	
	act I Nr ng Nr Pelow Plonut Plantage Int ng Nr ng Nr Int ng Nr Nr Int Nr Nr Int	Ar Name Ing Cont Ing Meth Ing Cont Ing Cont Ing Cont Ing Meth Ing Cont Ing Con	ect Name: Strat at Name: CBDC ng Contractor: Earth E ng Method: Drive a rburden Depth: Casing Blows/Loot Casing Blows/Loot Casing Blows/Loot Casing Blows/Loot F - 2 F - 1 F - 2 F - 2 F - 3 F	ect Name: Stratford at Name: CBDCOM ng Contractor: Earth Explo- ng Method: Drive and V rburden Depth: Rc casing Blows/Loot rburden School casing Blows/Loot rburden Depth: Rc casing Blows/Loot Gasing Blows/Loot $Gasing Blows/Loot Gasing Blows/Loot $	ect Name: Stratford Army at Name: CBDCOM ng Contractor: Earth Exploration ng Method: Drive and Wash rburden Depth: Rock/Re e-u- rburden Johns (Leet) Casing Blows/Loot rburden Depth: Rock/Re e-u- s-	ect Name: Stratford Army EnglishLogInt Name: CBDCOMIng Contractor:Earth Exploration, IndIng Method:Drive and Washrourd colspan="2">Ing Method:Ing Method:Ing Ing Ing Ing Method:Ing Ing Ing Method:Ing Ing Ing Method:Ing Ing Ing Ing Method:Ing Ing Ing Ing Method:<	ect Name: Stratford Army Engine PlaLogged Byng Contractor:Earth Exploration, Inc.Ing Method:Drive and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:(100-Jismi [Blows](100-Jismi [Blows]One of the second of the secon	ect Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantLogged By: T.I.Ing Contractor:Earth Exploration, Inc.Ing Method:Drive and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:TotIng Method:Drive and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:TotIng Method:Drive and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:TotIng Method:Solution SignationIng Method:Ing M	Sect Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantSite: CIt Name: CBDCOMLogged By: TLML.ng Contractor:Earth Exploration, Inc.Ing Method:Drive and Washround WashMark Colspan="2">Round WashRound Wash	ect Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantSite: Causetit Name: CBDCOMLogged By TLML. Cheng Contractor:Earth Exploration, Inc.Ing Method:Drive and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Preprinttotal Preprinttotal Preprinttotal PreprintTotal P	act Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantSite: CausewayLogged By T.L.M.Checked By:ng Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc.Rig Type: BAACEmg Method: Drive and WashTotal Depth:Dot of Colspan="2">Other and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to GroundOther and Washrburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to GroundOther and Washrburden Depth:Total Depth:Depth to GroundOther and WashOther and WashVisual ClassificatiDepth to GroundMathematication Depth:Other and WashVisual ClassificationDepth to GroundMathematication Depth:Depth to GroundMathematication Depth:Depth to GroundMathematication Depth:Dep	act Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantSite: Causewaytt Name: CBDCOMLogged By TLMt.Checked By:Groundng Contractor:Earth Exploration, Inc.Rig Type:Start Dang Method:Drive and Wash4.0rburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:iburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:iburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:iburden Depth:Rock/Refusal Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:iburden Depth:Rock/RefusalBlack -TO-V. Dk. GRAY ORGANIC SULT. NON-Piburden Depth:Rock/RefusalRock/Refusaliburden Depth:Rock/RefusalRock/Refusaliburden Depth:Rock/RefusalRock/Refusaliburden Depth:Rock/RefusalRock/Refusaliburden Depth:Rock/RefusalRefusal	act Name: Stratford Army Engine Plant Site: Causeway Project It Name: CBDCOM Logged By T. Juk. Checked By: Ground Elevation ng Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc. Rig Type: Start Date: $10 - (2 - oc)$ ng Method: Drive and Wash Casing Size: 4.0 (Inches) rburden Depth: Rock/Refusal Depth: Total Depth: Depth to Groundwater/Date: Weil opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks opping Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks Image: Start Gamma and Remarks	ext Name: Stratford Army Engine PlantSite: CausewayProject No.: 1It Name: CBDCOMLogged By (T.) M.C.Checked By:Ground Elevation:Ing Contractor:Earth Exploration, Inc.Rig Type:Start Date:Ing Method:Drive and WashCasing Size:CoreDrive and WashTotal Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Ing Method:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Ing Method:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Method:Rock/Refusal Depth:Total Depth:Depth to Groundwater/Date:Well:Ing Method:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Nethod:Ing Method:Ing Nethod:Ing N	ext Name: Stratford Army Engine Plant Site: Causeway Project No.: 50796- th Name: CBDCOM Logged By (TL)ML Checked By: Ground Elevation: Ing Contractor: Earth Exploration, Inc. Rig Type: Start Date: Inor 10 - 12 - 00 Finish Date: Drive and Wash Casing Size: Contractor: Inor 10 - 12 - 00 Finish Date: Drive and Wash Casing Size: Contractor: Inor 10 - 12 - 00 Inor 10 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 -

Bori	ng l	−og												Bor	ing No B- D	.: 2- <i>0</i> 9		
Project	Nam	e: Stra	tford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	int	Site: (Caus	seway				Projec	t No.:	50796-	1032	
Client N	lame	: CBDC	OM		Log	ged By	: T/	(M.L.)	Ch	ecked	By:		Ground	Elevatior	ו:			
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc					Rig Ty BA	ре: <i>RGÉ</i>	5	Start Dat 10-1	e: Ə <i>-00</i>	Finis	h Date - <i>1</i> 7- <i>0</i>	: 0	
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and V	Vash					**********	ggggy of Frank Decision Person			Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches)	
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Tota	Depth	n:	Depth t	o Groundv /	wate	er/Date:	We		Boring	g:	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)	news fo gest curring read		Wywerby S d Charte	\ Des	/isual C scriptior	lassificatio and Rem	on nark	S		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests	
40 41 -		5-16	X	85814	13	NO F-Ta PA	RECO	OVERY SAND DIALA	1 -T. OVE	RIED Ø RGRAVI	KGAIN -G ELLY F. SAW	ОТ 1D, h	0.5 RE V TR. SIL	TURN - T NON -	. SP		W'O	42
43 -		5-17	X	18 19 23	42	NO	P.E.C.	væy	(IM. Loi ONSW	INS BURY 1RD	10	43 IFR0,1	42)				
44- 45 —		5-18	X	24 23 22 27	45	S.An Si	10 - 17.	PINE	סקי	COAR:	E - Wh.	te.	C.R.A.V EL	IN TIPU	# SP			
46- 47-		5-19	X	33 38 24	64	PIEC GRA	e of y F.	GRAVI TOC. 5	ег р 5алс	i Son	TED GOOD NE GRAVO	1251 21-	covery.	· OLIVE	Gp			
49 -		5-20	X	36 44 53 19	97	FINE	: SAN. . PLA	D. 50. MC.	мЕ,	med. C	. Sand, Sil	LT.	OLIVEC	ікач,	SP			
50 -		5-21		120 84 107	191	No	REC	overy	/									
53.						Сон Со	ILD N BBLE	ют 0 : 0В-	s-LLE STILL	CTION	mple D	din E	TO GRA	vel/				
54 · 55 -		5-22	X	87 78 61 55	139	No	REC	wery										
57		5-23		74 133	1	pu s Ci	6HING 27155	Roc Brck	le A IN	HteHD Spuon.	0F 5 <i>9001</i>	N -	GRAY SI	LT				
58 59	-	5-24		9 16 19 15	35	G RA SI	4 511 AND,	-TY F. TR. C	5An . 5/	VD. SL AND .	-14HTLY Dense	ріл-	stic, TR.	MED.	5/v Sheet	3 of	4	
160 W20000	80(a)		<u></u>	1 20		.1					aangawa Baalan daga daga daga daga daga daga daga da			H	ardii	ng ES	SE	1

Project	Nam	e: Strat	ford	Army	/ Eng	ine Pla	nt	Site: Ca	ause	way			Project	No.:	50796 <i>-</i> '	10
Client N	lame	: CBDC	OM	de andréa d'Aliman	Log	iged By	: J.L	M.L.	Che	cked By:		Ground	Elevation			-
Drilling	Cont	ractor:	<u>4484078583000000</u>	ngeneeren teren de die Statio				A second design of the second		Rig Type:		Start Dat	e:	Finis	h Date:	
		Earth B	Explo	oratio	n, Inc	<u>}.</u>		and the second secon		BAR.	GE	10 - 12	2-00	10-	- 17-0	2
Drilling	Meth	iod: Drive a	ind V	Vash		-						Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (II	าต
Overbu	ırden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Tota (al Depth:	D	epth to G	roundwa /	iter/Date:	Wel	l:	Boring	:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			ſ	Vi: Desc	sual Class ription an	sification d Rema	ŕks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	
60 61 -		5-25	X	27 24 36 40	60	G RAY Ног	SIC LDS D	T. TR. F WATER	- 5x - R	ND; SLIG EDDI SH L	HTLY PL ENSES :	ASTIC, D. AT BOTTOM	ENSE, n	ML		
62 -		5-26	X	31 47 46 58	93	GRAY	Sil	T. TR.	F.	TO C. SA/	∨D _j Der	se, sl. f	LASTIC	M2_		
- 44		-	/			B. O.	В.	a 64	1							
-																
-				e.												
-	-											1997 - L				
													5	Sheet	4 of 4	<u> </u> +

Project	Nor	o: Strai	ford	Arm		ino Plan	t Site	Cau	saway		Project	No : !	50796-	<u></u> 1032
Client N	Jame	: CBDC	COM	Anny		aed By:	T.L./M.L.		hecked By:	Ground	Elevation	:		
Drilling	Cont	ractor: Earth I	Explo	oratio	n, Inc).		L	Rig Type:	Start Dat /1-9-	te: - 25	Finisl //	h Date: - <i>8 - 0</i> 0	2
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	and-V	Vash-	į	AIR R	OTARY	w/	Speans	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (I	nches)
Overbu	Irden	Depth:	Ro	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Total Depti /1.ら	h:	Depth to Groundv /	vater/Date:	Wel	l:]	Boring] :
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface	Casing Blows/Foot	Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet)	Sample Type	SPT Blows/6"	SPT-N (Blows/Foot)			De	Visual Classification scription and Rem	on arks		USCS Group Symbol	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests
1 -						PUSHE	ED CASIA	JG 7	D 5.5 W/ OUT	SAMPLING	j	Å		
2 - 3 - 4 - 5 - 7 - 8 - 9 - 10 - 11 -		5-1 5-2 5-3			2	NO BLACE LITE OLIV NON NO	RÈCOVER LE SHELL LE SHELL PHASTIC, RECOVERL	1 54 1.5, - V.F. 72 .	TOO LOOSE 7 WD 2 SILT. TR. REEDS (FILL) W SAND 2 SILT SHELLS, TR. PIBL	с. Зача, Авгирт ((~ 91) ПКЗ.	TR-GRAVE	W FILL TO MIKED	~q'	M
12						B. B BL FIL 9' GEON GOT	0.В. С юшь F01 L IS M , ННЕЛ С JOR D.4: 4.6	11 R 3 17E1 CLEA	1.5 3" Spoon USING D W/ NATIVE D W NATIVE SOILS 4T ~ 10,3 bgs	3056. h. Eposits Tu Вегош Пн. W/ harege	tmmer Approx, is Denth VANE	Sheet	/ of	

Boring Log								Boriı G	ng No. B-0a	: 0 - 09	в
Project Name: Strat	ford Army	/ Engi	ne Plant	Site:	Caus	seway		Project	: No.: 5	50796-1	032
Client Name: CBDC	OM	Logo	ged By:(T.I	M.L.	Ch	ecked By:	Ground	Elevation	:		
Drilling Contractor: Earth E	Exploratio	n, Inc.	1			Rig Type: A∕T√.	Start Dat /1 - 8	:e: - <i>0:</i> 9	Finisl //	n Date: - <i>%-0c</i>	,
Drilling Method: Drive a	nd Was h	An	R ROTARY	w/ =	5 <i>00</i> 0	ns	Casing S 4.0	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (Ir	nches)
Overburden Depth:	Rock/Re	fusal C	Depth: Tot	al Dept	h:	Depth to Groundwa /	ter/Date:	Wel	1:]	Boring	
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet) SPT Blows/Foot) SPT Blows/Foot) SPT Blows/Foot) SPT Blows/Foot) SPT Blows/Foot) Notes On Notes On Drilling Lab Tests										Lab Tests	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $											

Borii	ng L	.og											Borin G	ng No. B <i>-0</i>	: 0-10°	
Project	Nam	e: Straf	ford	Army	r Eng	ine Pla	nt	Site: (Cau	seway			Project	No.:	50796-'	032
Client N	ame:	CBDC	OM		Log	iged By	: T. I	/M.L.	С	necked By:		Ground	Elevation			
Drilling (Cont	ractor:								Rig Type:		Start Dat	e:	Finis	n Date:	
alay mananagarasan (si ta) canang	agamenta de Primero	Earth E	Explo	ratio	n, Inc					ATV		11-9	-00	1	-9-00	
Drilling	Meth	od: Drive a	md-W	/as h	A	R RO	TAR	4 -N	0 5	FOONS		Casing 8	Size: (Inches)	Core	Size: (li	nches)
Overbu	rden	Depth:	Roo	ck/Re	fusal	Depth:	Tot	al Depti	h:	Depth to Groun	dwa [:] /	ter/Date:	Wel	l:]	Boring	:
Depth (feet) Below Ground Surface Casing Blows/Foot Sampling No. & Pene- tration/Recovery (Feet) SPT Blows/6" SPT Blows/6" SPT Blows/6" SPT Blows/6" SPT Blows/6" LISCS Group Symbol									 USCS Group Symbol 	Notes On Drilling	Lab Tests					
- 2 -		5-1	X			Push	ED	3" Spu	- נים	ALL FILL	BIT	RELOU	12-			
3 - 4 - 5 - 6 -						Hit Out Hit Siv	501 oF br T3.	-1D RE it @~ rek Mi CAU	515 3. ick 5011	TANCE AT 3'- 2'. (2 5.8' by s. .5 AT 6.5' by:	- Сол .Ан 5	screte? 56.5,1	- Thên	MIXE MIXE		
7 - - - - - - -						B.	D. ī	3. @	6.5	51				ML		
W20000													- // Ha	Sheet ardi	l of ng ES	

FIELD SHEAR TEST RESULTS

Harding ESE



Peak = 950 psf@ 19% Remoulded = 340 psf 590 = 650psf End Straight Line = 780psf

OK D

Boring ID	GB-00-02	Elevation	= 9.8		Project:	SAEP Causev	vay	
Bottom of V	ane Depth, π bg	S	19.5					
Elevation	n = - + + +	MOL		Estimated (Overburden p	oressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in]		K =	k =	·
	Length	6.625 in			Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	Width	2.5 in			Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Tapered	Tapered		l	Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.56	
	K =	2.59 AC	cker					
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Shear	Fan 6.2	Fan 6.3	Ean 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
5	0.0873	5.56%	11	341.88	259.59	335.24	314.21	
10	0.1745	11.12%	17	528.36	401.19	518.10	485.60	
15	0.2618	16.68%	20	621.60	471.99	609.52	571.30	
20	0.3491	22.23%	22	683.76	519.19	670.48	628.43	
25	0.4303	21.19%	23	714.84	542.79	700.95	656 99	
35	0.5230	38.91%	23	714.84	542.79	700.95	656.99	
40	0.6981	44.47%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
45	0.7854	50.03%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
50	0.8727	55.58%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
55	0.9599	61.14%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
60	1.0472	66.70%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
			1	0.00	070.70	1 I	4:00	
Remoulded	strength 59	0	•	9:00			1.00	
4	. 800	/	P					
	3 000		V					
2	700 ++		1 1			~ x x +		
	° 600 +		×					
	5 500							
ΰ	5 500 + +	T I						
100	₹ 400 ++							
4	200							
0 7		7						
	200 + 🎢							
	5 0 x	<u> </u>		4				
	0%	20)%	409	%	60%	80%	100%
				S	train (perc	ent)		
	Acker	- Eqn	6.2	— ≜ — Eqn	6.3 ~×	— Eqn 6.4	- Remoule	led strength
	Dont-	- 71000	F @	28%	- <u>-</u>			n gan yanga kanan ka
	Prun-	. 110 ps	I C DOR	1 2010				a ad
	nema	Juided:	= 200	Par				OF
	570 =	: 320 f	2s+		* • •	C		
	End	Straid	nt L	ine	= 460,	05t		
			1		B			

Boring ID	GB-00-02				Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	
Bottom of V	/ane Depth, f	t bgs	23.5					
Elevation	(= - f4	msl						
	•		E	Estimated (Overburden	pressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in				K =	k =	
	Length	9.25 in			Eqn 6.2	0.12	8.00	
	Width	3.625 in			Egn 6.3	0.10	10.00	
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered			Egn 6.4	0.11	9.35	
	k =	0.905 Ack	er	1				
	moment ar	12 inch	es					
Degrees	Radians	Strain F	orce	Shear	Ean 6.2	Egn 6.3	Ean 6.4	
0000	0 0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
5	0.0873	5 56%	8	86.88	64.04	79.97	74 83	
10	0 1745	11 12%	38	412 68	304 18	379.87	355 43	
10	0.2618	16 68%	61	662.46	488 29	08 000	570 57	
20	0.2010	22 23%	80	868.80	640.20	799 74	748 28	
25	0.4363	27 79%	an	977 40	720 42	899.70	841 82	
20	0.5236	27.75%	91	988.26	728.42	909.70	851 17	
35	0.0200	38 01%	80	966 54	712 /2	880.71	832 46	
40	0.6081	11 1704	85	023 10	680.40	840.72	705 05	
40	0.0901	44.47 %	00	923.10	664 30	049.72 820.73	776 34	
40	0.7004	50.03%	03	901.30	640.39	029.73	740.04	
50	0.0727	55.56%	00	000.00	040.37	199.74	140.20	
			I		1		I	
				00.00	047.00		4.00	
Remoulde	a strengtn	r (D		20.00	217.20	psr	1.00	
r		5%						
	1200	v	/					
4				P				
	ž							
<u>۽</u>	j 1000 🕂		10	Vo o				
	2							
	800 +		1 A	XX	X			
1	5							
1		1						
ļ		MZ-/						
1	5							
7	າ 400 🕂 –	X						
	200							
	5 🔔							
	0 🐲	/					·	uden and a second and a second and a second as a s
	0%	20)%	40%	6	60%	80%	100%
						0		
				St	rain (perc	ent)		
	Acker –	🖷 — Eqn 6.2	<u></u>	- Eqn 6.3	~~~ [Eqn 6.4	- 🖬 Rem	oulded strength
]
Penv-		= 990	DOSFI	2 20%				
TEAK-								or GP
KEMOU	LDED	= 220	PSt					V
50.		= 200	DSF					
5100	. 1.	100	NºC -					
ENDJ	TEA16HT LIK	ne - 900	PT					

•

Boring ID	GB-00-02				Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	
Bottom of \	/ane Depth,	ft bgs	27.5					
Elevation	1=	(tms)						
		·		Estimated (Overburden	pressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in				K =	K =	
	Length	6.625 in			Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	vviain	2.5 IN			Eqn 6.3	0.03	29 56	
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered	.		Eqn 6.4	0.04	20.00	
	K – moment ar	2.09 ACK						
Degrees	Radians	Strain F		Shear	Fan 6.2	Egn 6.3	Fan 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
5	0.0873	5.56%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28.56	
10	0.1745	11.12%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
15	0.2618	16.68%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
20	0.3491	22.23%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
25	0.4363	27.79%	10	310.80	235.99	304.76	285.65	
30	0.5236	33.35%	21	652.68	495.59	640.00	599.86	
35	0.6109	38.91%	26	808.08	613.58	792.38	742.69	
40	0.6981	44.47%	29	901.32	684.38	883.81	828.38	
45	0.7854	50.03%	30	932.40	707.98	914.29	856.95	
50	0.8727	55.58%	30	932.40	707.98	914.29	856.95	
55	0.9599	61.14%	30	932.40		914.29	856.95	
00	1.0472	00.70%	30	932.40	107.90	914.29	650.95	
			1		I	1 1	l.	
Remoulde	d strenath			9.00	279.72	psf	1.00	
				/	P			
4	1000 T			тπ	TY I			
u S	<u> 900 </u>							
ې .	€ 800 <u> </u>				X			
	700							
Ů	5 600 +			R				
1	500 🕂							
4	400							
0			L L	N				
	<u>5</u> 300 +		L Z					
	200 +							
7	∎ 100 ⊥							
<u>د</u> سر	5 100							
	0 👺		+-/					
	0%	. 20	D%	40%	6	60%	80%	100%
				St	rain (norc	ent)		
				51	ian (perc	entj		
						= 0.4	W	
/	Acker -	Eqn 6.2	&	- Eqn 6.3	~~	Eqn 6.4	- Rem	ioulded strength
	0	. C7A	6	1 × 9, 1				
	rea	K = 430	SA A	C010 C				
	Resi	dval=2	20				(in))
	590	- 300					OK (C)	/
	210	- L.L. 4	2=	700			-	
	Stra	19"1 -1"	~					

Boring ID Bottom of V	GB-00-02 Vane Depth, f	<u>Elevatinc</u> : tbgs	<u> ზ.წ</u> 37.5		Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	ngan pana mangana kana mangana mangana kana kana mangana kana kana mangana kana kana kana kana kana kana kan	Martin Construction Construction
Elevation.	, - <u>ŗ</u> .	MSL	_						_
., .		0.75	E	Estimated (Overburden	pressure =		Ĩ	psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in			F	K =	k =		
	Length	6.625 In			Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60		
	Width	2.5 In			Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48		
			•	1	Eqn 0.4	0.04	20.00		
	n – moment ar	2.09 ACKEI	6						
Dogroop	Radians	Strain For		Shoor	Eap 6.2	Eap 63	Ean 6.4		
Degrees	0 0000				0.00	0.00	0.00		
5	0.0000	5 56%		0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		
10	0.1745	11 12%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28 56		
10	0.1743	16.68%	2	01.00	70.80	01 / 3	20.00		
20	0.2010	22 2306	3	93.24	70.80	91.43	85.69		
20	0.3491	22.23 /0	5	155 10	118.00	91.43	142.92		
20	0.4303	21.13/0	5	155.40	112.00	152.00	142.02		
30 25	0.0200	38 01%	6	196 10	1/1 60	102.00	171 20		
00 10	0.0109	JU. 3170	6	100.40	1/1 60	102.00	171 20		
40 1 =	0.0301	44.41 70 50 030/	6	100.40	141.00	102.00	171 20		
40	0.1004	55 599/		100.40	141.00	102.00	171.39		
50	0.0727		0	100.40	141.00	102.00	57.40		
55	0.9599	01.14%	1 5	02.10	47.20	60.95	07.13		
60	1.0472	00.70%	1.5	40.02	35.40	45.71	42.85		
Remoulder	d strength 300 250 200 150 100 50 0	B		8.50 EST, LIKEL	264.18 Y PUSHED	psf OBJECT			
	0%	20%		40%		60%	80%	1	00%
				Str	ain (perce	ent)			
- • -	Acker —	🕿 — Eqn 6.2		– Eqn 6.3	-×- E	Eqn 6.4		oulded stre	ngth
Peak Remo	= ULDED = ;	90psf 260psf							or GE

Boring ID	GB-00-02	Elisintian =	Q.G		Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	
Bottom of \	Vane Depth,	ft bgs	39.5					
Ekvatim.	= f.	MUL		Cotimated (Overburden			nof
Vana siza	rod diam	0 75 in		Estimated	Overburden	K =	k =	hai
vane size	Length	6 625 in			Fan 6 2	0.04	23 60	
	Width	0.020 in 2.5 in			Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Tapere	Tanered			Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.56	
	k =	2.59 A	cker	I	2911011			
	moment ar	12 in	ches					
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	20	621.60	471.99	609.52	571.30	
5	0.0873	5.56%	30	932.40	707.98	914.29	856.95	
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	35	1087.80	825.98	1066.67	999.77	
10	0.1745	11.12%	40	1243.20	943.98	1219.05	1142.59	
15	0.2618	16.68%	42	1305.36	991.17	1280.00	1199.72	
20	0.3491	22.23%	41	1274.28	967.58	1249.52	1171.16	
25	0.4363	27.79%	40	1243.20	943.98	1219.05	1142.59	
30	0.5236	33.35%	39	1212.12	920.38	1188.57	1114.03	
35	0.6109	38.91%	37	1149.96	873.18	1127.62	1056.90	
40	0.6981	44.47%	37	1149.96	873.18	1127.62	1056.90	
45	0.7854	50.03%	36	1118.88	849.58	1097.14	1028.33	
50	0.8727	55.58%	30	1110.00	049.00	1097.14	1020.33	
00	0.9099	01.1470	30	1110.00	049.30	1037.14	1020.00	
Remoulde	d strength	5%		12.00	372.96	psf	1.00	
	1400 —		, 	<u> </u>				
2	<u> </u>	The *	× ×					
1				X	×			
2	5 1000 +							
Ĵ		F				8		
1								
i i	° €00⊥							
Ū	ō 000							
7	400	[[
	5 200 - H							
1								
	0							
	0%	, D	20%	.40%	6	60%	80%	100%
				St	rain (perc	ent)		
	Acker	≣ Eqn 6.2		— Eqn 6.3	X	Eqn 6.4		oulded strength
L		•						
	P-av.	- 1200 00	r Q I	-7 57				

PEAK: 1300 psf @ 17 % REMOULDED: 370 psf 5% = 800 psf END STRAIGHT LINE: 950 psf

Boring ID	GB-00-02	8.8ft 1	M51-		Project:	SAEP Caus	seway	<u></u>	
sottom of v	ane Depth, r	togs .		5 47.5		•			
. Iev ation	27 5			Estimated	Overburden	n pressure =			psf
ane size	rod diam	0.75	in	Louintatoa		K=	k =		F
	Length	6.625	in		Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60		
	Width	2.5	in		Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48		
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered			Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.56		
	k =	2.59	Acker		Prostanting and an and a state of the				
	moment ar	12	inches						
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4		
0	0.0000	0.00%		0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	1	9 590.52	448.39	579.05	542.73		
5	0.0873	5.56%	2	6 808.08	613.58	792.38	742.69		
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	3	1 963.48	731.58	944.76	885.51		
10	0.1745	11.12%	3	5 1087.80	825.98	1066.67	999.77		
15	0.2618	16.68%	3	8 1181.04	896.78	1158.10	1085.46		
20	0.3491	22.23%	4	1 1274.28	967.58	1249.52	1171.16		
25	0.4363	27.79%	4	2 1305.36	991.17	1280.00	1199.72		
30	0.5236	33.35%	4	2 1305.36	991.17	1280.00	1199.72		
35	0.6109	38.91%	4	3 1336.44	1014.77	1310.48	1228.29		
40	0.6981	44.47%	4	3 1336.44	1014.77	1310.48	1228.29		
45	0.7854	50.03%	4	3 1336.44	1014.77	1310.48	1228.29		
50	0.8727	55.58%	4	2 1305.36	991.17	1280.00	1199.72		
55	0.9599	61.14%	4	1 1274.28	967.58	1249.52	1171.16		
60	1.0472	66.70%	4	0 1243.20	943.98	1219.05	1142.59		
65	1.1345	72.26%	3	9 1212.12	920.38	1188.57	1114.03		
70	1.2217	77.82%	3	8 1181.04	896.78	1158.10	1085.46		
75	1.3090	83.38%	3	6 1118.88	849.58	1097.14	1028.33		
80	1.3963	88.93%	3	6 1118.88	849.58	1097.14	1028.33		
emouldec	l strength 1600	5%		13.00) 404.04	psf	1.00		
sf									
a	: 1400 🕂	+ + -							┝──┨
ath	1200				**				
u cu	, 1200 -		X			XXX			
tre	1000 -	1 BC	-						
ر د		X _							
eal	800 +								<u>├</u> ───┤
ų	CO0								
5	000	V							
ne	400								
la.									I T I
ld	200						+		+
5	~								
	U ##	,			.,	0000			1000
	0%		20%	40	%	60%	80%		100%
				S	train (nerc	cent)			
				0					
			•						
• A	cker -	Eqn 6	.2	▲ Eqn 6.3	~X~	Eqn 6.4	- Ren	ioulded s	trength
	PEAN	=	34n 46	Q 420	70				
	DEAN	J	100 20	۳ ت ۲	4 **				OK
	KEMOULDI	20 5 4	1010 (KSt						v
	50%	= (300 psf						
	Euro lass	. 15 1	2MD DSS						
	END JTEAL	art = 1							

Boring ID	GB-00-03	Elevation = 9	175	1	Project:	SAEP Causev	vay	
Bottom of V	ane Depin, it be	JS	17.5					
Eleva	riore = -	TNDL	I	Estimated C	Overburden p	ressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in		Γ		K =	k =	
	Length	6.625 in			Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	Width	2.5 in			Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Lapered		/or	L	Eqn 6.4	0.04	20.00	
	к = moment arm	2.59 Ac	hes					
Degrees	Radians	Strain I	Force	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	o	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	18	559.44	424.79	548.57	514.17	
5	0.0873	5.56%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	28	063 /8	731 58	000.00	885 51	
10	0.1743	13.90%	33	1025.64	778.78	1005.71	942.64	
15	0.2618	16.68%	. 33	1025.64	778.78	1005.71	942.64	
20	0.3491	22.23%	33	1025.64	778.78	1005.71	942.64	
25	0.4363	27.79%	33	1025.64	778.78	1005.71	942.64	
30	0.5236	33.35%	32	994.56	755.18	975.24	914.08	
35	0.6109	38.91%	30	932.40	707.98	914.29	828 38	
40	0.0901	44.4770	29	901.32	004.00	000.01	020.00	
							1.00	
Remoulded	l strength	6070		11.00	341.88	pst	1.00	
	·····	ρ						
	; 1200	*/	<u> </u>	TTT				
2	2							
Ę	1000							
				×				
	800 +							
0								
	g 600 + j							
10	5 100							
7	g 400 T							
	200							
1								
-		0	^	,	~		0.00/	4000/
	0%	2	0%	40	%	60%	80%	100%
				S	Strain (per	cent)		
						•		
	Acker		5.2	- A- Ean 6	5.3 - ×	- Ean 6.4		ded strength
						•		
0	¥		@ 111.0	57				•
EAR		1020 pst	@ 14	10				w (D)
0		bill ass						OK C
KENDULL	ED -	040 401						
500	- *	700 psf						
F (11115 -	* 1.11nC						
ENDUT	CHIGHTI	WHU USJ						
	. ^			. 1				

* verised from original estimate

Boring ID	GB-00-04 E	levation: l	1.2	Im	Project:	SAEP Causev	vay	
Bottom of V	ane Depth, ft bg	JS		17.5				
	Elevi	ation =	M	らレ Estimated (Overburden o	pressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in				K =	k =	•
	Length	6.625 in			Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	Width	2.5 in			Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Tapered	Tapered	_		Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.56	
	k =	2.59 Ac	ker					
	moment arm	12 inc	hes	Cheer	France O	Ean 6.2	Eaper	
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Snear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
25	0.0000	2.78%	8	248 64	188.80	243.81	228 52	
2.5	0.0430	5.56%	16	497 28	377 59	487.62	457.04	
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	21	652.68	495.59	640.00	599.86	
10	0.1745	11.12%	24	745.92	566.39	731.43	685.56	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	26	808.08	613.58	792.38	742.69	
15	0.2618	16.68%	27	839.16	637.18	822.86	771.25	
20	0.3491	22.23%	28	870.24	660.78	853.33	799.82	
25	0.4363	27.79%	28	870.24	660.78	853.33	799.82	
30	0.5236	33.35%	28	870.24	660.78	853.33	799.82	
35	0.6109	38.91%	28	870.24	660.78	853.33	799.82	
40	0.6981	44.47%	28	870.24	660.78	853.33	/99.82	
			i		I	1 1	1	
Remoulded	l strength			7.00	217.56	psf	1.00	
		5%						
	4000		P					
	ξ 1000 	<u>* 1/1</u>		T				
-	<u> </u>							
1	5 800 		x x	$ \bar{\mathbf{x}} \bar{\mathbf{x}} $	-			
2	₹ 700 ∔							
1								
1								
	g 500 -							
0	5 400 +							
7	r 300 + /	X						
	200 +							
	> 0聲──							manager and the second s
	0%	2	0%	40	%	60%	80%	100%
					strain (per	cent)		
						-		
		Eqn	6.2	— ≜ — Eqn (5.3 ~×	— Eqn 6.4	Remould	ed strength
0	- (anner 6	> 770	ກ.				
PEAK	- (UIUpst S		0				
D. MAN	INFD =	2700sf						
KENIOL								
5020	=	450psf						
STRAILS	HT LINE :	600psf						
Boring ID	GB-00-04	4.2.Ft	MSL		Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	
-------------	----------------	--------------------	-----------	------------------	------------------	------------	----------	---
Bottom of \	/ane Depth,	ft bgs	.26	25.5				
			e 2	FMSL				<i>.</i>
				Estimated (Overburden	pressure =		pst
Vane size	rod diam	0.75	in		- 00	K=	K =	
	Length	6.625	in 		Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	Width	2.5	in		Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Tapere	lapered	A	I	Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.50	
	K =	2.59	Acker					
D	moment ar	12 Otroin	Inches	Cheer	Ean 6.2	Eap 6.2	Eaper	
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Snear	Eqn 6.2		Eq11 0.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	12	404.04	306.70	306 10	371 34	
2.5	0.0430	2.10%	10	404.04	300.79	570.05	542 73	
5	0.0873	0.00%	19	390.52 714.94	440.39 542.70	700.05	656.00	
1.5	0.1309	0.34%	20	7 14.04	042.79	700.95	742 60	
10	0.1745	12 009/	20	000.00	627.19	192.30	771 25	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	21	039.10	707.10	022.00	956 05	
10	0.2010	10.00%	30	932.40	707.90	014.29	856 95	
20	0.0491	22.2370 27 700/	00 24	902.40	721 50	014.29	885 51	
25	0.4303	21.19%	רכ זיכ	903.48	721 50	011 76	885 51	
30	0.5230	20.30%	01 20	903.40	751.00	075 01	000.01	
30	0.0109	JO.31%	ა∠ იე	001 FE	755.10	975 94	914.00	
40	0.0901	50 02%	20	994.50	755.10	975.24	01/ 08	
40	0.7004	55.59%	31	994.00	731 58	975.24	885 51	
50	0.0727	00.00%	51	903.40	131.00	544.70	000.01	
				1		1 1		
Pomouldo	d strength			8.00	248 64	nsf	1 00	
(enouide	u su engai	<i>(</i>)		0.00	240.04	por	1.00	
		5%		ρ				
	1200 —							
4	ē l							
	± 1000 ⊥							
4				X	XX			
2			XX					
4		1 AXX						
U v						-		
	g 600 +							
5								
ט ד	400							
	200							
1								
-	5 /							
	0 🕮							adamana adamana da mana adamana adamana adamana adamana adamana adamana adamana adamana adama adama adama adama
	0%	, D	20%	40%	6	60%	80%	100%
				64	unin Inna	(ant)		
				51	rain (perc	ent)	1	
	Acker	- Eqn 6	.2 —	Eqn 6.3	~~	Eqn 6.4		oulded strength
			······					
Perr	5	991005f (938%					
()	ON S	are ne	6					
KEMOULI	24 P	250 43	it .					
50/2	5	550 PS						
n l		INAN OFF						
KNOUTER	16H1 -	(-9 000						



Boring ID	GB-00-04	6.2.ft M	<u>5L</u>		Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -
Bottom of \	/ane Depth, f	ft bgs	.42	41.5				
		.	° ft	MSL Entimoted (Overhurden			nef
Vana siza	rod diam	0.75 in	1	zsumateu	Overburgen	K =	k =	psi
Valie Size	Length	6.625 in			Ean 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	Width	2.5 in			Egn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered			Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.56	
	k =	2.59 Acl	ker					
	moment ar	12 incl	hes				-	
Degrees	Radians	Strain F	Force	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28.00	
5	0.0873	5.55%	2	248.64	47.20	243.81	228 52	
1.0	0.1309	11 12%	19	590.52	448.39	579.05	542.73	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	27	839.16	637.18	822.86	771.25	
15	0.2618	16.68%	32	994.56	755.18	975.24	914.08	
20	0.3491	22.23%	38	1181.04	896.78	1158.10	1085.46	
25	0.4363	27.79%	39	1212.12	920.38	1188.57	1114.03	
30	0.5236	33.35%	39	1212.12	920.38	1188.57	1114.03	
35	0.6109	38.91%	40	1243.20	943.98	1219.05	1142.59	
40	0.6981	44.47%	40	1243.20	943.98	1219.05	1142.59	
45	0.7854	50.03%	40	1243.20	943.90	1219.00	1142.09	
50	0.0727	61 14%	39	1212.12	920.30	1188.57	1114.03	
00	0.0000	01.1470	001	الأسد الأسما الأسم	1 020.00			
Remoulde	d strength			12.00	372.96	psf	1.00	
	•	52					· ·	
	4400	Ļ		P			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	and the second second
4	1400							
Ž	<u>5</u> 1200							
4			XX	- x *	**	~ x		
	⋛ 1000 ┼─							
	-							
1	<u>2</u> 800 +-	Ř∎́	1					
5	5 600 +							
7								
	5 200 ∔							(S
	0 🖛		+	<u> </u>	·····	<u></u>		
	0%	₀ / [∞] 2	0%	409	%	60%	80%	100%
		1		6	train (nor	sont)		
				3	train (per	Jent)		
				Erro 6.2		Ean 6 4	Bom	oulded strength
	ACKEr -					Eqi1 0.4		ouided strength
$\left \right\rangle$		INA	220					
FEAK	2	12700	0570 r					
PENAND	FD =	370 ps	1					
NENIVUL	,	150056						
5-100		000p-7	r					
FAID. TR	AV/aHT =	YNN 05-	t					

Boring ID	GB-00-05	Elevation, 2	-1.9 Ft MSL	Project:	SAEP Causew	ay	
Elevatio	n = -7.4 ft	MSL					
WWW (21) -	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Estimated (Overburden p	ressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in			K =	k =	
	Length	9.25 in		Eqn 6.2	0.12	8.00	
	Width	3.625 in		Eqn 6.3	0.10	10.00	
	Flat/Tapered	lapered	l	Eqn 6.4	0.11]	9.35	
	K =	12 inches					
Dearees	Radians	Strain Force	Shear	Fan 6.2	Ean 6.3	Ean 6.4	
000	0.0000	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
5	0.0873	5.56%	9.5 103.17	76.04	94.97	88.86	
10	0.1745	11.12%	16 173.76	128.07	159.95	149.66	
15	0.2618	16.68%	22 238.92	176.10	219.93	205.78	
20	0.3491	22.23%	25 271.50	200.12	249.92	233.84	
25	0.4363	27.79%	25 271.50	200.12	249.92	233.84	
30	0.5236	33.35%	24 260.64	192.11	239.92	224.48	
35	0.0109	30.91% 44 47%	15 162 an	192.11	149 95	140 30	
40 45	0.0301	50.03%	20 217 20	160.09	199.93	187.07	
	0.8727	55.58%	18 195.48	144.08	179.94	168.36	
55	0.9599	61.14%	17 184.62	136.08	169.94	159.01	
60	1.0472	66.70%	16 173.76	128.07	159.95	149.66	
65	5 1.1345	72.26%	16 173.76	128.07	159.95	149.66	
Remoulded	d strenath		17.00	184.62	psf	1.00	
4	л 300 — 🕇	,5%	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				,
2	i +						
1	₫ 250 ∔						
			X X X				
	200 ++						
C C	0					◆	
	g 150 +				2	2	····
2						3	
7	5 100 						
	e 50 – //						
=				l			
	0%	20%	409	%	60%	80%	100%
			S	train (perc	ent)		
		Eap 6.2	- Ean I	6.2	- Eap 6 1		Ided strength
	Acker	Eq110.2		0.3 ~~		- Nemou	
L	0		ppp of a	5 010			
	FEAK	*	LOUPST C	5 2710			_
	KEMOULDED	5	190 ps j				(A)
	50		70,055				04 Gr
	5 10 8	_	DIANES				0
	END JTRAIL	SHT LINE =	$240p^{-1}$				

Bottom of Elevatio Vane size	Vane Depth, $= -15.4$ ft	ft bgs Mನட	14	13.5				
Elevatio Vane size	n = -15.4 ft	MSL						
Vane size								
Vane size			E	Estimated (Overburden	pressure =		psf
	rod diam	0.75 in				K =	k =	
	Length	9.25 in			Eqn 6.2	0.12	8.00	
	Width	3.625 in			Eqn 6.3	0.10	10.00	
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered			Eqn 6.4	0.11	9.35	
	k = '	0.905 Acker	r					
	moment ar	12 inche	s					
Degrees	Radians	Strain Fo	rce T	Shear	Fan 6.2	Ean 6.3	Egn 6.4	
Degrees		0.00%		0.00	0.00	0,00	0.00	
21	5 0.0436	2 78%	14	152.04	112.07	139.95	130.95	
2.0	0.0400	5 56%	24	260.64	192 11	239 92	224 48	
7	0.0075	9.34%	21	200.04	2/8 15	300.02	280.06	
1.5	0.1309	0.3470	25	200.00	240.15	240.99	203.00	
	0.1745	11.1270	30	300.TU	200.10	200 07	264 70	
12.	0.2182	13.90%	28	423.04	312.10	309.07	202-40	
1	0.2618		41	445.26	328.19	409.86	303.49	
20	0.3491	22.23%	42	456.12	336.20	419.86	392.85	
2	0.4363	27.79%	41	445.26	328.19	409.86	383.49	
30	0.5236	33.35%	40	434.40	320.19	399.87	374.14	
3	5 0.6109	38.91%	38	412.68	304.18	379.87	355.43	
4	0.6981	44.47%	37	401.82	296.17	369.88	346.08	
4	5 0.7854	50.03%	36	390.96	288.17	359.88	336.73	
5	0.8727	55.58%	35	380.10	280.16	349.88	327.37	
	500 450 450 000 0010 0100	5%		P X				
	0%			20%	. ,	40%	I	60%
				St	rain (perc	ent)		
	Acker -	∎ Eqn 6.2		— Eqn 6.3	~~	Eqn 6.4	- Rem	oulded strength
Per Rei 59	K Noulded 70 0	= 46 = 91 = 21	D psf D psf 20 psf	@22%	D			OKGO

orina ID	GB-00-05				Project:	SAEP Caus	eway			-
ottom of Va	ane Depth,	ft bgs	.34~	33.5	-					
levation	=-35,4ft	MSL	r	-	Worburdon				nsf	
	ed diam	0.75 in	E	stimated C	Jverburden	K = 1	k =		p01	
ane size i	enath	9.25 in			Ean 6.2	0.12	8.00			
۱ ۱	Nidth	3.625 in			Eqn 6.3	0.10	10.00			
1	Flat/Tapere	Tapered			Eqn 6.4	0.11	9.35			
1	< = ·	0.905 A	cker	-						
	moment ar	12 in	ches			F 00	En C ()			
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4			
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	16.01	19.00	18 71			
2.5	0.0435	2.18%	2	76.02	56.03	69.98	65.47			
5 75	0.0073	5.50% 8.34%	15	162.90	120.07	149.95	140.30			
10	0.1303	11.12%	19	206.34	152.09	189.94	177.72			
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	20	217.20	160.09	199.93	187.07			
15	0.2618	16.68%	20	217.20	160.09	199.93	187.07			
20	0.3491	22.23%	20	217.20	160.09	199.93	187.07			
25	0.4363	27.79%	25	271.50	200.12	249.92	233.84			
30	0.5236	33.35%	32	347.52	256.15	319.89	299.31			
35	0.6109	38.91%	41	445.26	328.19	409.86	383.49			
40	0.6981	44.47%	48	521.28	384.22	4/9.84	448.97 522 1 F			
45	0.7854	50.03%	57	619.02	456.27	209.01 620.70	580 27			
50	0.8727	55.58%	63	7/0 2/	552 22	680 77	645 30			
55	1 0472	66 70%	72	781 02	576.34	719.76	673.45			
60 65	1.0472	72 26%	74	803.64	592.35	739.76	692.16			
70	1 2217	77 82%	73	792.78	584.34	729.76	682.81			
75	1.3090	83.38%	74	803.64	592.35	739.76	692.16			
80	1.3963	88.93%	74	803.64	592.35	739.76	692.16			
85	1.4835	94.49%	73	792.78	584.34	729.76	682.81			
Remoulded ys to to to to to to to to to to to to to	900			42.00	456.12	2 psf				5
	₹ 200 									
7	■ 100 		1							
=			, , ,							
			20%	40%	6	60%	80%)	100%	
	0 %			-07	- ·		0070			
				St	rain (perc	cent)				
	Acker	—≌— Eqn 6.	2 -	Eqn 6.3		Eqn 6.4	- 🖉 – Rer	moulded st	rength	
Per Rei 50,	K MOULDED		800 pe 400 pe 100 ne	sf @ u	00%				OK G	Ð

END STRAIGHT LINE = 700psf

	B-00-05	fthaa	A4 E	F	Project:	SAEP Cause	eway	1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 -	
ntom of va	levation.	= -48.44	41.5 24 MGL						
una eizo <i>r</i>		0 75 in	E	Estimated C	Verburden	pressure =	k = 1	psf	
	ength	6.625 in		H	Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60		
V	Vidth	2.5 in Tapered		E	Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48 28.56		
r k	(=	2.59 A	cker	Ľ		0.04			
n	noment ar	12 in Strain	ches Force	Shear	Ean 6.2	Fon 6.3	Fan 6.4		
Jegrees 0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	3	93.24	70.80	91.43	85.69		
5 7 5	0.0873	5.56% 8.34%	9 14	435.12	330.39	426.67	399.91		
10	0.1745	11.12%	16	497.28	377.59	487.62	457.04		
12.5 15	0.2182	13.90% 16.68%	19 22	590.52 683.76	448.39 519.19	579.05 670.48	542.73 628.43		
20	0.3491	22.23%	30	932.40	707.98	914.29	856.95		
22.5	0.3927	25.01%	35	1087.80	825.98	1066.67	999.77 1056 90		
25 30	0.4363	33.35%	40	1243.20	943.98	1219.05	1142.59		
35	0.6109	38.91%	41	1274.28	967.58	1249.52	1171.16		
40 45	0.6981 0.7854	44.47% 50.03%	41 41	1274.28	967.58	1249.52	1171.16		
50	0.8727	55.58%	41	1274.28	967.58	1249.52	1171.16		
emoulded	strength	45		10.00	310.80	psf	1.00		
		15%		, 1P					
	1400 —	+							
, ps	1200								
gth					1 1 1				,
ren	1000 +		A -						
r St	800								
hea	600								
qSi	000								
inec	400 🕂								
dra	200 🕂							T	
'n									
	0		20%	40%		60%	80%	100%	
	070		2070	Stu	ain (nerce	ent)	00,0	10070	
]	
 •- A	cker	— — Eqn 6.2	2 -*	— Eqn 6.3	 E	Eqn 6.4	- Remou	ulded strength	
2-14		- 11-	10 05F	@ 3	8%				' Ol
1EAK	I AFA	- 1	in nal		-				
KENIOU	レリビリ	- 0 = *1	10 05-	•					
2100		- 2	10 00	C			. 10	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
VAIN Y	TURIBHT	=	100 05	t		¥ P.	evised two	m ariginal	

Boring ID	GB-00-06				Project:	SAEP Causew	ay	
Bottom of \	/ane Depth, ft bg	IS	.6	5,5				
					S			pof
\/	us al alta ma	0.75 in	t	stimated C	Jverburden p		k =	psi
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 IN			Eap 6.2	0.12	8 00	
	Length	9.20 III 3.625 in			Eqn 6.2	0.12	10.00	
	Flat/Taparad	Tapered			Eqn 6.4	0.10	9.35	
	k =	0.905 Acke	r	Ľ				
	moment arm	12 inche	s					
Dearees	Radians	Strain Fo	rce	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
(0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	2	21.72	16.01	19.99	18.71	
5	5 0.0873	5.56%	5	54.30	40.02	49.98	46.77	
7.5	5 0.1309	8.34%	10	108.60	80.05	99.97	93.54	
10) 0.1745	11.12%	13	141.18	104.06	129.96	121.60	
12.5	5 0.2182	13.90%	16	173.76	128.07	159.95	149.66	
15	5 0.2618	16.68%	18	195.48	144.08	179.94	108.30	
20	0.3491	22.23%	20	217.20	160.09	199.93	106 42	
25	0.4363	27.79%	21	228.00	100.10	209.93	196.42	
30		33.30%	21	220.00	168.10	209.93	196.42	
33		30.9176 AA A7%	21	228.06	168 10	209.93	196.42	
40	5 0 7854	50 0.3%	21	228.06	168.10	209.93	196.42	
5(0.7004	55.58%	20	217.20	160.09	199.93	187.07	
5	5 0.9599	61.14%	20	217.20	160.09	199.93	187.07	
	• • • • • • • • •		•	'	I		·	
Remoulde	d strength			4.00	43.44	psf	1.00	
<u>Г</u>		/-						
L	5 250			r r r				11
	ä – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –							
			-					
	ธ 200 +		×	X X	XX	×		
	ē							
i	が 150 +	A						
	ar							
	s 100							
	eq							
	≦ 50 	1						
	dra							
				1				(000)
	0%	20%	, D	40%	%	60%	80%	100%
		-/1		S	train (perc	cent)		
				_		,		
		— — Eqn 6.2	2	– 📥 – Eqn (6.3 ~×	- Eqn 6.4	Remould	ed strength
		Peak = 5	230	psf				
				۰ ·				

SAEP Causeway Boring ID GB-00-06 Project: 14 13.5 Bottom of Vane Depth, ft bgs psf Estimated Overburden pressure = 0.75 in K = k = Vane size rod diam 8.00 9.25 in Eqn 6.2 0.12 Length 10.00 3.625 in Width Eqn 6.3 0.10 9.35 Flat/Tapere Tapered Eqn 6.4 0.11 0.905 Acker k = 12 inches moment ar Eqn 6.3 Egn 6.4 Strain Force Shear Eqn 6.2 Degrees Radians 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0 0.0000 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.78% 2.5 0.0436 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5 0.0873 5.56% 0 0.00 0.00 0.1309 8.34% 0.00 0.00 7.5 0 10.00 9.35 10.86 8.00 10 0.1745 11.12% 1 19.99 18.71 2 21.72 16.01 12.5 0.2182 13.90% 129.96 121.60 15 0.2618 16.68% 13 141.18 104.06 22 238.92 176.10 219.93 205.78 20 0.3491 22.23% 261.90 28 304.08 224.13 279.91 25 0.4363 27.79% 289.96 31 309.90 30 0.5236 33.35% 336.66 248.15 309.90 289.96 35 0.6109 38.91% 31 336.66 248.15 309.90 289.96 40 0.6981 44.47% 31 336.66 248.15 309.90 289.96 45 0.7854 50.03% 31 336.66 248.15 309.90 289.96 50 0.8727 55.58% 31 336.66 248.15 55 0.9599 61.14% 30 325.80 240.14 299.90 280.61 280.61 60 1.0472 66.70% 30 325.80 240.14 299.90 299.90 280.61 65 1.1345 72.26% 30 325.80 240.14 8.00 86.88 psf 1.00 Remoulded strength 590 400 P Undrained Shear Strength, psf 350 300 250 200 150 100 50 0 👜 🗠 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 0% Strain (percent) Acker -B- Eqn 6.2 - Eqn 6.3 -X-Eqn 6.4 -- Remoulded strength Peak = 340psf Removided =90psf 590 = 200psf 5.6. = 240psf

SAEP Causeway Boring ID GB-00-06 Project: 20-19.5 Bottom of Vane Depth, ft bgs Estimated Overburden pressure = psf k = Vane size rod diam 0.75 in K = Egn 6.2 8.00 Length 9.25 in 0.12 Width 3.625 in Egn 6.3 0.10 10.00 Eqn 6.4 0.11 9.35 Flat/Tapere Tapered k = 0.905 Acker 12 inches moment ar Egn 6.4 Egn 6.2 Eqn 6.3 Degrees Radians Strain Force Shear 0.00 0.0000 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 119.46 88.05 109.96 102.89 2.5 0.0436 2.78% 11 199.93 187.07 5 0.0873 5.56% 20 217.20 160.09 224.48 192.11 239.92 7.5 0.1309 8.34% 24 260.64 325.80 240.14 299.90 280.61 11.12% 30 10 0.1745 359.88 336.73 12.5 0.2182 13.90% 36 390.96 288.17 383.49 0.2618 16.68% 41 445.26 328.19 409.86 15 477.84 439.85 411.56 20 0.3491 22.23% 44 352.21 402.20 25 0.4363 27.79% 43 466.98 344.20 429.86 42 419.86 392.85 30 0.5236 33.35% 456.12 336.20 40 434.40 320.19 399.87 374.14 0.6109 38.91% 35 389.87 364.79 40 0.6981 44.47% 39 423.54 312.18 50.03% 38 412.68 304.18 379.87 355.43 45 0.7854 1.00 7.00 76.02 psf Remoulded strength 600 Undrained Shear Strength, psf P 500 400 300 200 100 0 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% Strain (percent) - Remoulded strength -B-Eqn 6.2 - Eqn 6.3 -X-Eqn 6.4 Acker Peak = 480 psf Removided = 76psf 590 Strain 200psf Straight Line = 400 psf



SAEP Causeway Boring ID GB-00-06 Project: -34 33.5 Bottom of Vane Depth, ft bgs Estimated Overburden pressure = psf k = 0.75 in K = Vane size rod diam Egn 6.2 0.04 23.60 6.625 in Length Eqn 6.3 0.03 30.48 Width 2.5 in Eqn 6.4 0.04 28.56 Tapered Flat/Tapere 2.59 Acker k = 12 inches moment ar Degrees Strain Force Shear Egn 6.2 Egn 6.3 Egn 6.4 Radians 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0000 0 0 91.43 85.69 0.0436 2.78% 3 93.24 70.80 2.5 118.00 152.38 142.82 5.56% 5 155.40 5 0.0873 228.52 243.81 7.5 0.1309 8.34% 8 248.64 188.80 396.19 371.34 10 0.1745 11.12% 13 404.04 306.79 528.36 401.19 518.10 485.60 12.5 0.2182 13.90% 17 448.39 579.05 542.73 19 590.52 15 0.2618 16.68% 519.19 670.48 628.43 22 683.76 20 0.3491 22.23% 542.79 656.99 700.95 23 714.84 25 0.4363 27.79% 554.59 716.19 671.27 0.5236 33.35% 23.5 730.38 30 23.5 730.38 554.59 716.19 671.27 35 0.6109 38.91% 566.39 731.43 685.56 44.47% 24 745.92 40 0.6981 745.92 566.39 731.43 685.56 24 45 0.7854 50.03% 716.19 671.27 730.38 554.59 50 0.8727 55.58% 23.5 656.99 542.79 700.95 55 0.9599 61.14% 23 714.84 22.5 699.30 530.99 685.71 642.71 60 1.0472 66.70% 655.24 614.14 1.1345 72.26% 21.5 668.22 507.39 65 Remoulded strength 4.50 139.86 psf 1.00 PT 800 Undrained Shear Strength, psf 700 훆 600 500 400 300 200 100 0 40% 60% 80% 100% 20% 0% Strain (percent) - Remoulded strength - Acker -B-Eqn 6.2 - Eqn 6.3 Peak = 750 psf Removided = 140 psf 590 Strain=175psf Straight Line=550psf

Boring ID	GB-00-06				Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	
Bottom of V	/ane Depth, f	t bgs	42	41.5				
			_					nof
		0.75	E	stimated C		pressure =	k = 1	psi
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 In			Ean 6.2	0.04	23 60	
	Length	0.025 IN		l	Eqn 6.3	0.04	30.48	
		Z.5 III			Eqn 6.4	0.03	28 56	
			kor	L		0.04		
	n – moment ar	2.00 A	ches					
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Shear	Egn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	. 0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28,56	
5	0.0873	5.56%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
10	0.1745	11.12%	3	93.24	70.80	91.43	85.69	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	3	93.24	70.80	91.43	85.69	
15	0.2618	16.68%	3	93.24	70.80	91.43	85.69	
20	0.3491	22.23%	3.5	108.78	82.60	106.67	99.98	
25	0.4363	27.79%	3.5	108.78	82.60	106.67	99.98	
30	0.5236	33.35%	3.5	108.78	82.00	100.07	99.90	
35	0.6109	38.91%	3.5	100.70	82.00	106.67	99.90	
40	0.0981	44.47% 50.02%	3.5	03.24	70.80	91 43	85.69	
40	0.7004	55 58%	3	93.24	70.00	91.43	85.69	
50	0.0721	00.0070	Ŭ	00.2				
			1		1	ł		
Remoulde	d strength			0.50	15.54	psf	1.00	
	-							
	400		P					
	120		\mathbf{V}					
ŝ								
Ę.	100 +		XX	XX				
D C	0	K XX	1987 WE	1776 Bills				
re	80							
ភ	5							
Je	60 +		<u> </u>					
he								
					_			
l d								
- P								
	5							
	0 🖗 —							
	0%	2	0%	40%)	60%	80%	100%
				Str	ain (perc	ent)		
	Acker		A	— Egn 6.3	~×-	Eqn 6.4	- H- Rem	oulded strength

peak = 110 psf Remoulde d = 15 psf 590 Strain = 60.psf Straight Line = 90psf









SAEP Causeway Boring ID GB-00-08 Project: 13.5 Bottom of Vane Depth, ft bgs Estimated Overburden pressure = psf k = K = Vane size rod diam 0.75 in 0.12 8.00 Length 9.25 in Eqn 6.2 Width 3.625 in Egn 6.3 0.10 10.00 Eqn 6.4 0.11 9.35 Flat/Tapere Tapered k = 0.905 Acker moment ar 12 inches Eqn 6.2 Eqn 6.3 Eqn 6.4 Strain Force Shear Degrees Radians 0.00 0.00 0.0000 0.00% 0 0.00 0.00 0 2 18.71 2.5 0.0436 2.78% 21.72 16.01 19.99 3 5 0.0873 5.56% 32.58 24.01 29.99 28.06 4 37.41 8.34% 43.44 32.02 39.99 7.5 0.1309 5 54.30 40.02 49.98 46.77 10 0.1745 11.12% 6 0.2182 13.90% 65.16 48.03 59.98 56.12 12.5 0.2618 16.68% 9 97.74 72.04 89.97 84.18 15 12 130.32 96.06 119.96 112.24 20 0.3491 22.23% 17 184.62 136.08 169.94 159.01 25 0.4363 27.79% 25 271.50 200.12 249.92 233.84 30 0.5236 33.35% 40 434.40 320.19 399.87 374.14 35 0.6109 38.91% 44.47% 39 423.54 312.18 389.87 364.79 40 0.6981 0.7854 50.03% 38 412.68 304.18 379.87 355.43 45 0.8727 55.58% 37 401.82 296.17 369.88 346.08 50 7.00 76.02 psf 1.00 Remoulded strength 500 Undrained Shear Strength, psf 450 400 350 300 250 200 150 100 50 0 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% Strain (percent) - Eqn 6.3 ------ Eqn 6.4 - Remoulded strength Acker

Boring ID	GB-00-08	7.1	07.5		Project:	SAEP Caus	seway	
Bottom of V	ane Depth, f	t bgs	37.5					
		•	E	Estimated (Overburden	pressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 ir	ı	[K =	k =	
	Length	6.625 ir	ו		Eqn 6.2	0.04	23.60	
	Width	2.5 ir	ı		Eqn 6.3	0.03	30.48	
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered		l	Eqn 6.4	0.04	28.56	
	k =	2.59 A	cker					
Decreace	moment ar	12 II Strain	Force	Shoar	Fop 6.2	Fan 6.3	Fan 6.4	
Degrees		0.00%		0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
25	0.0000	2 78%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28.56	
2.0	0.0873	5.56%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28.56	
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28.56	
10	0.1745	11.12%	1	31.08	23.60	30.48	28.56	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	1.5	46.62	35.40	45.71	42.85	
15	0.2618	16.68%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
20	0.3491	22.23%	2	62.16	47.20	60.95	57.13	
25	0.4363	27.79%	2	62.16 155.40	47.20	152.38	142 82	
30	0.5236	33.30%	2	248 64	188.80	243.81	228 52	
30 40	0.6109	30.91% AA 47%	12	372.96	283.19	365.71	342.78	
40	0.7854	50.03%	14	435.12	330.39	426.67	399.91	
50	0.8727	55.58%	14.5	450.66	342.19	441.90	414.19	
55	0.9599	61.14%	14.5	450.66	342.19	441.90	414.19	
60	1.0472	66.70%	15	466.20	353.99	457.14	428.47	
65	1.1345	72.26%	15	466.20	353.99	457.14	428.47	
70	1.2217	77.82%	15	466.20	353.99	457.14	428.47	
75	1.3090	83.38%	15	466.20	353.99	457.14	428.47	
Remoulde	d strength			7.00	217.56	psf	1.00	
[P		
5	500				-/			
lsc 4	50							
ц с					1 ×	××	<u> </u>	
gth 1								
len C	350 +							
Str	300 +				\leftarrow			
ar	250							
he								
S 2	200							
Jec	150 +							
air	100 +		-p		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Jpr	50							
ב								
	0 🕸			400/				40.09/
	0%	20	%	40%	(60%	80%	100%
				Stra	in (perce	nt)		
	Acker -	- B Eqn 6.2	2 -	- Eqn 6.3	~~	Eqn 6.4	- H-Ren	noulded strength
		•						
PFAK	= L	170 USF	@ 42%	7 0				
BENGANIN	ED =	220 ASF						
HENDULD		in nes						
5%00	-	Jou por						
ENDUTR	HIGHT =	380 pst						

Boring ID	GB-00-09				Project:	SAEP Causew	ay	
Bottom of V	ane Depth, ft bg	s	17.5					
				Estimated (Overburden r	pressure =		psf
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 in				K =	k =	1
	Length	9.25 in			Eqn 6.2	0.12	8.00	
	Width	3.625 in			Eqn 6.3	0.10	10.00	. wit
	Flat/Lapered	lapered	r	L	Eqn 6.4	0.11	9.35	
	noment arm	12 inch	91 98					
Degrees	Radians	Strain Fo	orce	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	0.5	5.43	4.00	5.00	4.68	
5	0.0873	5.56%	2	21.72	16.01 24.01	19.99	28.06	
10	0.1309	11 12%	6	65 16	48.03	59.98	56.12	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	10	108.60	80.05	99.97	93.54	
15	0.2618	16.68%	14	152.04	112.07	139.95	130.95	
20	0.3491	22.23%	23.5	255.21	188.11	234.92	219.81	
- 25	0.4363	27.79%	34	369.24	272.16	339.89	318.02	
30	0.5236	33.35%	36	390.96	288.17	359.88	336.73	
30	0.6109	38.91%	35	380.10	200.10	349.00	327.37	
40	0.7854	50.03%	33.5	363.81	268.16	334.89	313.34	
50	0.8727	55.58%	34	369.24	272.16	339.89	318.02	
							[
Demenulate	l atrawath			2 00	20 50	pof	1 00	
Remoulded	strength	ED		3.00	32.00	psi	1.00	
		<i>546</i>						
Sf	450			10				
Q	400			X				
jth j	250					•		
ů,	330		1×		X			
Str.	300							
5	250							
lea	200		4					
Sh	150							
eq	150							
in i	100 +							
dra	50							
ň		Ý		~				
	0		~	, ,			000(10004
	0% /	20%		40%	D	60%	80%	100%
				St	rain (perc	ent)		
						,		
	◆ Acker	— — Eqn 6.2	2	— A — Eqn 6	.3 ×	– Eqn 6.4	- Remou	ulded strength
Prav.	-	390 05F	e:	15%		US	ing 335,	psf @ $20%$
1EAK	*	60 C						,
KEMONI	LDED=	30 pst						
5%.	8 T	BO psf						
ENDS	FRAIGHT=	370 p58						

Boring ID	GB-00-09				Project:	SAEP Caus	eway	
Bottom of V	Vane Depth,	ft bgs	25.5		-			
					N			pof
				Estimated (Jverburden	pressure =		psi
Vane size	rod diam	0.75 i	n			K =	к =	
	Length	9.25 i	n		Eqn 6.2	0.12	8.00	
	Width	3.625 i	n		Eqn 6.3	0.10	10.00	
	Flat/Tapere	Tapered			Eqn 6.4	0.11	9.35	
	k =	0.905 A	Acker					
	moment ar	12 i	nches				1	
Degrees	Radians	Strain	Force	Shear	Eqn 6.2	Eqn 6.3	Eqn 6.4	
0	0.0000	0.00%	0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
2.5	0.0436	2.78%	2	21.72	16.01	19.99	18.71	
5	0.0873	5.56%	4	43.44	32.02	39.99	37.41	
7.5	0.1309	8.34%	5	54.30	40.02	49.98	46.77	
10	0.1745	11.12%	5.5	59.73	44.03	54.98	51.44	
12.5	0.2182	13.90%	6	65.16	48.03	59.98	56.12	
15	0.2618	16.68%	7	76.02	56.03	69.98	65.47	
20	0.3491	22.23%	8.5	92.31	68.04	84.97	79.51	
25	0.4363	27.79%	10.5	114.03	84.05	104.97	98.21	
30	0.5236	33.35%	12.5	135.75	100.06	124.96	116.92	
35	0.6109	38.91%	18	195.48	144.08	179.94	168.36	
40	0.6981	44.47%	29	314.94	232.14	289.90	271.25	
45	0.7854	50.03%	42	456.12	336.20	419.86	392.85	
50	0.8727	55.58%	49	532.14	392.23	489.84	458.32	
55	0.9599	61.14%	49.5	537.57	396.23	494.84	463.00	
60) 1.0472	66.70%	51	553.86	408.24	509.83	477.03	
65	5 1.1345	72.26%	51.5	559.29	412.24	514.83	481.71	
70) 1.2217	77.82%	50	543.00	400.23	499.84	467.68	
								l
Remoulde	ed strength			口, 9.00	97.74	psf	1.00	





SHEAR STRENGTH VS. ELEVATION PLOTS

Harding ESE



Remoulded Strength vs Elevation Under the Causeway



Remoulded Strength vs Elevation Off the Causeway

p:\projects\cbdcom\saep\causeway\geotech\field vanes\Strength vs Elevation.xls Remoulr'



5% Strain Strength vs Elevation Under the Causeway



5% Strain Strength vs Elevation Off the Causeway

♦ GB-00-05 III GB-00-06 @ GB-00-09 ▲ GB-00-08

p:\projects\cbdcom\saep\causeway\geotech\field vanes\Strength vs Elevation.xls 5% Off



Straight Line (Elastic) Strength vs Elevation Under the Causeway

p:\projects\cbdcom\saep\causeway\geotech\field vanes\Strength vs Elevation.xls Straight Under



Straight Line (Elastic) Strength vs Elevation Off the Causeway

p:\projects\cbdcom\saep\causeway\geotech\field vanes\Strength vs Elevation.xls Straight \checkmark